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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Pang (Chairman)
Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZOU Gebing (resigned on 8 January 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Hok Kan
Ms. WU Xiangfei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent

Prof. LEE Chack Fan

Ms. CHEN lJianhua

Prof. SIT Wing Hang, Alfred (appointed on 5 July 2023)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman of committee)
Prof. LEE Chack Fan

Ms. CHEN lJianhua

Prof. SIT Wing Hang, Alfred (appointed on 5 July 2023)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman of committee)
Prof. LEE Chack Fan

Ms. CHEN Jianhua

Prof. SIT Wing Hang, Alfred (appointed on 5 July 2023)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman of committee)
Prof. LEE Chack Fan

Ms. CHEN Jianhua

Prof. SIT Wing Hang, Alfred (appointed on 5 July 2023)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DRIER(E)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai
Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

NEIME

MRSt

EIERE

HFRELE
Wt

A
B & EHAERA

FERSTERMBLERT
AR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

BEEROBFPERLDKE
BEBELFERLEARAR
BEERE16%
RRESFPOT7E

T =R

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

RARBIERBRE AT 2023 F3§




CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
NREIEFR(E)

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

No. 258, Shengli Road, Magiao Street
Haining City, Jiaxing City
Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

No. 52, Fu Hang Road
Tuen Mun
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Bank of Jiaxing Company Limited

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Taishin International Bank

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

Zhejiang Haining Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Bank of Huzhou Company Limited

STOCK CODE

1575

WEBSITE

www.morrishome.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

Revenue increased by approximately 42.4% to approximately
RMB188.0 million in 2023 (2022: approximately RMB132.0
million)

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB69.5
million in 2023 (2022: approximately RMB2.0 million)

The Group’s loss for the year decreased by approximately
87.1% to approximately RMB26.1 million in 2023 (2022:
approximately RMB202.6 million)

Basic loss per share was approximately RMB0.92 cents in 2023 as
compared with basic loss per share of approximately RMB13.99
cents in 2022

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2022: RMBnil) for the year ended 31 December 2023
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Morris
Home"), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023 (“2023" or the “Reporting Period”) to shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”).

2023 was a transformative year for Morris Home. PRC government
lifted all epidemic prevention measures and global economic activities
were gradually recovering. Capitalizing on this opportune moment,
we initiated a wide range of strategic changes, including enhanced
product innovation, diversified market reach, stringent cost control
and reinforced internal governance, with the aim to bolster our
products’ brand value, improving operational efficiency and driving
overall business performance. The newly appointed Independent
Executive Directors also dedicated efforts to drive our operations
forward smoothly, establishing a solid foundation for the Company’s

long-term success.

Our proactive management team, alongside the unwavering devotion
of our employees, led to a considerable year-on-year sales growth of
45.5% in the Reporting Period. This accomplishment was attributed
to our strategy of introducing fashionable sofa and furniture offerings
in line with various markets trends. In particular, we entrusted product
designs to local designers of the target markets, aligned with the
production capabilities of the factories to develops products that are
cost-effective in terms of logistics and market benefits. During the
year, we have designed vacuum-sealed sofas and sofa products which
can be easily assembled by customers for the advantage of convenient

transportation.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE ()

In times of post-COVID recovery, as economic activities gradually
regain momentum, we have acknowledged the importance to
pursue global market opportunities. Therefore, we participated in the
influential furniture exhibitions across different regions, including the
United States, the United Kingdom, Indonesia, and Shenzhen. These
exhibitions have helped us expand into broader markets with our
latest product series, promote our brand, and gain insights into the
needs of potential buyers. In Asia, we have strategically established
a sales network in Hong Kong, including five company-owned stores
and 7 distributors, to stay attuned to the needs of the predominantly

Hong Kong and Mainland China consumer groups.

Amidst the dynamic and ever-evolving environment, the Group has
committed to maintaining financial stability through strengthened
inventory and management practices. Notably, we have tactically
managed our warehouses in UK to achieve elevated operational
effectiveness and streamlined processes, resulting in significant cost

savings.

Looking ahead to 2024, we will embrace market challenges and
opportunities with a pragmatic and steady attitude. For years of
operation, we have garnered a wealth of experience and insights to
recognise the significance of product quality in business. Therefore,
we will not stop contributing resources on innovation and investment
in product development. In addition, we will proactively explore
production opportunities in other countries to strategically align with
our export business footprints. We can also benefit from potential
cost advantages, such as lower labor or manufacturing expenses,
while simultaneously minimizing the impact of trade restrictions
imposed by other countries. This strategy allows us to optimise our
supply chain, enhance competitiveness, and navigate the complexities

of the global marketplace more effectively.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE ()

Meanwhile, we also observed the rapidly changing consumer
demands, including the growing inclination towards portable, versatile
furniture products that seamlessly fit into compact spaces with multi-
functions, increasing awareness on eco-friendly furniture to reduce
the carbon impact on the world. These evolving trends push us to
constantly evolve, reflect on areas for improvement in our business
model, optimise the supply chain and sales channels, and keeping
abreast of market needs.

We will maintain relentless pursuit of excellence on the business,
whilst strengthening internal management, enhancing operational
efficiency, and controlling costs to achieve a healthy cash flow that

supports sustainable development in the long-run.
Chairman and Executive Director

Tse Kam Pang
Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Kam Pang, aged 69, is the chairman of the Group and
was appointed as an executive Director on 17 October 2022. He is
responsible for providing leadership to the Board. Mr. Tse is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

He is a founder, the chairman of the board of directors and an
executive director of Royale Home Holdings Limited (“Royale
Home"), a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1198). He is also a controlling
shareholder of Royale Home who is deemed to be interested in
approximately 74.86% of the issued share capital of Royale Home.
He held the position of Deputy Managing Director at Ultronics
International Holdings Limited (currently known as DreamEast Group
Limited), a company the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0593), from 1993 to 1995. He has over
30 years of experience in the international trade and China trade
business.

Mr. Tse Kam Pang is a vice chairman of Hong Kong Furniture
Association and has extensive experience in the manufacture and sale
of furniture business. Mr. Tse Kam Pang is the father of Mr. Tse Hok
Kan, a non-executive Director and the father-in-law of Mr. Chong
Tsz Ngai, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Mr. Tse is the sole shareholder and sole director of Century Icon,
being the beneficial owner of 1,300,038,000 Shares, representing
approximately 47.27% of the issued share capital.

Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai, aged 35, is the chief executive officer of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director on 17 October
2022. He is responsible for the overall management of the operations
of the Group. Mr. Chong is a director of all subsidiaries of the
Company.

Prior to joining the Group, he was a director of debt capital markets
(DCM) at United Overseas Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch from
2021 to 2022. He was a vice president of DCM of CNCB (Hong Kong)
Capital from 2019 to 2021 and was previously a vice president of the
fixed income, currency and commodities department of GF Global
Capital Limited from March to December 2019.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESEReNEEEERE (E)

Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai has over ten years of experience in the corporate
finance industry. Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai holds a Master’s Degree in
Finance from Imperial College London and was awarded a Bachelor’s
Degree in accounting and finance with first-class honour by Lancaster
University. Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai is a son-in-law of Mr. Tse Kam Pang,
the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and a controlling

shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director
on 18 March 2016 and resigned on 8 January 2024. Prior to his
resignation, he was the chairman and chief executive officer of
the Group from 2016 to 2022 and responsible for the sales and
marketing of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was deputy
general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July 1997 to
March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002, respectively, and
had been mainly responsible for exploration and development of
overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He joined Morris Group
Co., Ltd. ("Morris PRC") as part of its management team in May
2002, served as its vice chairman and general manager since February
2005, and became the chairman of Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a master’s
degree in business administration for senior management from
Zhejiang University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
in March 2007. He had also served as a corporate tutor for MBA
postgraduates in the Management School of Zhejiang University
from April 2007 to March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited as a senior
economist by the Senior Economist Qualification Committee of

Zhejiang Province in December 2007.

With over 20 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing related
businesses. Mr. Zou’s spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei is a non-executive

Director.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EENEHNEERERE (&)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Hok Kan, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 17 October 2022.

He holds a Master of Science degree in Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree - joint major in accounting and finance from Simon Fraser

University.

Prior to joining the Group, he had held the position of executive
director of Royale Home from 2016 to 2019. He has extensive
experience in production, development, marketing of furniture and
Hong Kong and China trade businesses. Mr. Tse Hok Kan is a son of
Mr. Tse Kam Pang, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director

and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Wu Xiangfei, aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 9 November 2022.

She has vast experience in the furniture business. Ms. Wu Xiangfei
has been the vice chairman of the board of directors of Morris Group
Company Limited since 2018, during which she has accumulated
experience and gained knowledge in manufacturing and sales of
sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing, an executive
Director resigned on 8 January 2024 and a substantial shareholder of
the Company.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESEReNEEEERE (E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 October 2022. He is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
the Board. He is also the chairman of each of the Audit Committee,

Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He served as the vice president of the Hong Kong Shipping
Department (&8 & MAAER) of Citibank (fEFEERTT), the vice president
of the Asia Pacific Elevator Department of United Technologies
Company (B4 £ 172 ]), the managing director of Hintful Capital
Group ( #1 &l gt & £ @), professor of Beijing Normal University —
Hong Kong Baptist University (JL I8 K22 — HEZTEAZ) United
International College, executive dean of the HKU Zhejiang Institute
of Research and Innovation (& & KX 247 )L & 2 F it 7Tkt ). He
is currently a member of the Executive Committee of Hong Kong
Economic Association (BB 4B &), the chief advisor of the think
tank of Qingshanhu Scitech City in Hangzhou, Zhejiang (7 ST #71 /N
B WA R ), the president of Zhuhai Chuangke Yinlian Business
Consulting Co., Ltd (¥k)8 8] %} 5| B 79 %5 75 59 B BR 2 &), the vice
chairman of Shanghai Qiaoyue loT Technology Co., Limited (#&1%(_t
8 EE R AR A ")), a Director of Hong Kong Economic Trading
International Association (B/BBIR 4 E A EH€) and the chairman

of the Education and Training Committee (ABEFIZES).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEReNEEEER (E)

Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent is an independent director of China
Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601916) and the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2016). He was the chief financial officer of Yew Chung Education
Foundation in Hong Kong from 2001 to 2013. From 2010 to 2015,
he served as an independent non-executive director of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1143). Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent was an
independent director of Jiangling Motors Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from 2008 to 2012
and a non-executive director of Finet Group Limited (stock code:
8317), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from
2002 to 2008. Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent is a Certified Practicing
Accountant of CPA Australia. Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent obtained
a Doctoral Degree in Business Administration from the University
of Western Sydney in Australia in May 2004, a Master’s Degree in
Commerce from the University of Hitotsubashi in Japan in March
1981, and a Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences from The University

of Hong Kong in November 1973.

Professor Lee Chack Fan, G.B.S, S.B.S, J.P., aged 78, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 9 November 2022.
He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He taught at the University of Western Ontario and the University of
Toronto, before starting a long career with Ontario Hydro in Canada
more than 20 years, where he worked on a variety of projects that
included water resources management, hydropower and nuclear
power. He joined the University of Hong Kong in 1994 as a professor
of the Department of Civil Engineering, and successively as chair
professor of geotechnical engineering, Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Vice-
President) and Director of the School of Professional and Continuing
Education (HKU SPACE). He has also served as a specialist consultant
or an advisor to many international bodies such as the United Nations
Development Plan, World Bank and Asian Development Bank on
numerous energy and infrastructure projects in many parts of the

world.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESEReNEEEERE (E)

Professor Lee Chack Fan is an internationally renowned expert in
geotechnical engineering. He served as a consultant and technical
adviser to numerous energy and infrastructure projects in China and
overseas, including the construction of the Three Gorges Dam of the
Yangtze River. Professor Lee Chack Fan’s eminent achievement in civil
engineering has been highly recognised. He was awarded the K. Y.
Lo Medal in 2001 by the Engineering Institute of Canada, was elected
a Fellow of the Canadian Academy of Engineering and a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Science in 2001, and an
Academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003.

Professor Lee Chack Fan is also the Chairman of the Board of the
Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of Chinese Culture; the Jao
Tsung-l Academy Management Board; Director of the Jao Tsung-I
Petite Ecole, University of Hong Kong; member of the Commission
on Strategic Development; etc. He previously served as the Chairman
of the Council of the Lord Wilson Heritage Trust; the Harbourfront
Enhancement Committee and the Veterinary Surgeons Board and
was a member of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District
Authority and the Culture and Heritage Commission.

Professor Lee Chack Fan was appointed a Justice-of-the-Peace in
2003 and awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and the Gold Bauhinia
Star in 2005 and 2013 respectively. He was also a recipient of the K.
Y. Lo Medal of the Engineering Institute of Canada in 2001; Fulbright
Distinguished Scholar in 2005; Gold Medal of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers in 2008; Queen Elizabeth II's Diamond Jubilee
Medal in 2012; as well as honorary Doctor of Science degrees from
the University of Western Ontario (2006), Plymouth University (2012),
Edinburgh Napier University (2012) and the University of Macau
(2014).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEReNEEEER (E)

Professor Lee Chack Fan is currently a non-executive director of
Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited (stock code: 1660) and
an independent non-executive director of Hui Xian Real Estate
Investment Trust (stock code: 87001), both of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He also served in the following companies the shares
of which are or were listed on the Stock Exchange, as an independent
non-executive director of South Shore Holdings Limited (stock code:
577) from 2005 to 2021, AID Life Science Holdings Limited (known as
8088 Investment Holdings Limited when it was delisted in 2022) (stock
code: 8088) from 2015 to 2017 and Shimao International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 649) from 2004 to its withdrawal of listing in
2007.

Professor Lee Chack Fan graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering in 1968, and a Master’s
degree in 1970. He received his Doctor of Philosophy degree from
the University of Western Ontario in 1972, in the field of geotechnical
engineering.

Ms. Chen Jianhua, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 October 2022. She is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
She is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Chen Jian Hua has vast experience in the furniture and household
business. Ms. Chen Jianhua has held management positions in
Nantong Eastern Yisidun Furniture Co., Ltd.* (F3@R A FHBER AR
[R & &) since 2000, during which she has accumulated experience
and gained knowledge in operations and sales and marketing fields.
Ms. Chen Jianhua specializes in franchising operations and has
represented various furniture brands in the PRC. She has gained deep
knowledge and understanding in retail distribution and business

management and valuable insight in the furniture industry.

*  For identification purpose only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

ESEReNEEEERE (E)

Professor Sit Wing Hang, Alfred, G.B.S., J.P., aged 62, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 5 July 2023.
He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board. He is also a member of each of the Audit

Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Professor Sit Wing Hang, Alfred joined the Hong Kong Government in
1984 and was promoted to the Director of Electrical and Mechanical
Services and Electrical & Mechanical Services Trading Fund General
Manager in 2017. He was in charge of electrical and mechanical
safety and energy efficiency and preservation and the provision
of engineering services for electrical and mechanical assets of the
Hong Kong Government. He served as Secretary for Innovation and
Technology of the Hong Kong Government from April 2020 to 30
June 2022. Professor Sit was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Medal
and was appointed as a Justice of the Peace by the Hong Kong

Government.

Professor Sit is currently an Adjunct Professor of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is currently also the Chief Executive and
Secretary of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Senior
Advisor to the President and Vice-Chancellor of Hong Kong Baptist

University.

Professor Sit is an electrical engineer by profession and has over 40
years of experience in public administration. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He was the President of the
Hong Kong Institution of Facility Management and Chairman of the

Biomedical Division of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEBET R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Throughout the Reporting Period, market demand has not fully
returned to pre-pandemic levels. Additionally, the impact of US tariffs
on our products and the cautious ordering habits of downstream
customers continued to affect overall revenue. Despite facing dynamic
market environment and operational challenges, the Group remained
resilient and committed to overcoming these obstacles. With a
determined outlook, it has been steadily returning to the right track

of growth and progress.

The Group capitalized on the opportunities arising from the recovery
of global economic activities and took several strategic measures to
strengthen its operating performance. These initiatives encompassed
the exploration of new markets, securing additional orders from
existing customers through innovative product designs, and fostering

continuous innovation across their product lines.

Recognizing the evolving market dynamics, the group proactively
identified and pursued new market segments to expand its customer
base. It further expanded into the US and Europe markets covering
United Kingdom, France, Norway, Spain and Ireland. By closely
collaborating with existing customers and increasing marketing efforts
in the target markets, the Group gained valuable insights into the
evolving needs to develop a series of innovative sofa products that
addressed specific customer requirements, thereby solidifying their

position as a trusted partner for the customers.

The Group’s total revenue increased by 42.4%, which was mainly
attributed to the increase in orders from US market and Europe,
which contributed to 32.2% and 26.6% of total revenue respectively.
PRC market including Hong Kong contributed to 35.1% of total
revenue. Due to the increased revenue contribution and the stringent
cost control measures, the net loss of the Group was narrowed
down by 87.1% when compared with year 2022, and amounted
to approximately RMB26.1 million (2022: approximately RMB202.6

million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

Business development in the U.S. and Europe

The U.S. and Europe remained as our major markets. Rebuilding
customer confidence was not only crucial but also a significant
accomplishment of our company’s team efforts in these markets
throughout the year. We have actively worked towards nurturing
relationships with key customers, aiming to regain their confidence

and establish a stable cooperation.

During the year, the Group continued to showcase its exceptional
furniture and sofas at the High Point Market in the United States,
the largest home furnishings industry trade show. It has also been
reassuring the customers in the U.K. that the factory in PRC has

restored to normal operation after the temporary suspension in 2022.

By implementing effective communication strategies, providing
attentive customer service, along with a well-established supply chain
and delivery of high-quality products, we have successfully rebuilt
trust, forged stronger connections, resulting in a resurgence of new

orders.

Retail business development in China and Hong
Kong

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of one flagship
showroom and one self-operated retail store in Mainland China. In
Hong Kong, the Group had a total of five self-operated retail stores
in Sha Tin, Tsuen Wan, Kowloon Bay, Tseung Kwan O and Tai Kok
Tsui, respectively and eight points of consignment sales in Tuen Mun,
Kowloon Bay, Kwun Tong, Yuen Long, Wan Chai, Tsuen Wan, Fo
Tan and Lai Chi Kok. The Group also introduced auxiliary decoration
services to establish one-stop services including decoration and
furniture setting, instilling its stylish home design concept into the

Hong Kong market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year of 2023, the principal business activities of the Group
comprise the manufacturing and sales of sofas, sofa covers and other
furniture products.

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB188.0 million (2022: approximately RMB132.0 million),
representing an increase of approximately 42.4% as compared with
last year, which was mainly due to the overall improvement in global
containment of COVID-19 pandemic, widespread vaccination efforts,
and the subsequent economic recovery, which led to an increased
demand for furniture products. Consequently, the Group achieved
substantial improvements in operating results compared with the
same period last year.

The net loss of the Group amounted to approximately RMB26.1
million during the year, representing a decrease of approximately
87.1% as compared with the net loss of RMB202.6 million in last
year. The decrease in net loss were mainly attributable to the gain
on restructuring approximately RMB92.4 million. If excluding the
one-off gain on restructuring, the net loss would decreased by
approximately 41.5% from approximately RMB202.6 million in 2022
to approximately RMB118.5 million in 2023.

The Company’s basic and diluted loss per ordinary share was
approximately RMB0.92 cents for the year of 2023 (2022: loss
per ordinary share RMB13.99 cents) based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately RMB24.7 million (2022: loss for the year RMB199.7
million), and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,674,188,000 for the year of 2023 (2022: 1,427,475,671).

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 8.8% from
approximately RMB130.0 million in 2022 to approximately RMB118.5
million in 2023, which was primarily due to the decrease in the direct

labour cost and the increase in discount given by the supplier.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit for the year was approximately RMB69.5
million (2022: approximately RMB2.0 million), representing an
increase of approximately 3,375% as compared with last year.
The gross profit margin increased from 1.5% in 2022 to 37.0% in
2023. This increase is primarily attributable to the recovery of export
business and resumption of manufacturing activities following the

temporary suspension of the factories in PRC during 2022.

Other income and gains, net and gain on debt
restructuring

The other income and gains, net and gain on debt restructuring of
the Group increased from approximately RMB34.6 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB95.4 million in 2023. Such increase was primarily
due to the gain on debt restructuring and gain on termination of
lease in 2023.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 34.2% from approximately RMB36.3 million in 2022
to approximately RMB48.7 million in 2023. Such increase was
primarily due to the increase in marketing and promotion expenses.
In particular, there was an increase in the expenditure of expanding
and strengthening our sales channels network in our major markets
after the resumption of manufacturing activities in the PRC during the
2023.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 57.0% from approximately RMB150.8 million in 2022
to approximately RMB64.9 million in 2023, which was primarily
attributed to the one-off redundancy payment due to the suspension
of the Group in PRC and administrator fees of restructuring plan in
2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 86.7%
from approximately RMB7.5 million in 2022 to approximately
RMB14.0 million in 2023, which was primarily due to the increase in

interest on bank and other borrowings.

Income tax credit

The income tax credit of the Group was approximately RMBO.1 million
in 2023 (2022: approximately RMBO0.8 million). The income tax credit
in 2023 was mainly attributable to the over-provision in prior year.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately RMB163.2 million,
of which RMB67.5 million were shareholder loan with unsecured
and repayable within one year or on demand. The bank and other
borrowings’ interest rates ranged between 5.0% to 8.0% per annum.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total debts (comprised of
amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities, convertible loan
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company as at the end of the year
and multiplied by 100%. The gearing ratio of the Group was not
applicable as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Capital commitments
The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 December
2023 and 2022.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB17.4 million (2022: approximately RMB33.1 million) as at 31
December 2023, primarily due to the increase in allowance for
expected credit losses from approximately RMB19.0 million in 2022 to
approximately RMB35.4 million in 2023.

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB46.1 million (2022: approximately RMB143.9 million) as at
31 December 2023, primarily due to the debt reduction after the
completion of restructuring proposal during 2023.

Foreign exchange exposure

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from the Group’s operations are generally settled
in RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollar against
RMB could adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During
2023, the Group did not experience any material difficulties or
impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange
fluctuation. The Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange
rate risk arising from its existing operations and new investments in
the future. The Group will further implement the necessary hedging
arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk if and
when appropriate.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Pursuant to a stock purchase agreement dated 16 May 2023, the
Company has subscribed for 423 shares of Series Angel Preferred
Stock in Charme Inc. for the consideration of US$1,600,000. Upon
completion, the Company holds 15.9804% of the shares in Charme
Inc.. Charme Inc. is principally engaged in developing and sales of
adjustable beds and medical beds to overseas markets. For more
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 16 May
2023 and 7 July 2023. Save as disclosed above, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December

2023 save as those disclosed in this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no plan authorised by the Board for material investments

or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB24,728,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023 and as at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB111,024,000
and RMB152,531,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business. The directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements based on going concern on the
assumptions and measures that:

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and financial
position of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken to
mitigate the liquidity position and to improve the Group's financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the followings:

(i) The substantial shareholder of the Company, Mr. Tse Kam
Pang, has provided to the Company an unsecured loan facility
in the principal amount of up to HK$200,000,000 to enable
the Group to continue as a going concern and to settle its
liabilities as and when they fall due. For further details please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated on 5 May 2023.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had unutilised loan
facility amounting to approximately HK$125.9 million;

BRKE

BrAS 3RS FTIREE & SN - 7R 2023412 A 31
A AEBEWEFBIMENEE -

EXRERENEERARKE

=
RAREEH  SF@TESEETEX
WESIEINE R EERIFTE] -

HE2023F12A31BLEFE  ~%EE
EEARARABEBABEEBEEOARE
24,728,0007C © MR 20234 128318 -
AEEBNRBDEEFEREETED
B 49 A A R 111,024,000 7 K A R
152,531,0007C ° ZEMRABRFEEAT
FHHREZ  AEEAEECRBELEET
EEEREM - At - NEERREEER
HAREBBRTEHEEERBERLS
& BEFENUTRERER  DIRFE
(R BB BT S BRS¢

ERUIEBR  AARNEZEEEZEAR
KERKHREE S R BRI R ER]
RESKR - NHEAKERE B RN
BEREFEQEELEEENF - DRI
ETrrEI RERAREREDE BN KK
EAKEMH BN - BIRESRR T
BIF -

(i) AAREEREH B ELLE - MA
A AR AN € # i = 4$200,000,000
BITHERRERRE  UEARE
B BB W E B B R
B o FERE2HA AR A A2023
F5ASAM NS - #E2023F124
318 - AEBABAERBELN A
125.98 8%

RARBIERABRE AT 2023 F£3f 23



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

(ii) The Group will take steps to obtain external funding in order
to improve the working capital and liquidity and cash flow
position of the Group;

(iii) The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls with an
aim to attain positive cash flows from operations;

(iv) The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment schedules
with certain of its debtors and endeavoring to request them
to repay the trade receivables, other receivables and amounts
due from related companies in accordance with the repayment
schedules to be agreed with them; and

(v) The Group has actively negotiated with stakeholders for
the purpose of obtaining further financing when necessary,
including but not limited to shareholder’s loan, equity
financing, bank borrowing and issuance of new convertible

bonds to improve the liquidity of the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due within twelve months from the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above plans
and measures are in progress, material uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the Group's ability
to meet its future working capital and financing requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need
to be realised other than at the amounts at which they are currently
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position. The effect
of these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

While the above indicates that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, the Company understands that the opinion of the

Company’s auditor is not modified in respect of this matter.

The views of the management and the audit
committee on the material uncertainty opinion
relating to going concern

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including
(i) the Group succeeding in taking measures to tighten cost control;
(ii) the Directors succeeding in strengthening the capital base of the
Company including but not limited to, seeking new investment and
business opportunities; (iii) the shareholder of the Company, Century
Icon Holdings Limited, providing financial support to the Group to
enable the Group to continue as a going concern and to settle its
liabilities as and when they fall due; and (iv) the Group succeeding in
re-negotiating the repayment schedules with certain of its debtors and
endeavouring to request them to repay the trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies in accordance
with the repayment schedules agreed with them. Taking into account
the above assumptions, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve months
from 31 December 2023. The Directors will continue to negotiate
with banks and other financiers, financial institutions and potentially
interested investors with the view to obtaining new funding whether
by way of equity or debt financing to improve the Company’s
financial position and/or liquidity, with the objective of removing the

material uncertainty on going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEE W R 2 (&)

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the
key audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management’s judgements regarding
the going concern basis of the financial statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group believes that talent is the basis
for long-term development of enterprises. The Group targets to
enhance its corporate image through building up and solidifying the
Company’s brand name. With the Five Hearts of Morris: ambition,
confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as core values,
the Group targets to establish a distinctive corporate culture. Through
regular trainings and promotion of its corporate culture, the Group
provides its staff with opportunities for personal growth and enhances
the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group. In addition,
the Group provides its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and various benefits in line with industry practice. At the
same time, the Group strives to create a good working environment,
and cultivates teamwork spirit among employees. The Group carries
out performance evaluation quarterly, and conducts “Morris Artisans”
evaluations, aiming at elevating the morale of the Group'’s technicians.
The Group regularly reviews human resources policies to ensure that
the policies align with market practice and comply with regulatory
requirements. As of 31 December 2023, the Group employed 338
employees (31 December 2022: 350 employees). The total annual
salary and related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for 2023
were approximately RMB53.9 million (2022: RMB111.5 million).

The Company operates a share option scheme which allows the
Company to grant options to eligible persons as rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme has been
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the share
option scheme during the period from 12 January 2017, the date on
which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Date”), up to 31 December 2023 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2023 and the date of this report.

26 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REZBES  BELZBEEEEECDE
TR HEEEEBEE2IIMBRHE RE
ERHARL CAREZER - KR
RREZFRZEANEEEB2IZER
& BERZECREEEEYERMBER
RZFFHBICEEEZ HER -

ANERERE

AEBERERAANT REERBEEN
At - AEEREBEZLRERBARRMN
MBETEIZREDELR - UEBRL
L ED RO B REOMMERZL
BE AEEHEREITRENEEX
b o FREDSEXCEEEE I RHEE -
AEEBREETRBEAKRKS - Wi
BESBHAEENEBER - i AEH
REEERHAEFFNINFEFEARET
EEO—HHSERN - AR - AEEH
NEERFHIERE  WEREE 2HEE
BEIE o REBIRFEEITEBGT
B WETIRAERJFEESE - HEA
EEFEMAENLIR - REETHEZA
NERBER - ERB BBERETISE
—HRFFEETHE - BE2023F12HA31
B KEBEEM3IB8LEE (20225124
31H : 350%1E8) - 2023FMFH S BER
HERABE(TREESHFIOAAR
¥&53.9F BIL(20224F - ARBI115EE
TT) °

RATRRERETE - BARAMEE
BATRHBEREELAEEASEIELT
BrE 2R - FERRAEATEIR2016F12 A 10H
BEARDNBER - A REH20179F1A812H
(BPRE R EE X Fr Em BER(T L AEA]))
FEE2023412 A31 B IFEMI EAR IR EE R
RERTEIRL - TS ERE - M
REZ2023F 128431 B RAREHE - B
A& RESHEIIE TR A i R T TR O RE AR o



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
TERRBRRTRERER

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified by
the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
so as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable) to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. As at 31

December 2023, the Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly operates in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from its operations are generally settled in RMB. As
a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could
adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During 2023, the
Group did not experience any material difficulties or impacts on its
operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk
arising from its existing operations and new investments in the future.
The Group will further implement the necessary hedging arrangement
to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk when and if

appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
FEREBEAEERE (&)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taking
into account the customer’s payment history and current ability to
pay, any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to four months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue balances where
there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables
due from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted
for approximately 54.7% and 60.5% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 respectively. The credit
risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will continue
to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group
monitors the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts
the portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
FERBETEERE (&)

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from the U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on the
U.S. economy. The Group's profitability and business growth are
affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political instability.
Moreover, the change of trade policies of the United States with
China in recent years have brought adverse impact to the business
of the Group. It remains uncertain how Sino-US trade policies will
develop since the inauguration of the new US administration in
January 2021.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade
policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The principle of the Company’s
corporate governance is to promote effective internal control and
risk management measures, uphold a high standard of ethics,
transparency, responsibility and integrity in all aspects, and to ensure
that its affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Company
to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value
and formulate its business strategies and policies. The Board has
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and is
satisfied that save as disclosed below, the Company has complied
with all code provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable,
the recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) set out in Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) during 2023 and up to the date of this report.

Code Provision D.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that management should provide members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to
enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. Although
the management of the Company did not provide a regular monthly
update to the members of the Board, the management keeps
providing information and updates to the members of the Board as

and when appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRE (F)

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing

expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of
the Company for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry with its incumbent Directors regarding
compliance with the Model Code during the Reporting Period, and
they all confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities

transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The
Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group'’s businesses and
operations. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
Board delegates to the management the daily operations of the Group
under the directions set out by the management and the Board. The
Board has established various committees and has delegated to the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board Committees”)
various duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles

in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall meet
at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be held
when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely access
to information of the Group. There is a procedure for Directors to
seek independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by

them at the expense of the Company, as appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEREEHE (F)

Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in the
agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company
secretary with details of the decisions reached, any concerns raised
and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final versions of Board
minutes are sent to the Directors for their information and records.
The draft minutes are sent to all Directors within a reasonable time
after each meeting for their comments before being formally signed.
The signed minutes are kept in safe custody by the company secretary
and are available for inspection by the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability has

been arranged by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Pang (Chairman)
Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZOU Gebing (resigned on 8 January 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Hok Kan
Ms. WU Xiangfei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent

Prof. LEE Chack Fan

Ms. CHEN lJianhua

Prof. SIT Wing Hang, Alfred (appointed on 5 July 2023)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors

and Senior Management” on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRE (F)

During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the individual MFHREHIK @ KFEZFLESHBEIOT
Directors at the meetings is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend during the Reporting Period
REBEHBLE/ FERERENEERY

Remuneration ~ Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
Name of Director BEpg ¥WzEe  REZEE  BLZEE Bz REAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Tse Kam Pang Bl pitis NATEF NATEF NATEE 5/5 1/1
Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai EFREE NATER NIANER NATER 5/5 11
Mr. Zou Gebing PrRELE
(resigned on 8 January 2024) (20241 A8EEHT) NATEE NATER NATEE 5/5 111
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Tse Hok Kan AEHLE NATER NATER NATER 5/5 n
Ms. Wu Xiangfei SRzt NATER NIATER NANER 5/5 17
Independent non-executive Directors B FH1TES
Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent Baptt 1 22 33 5/5 1/1
Prof. Lee Chack Fan FRAYR 0 0 33 5/5 li
Ms. Chen Jianhua Rt 0 0 33 5/5 n
Prof. Sit Wing Hang Alfred BXEYE
(appointed on 5 July 2023) (R202357 A5REZRR) 0/0* 0/0* 11 N 0/0*
* No meeting was held during the Directors’ tenure of office. o ZEFTHAWARBITEAEE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEREEHE (F)

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) have been appointed for a specific term of three years and
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in

accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Independence of independent non-executive
directors

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to
provide their independent and objective views. In compliance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed at least three independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the
independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise

as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group.
The Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the

Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, save as disclosed under
the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from all the independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRE (F)

Prof. Sit Wing Hang, Alfred was appointed on 5 July 2023. Prof. Sit
will retire and offer himself for re-election as an independent non-
executive Director, Mr. Tse Kam Pang and Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai will
retire and offer himself for re-election as an executive Director and
Mr. Tse Hok Kan will retire and offer himself for re-election as a non-
executive Director of the Company at the coming annual general
meeting of the Company held on 21 June 2024. Please refer to
“Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 30 to 52 of this report

for further details.

Board independence

The Company recognizes the Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The Board has
established mechanism to ensure independent views and input from

any Director.

The governance framework and the following mechanisms are
reviewed annually by the Board, through its Nomination Committee,

to ensure their effectiveness:

1. Four out of the eight Directors are Independent Non-Executive
Directors, which meets the requirements of the Listing Rules
that the Board must have at least three independent non-
executive Directors and must appoint independent non-

executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

2. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence,
qualification and time commitment of a candidate who is
nominated to be a new independent non-executive Director
before appointment and also the continued independence of
existing Independent non-executive Directors and their time
commitments annually. On an annual basis, all independent
non-executive Directors are required to confirm in writing their
compliance of independence requirements pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and to disclose the number of nature of
offices held by them in public companies or organizations and

other significant commitments.
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External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors and/or committee of
the Board as prescribed in the terms of reference of such
committees.

All Directors are encouraged to express freely and their
independent views and constructive challenges during the

Board/Board Committee meetings.

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will generally be granted to independent non-
executive Directors.

A Director (including independent non-executive Director) who
has a material interest in a contract, arrangement or other
proposal shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any

Board resolution approving the same.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the above

mechanism(s) to ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board for the year ended 31 December 2023 and is satisfied that
such mechanisms remain to be effective.

36

MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REEHNEEN HEEGLZEGR
RBENRE - A EFEESRIND
BUEEXER -

BEMEESREESE EEEZE
CeRPRERRERE 2B LB
TR MEDRE

BYFHITEE RIGEFRERR
HEEY BTN o

EAH  ZHREMEZTHREEK
NEMmER(BRBIYIFNTES) -
TRAMEZFERNTAESTSR
EESPE T NNIN 2

EEQRS T LABEINERER - g
REESRMESEZ2023F12A3181t
FEMNBILERMER - WHERILE#
SR B K o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRE (F)

Directors’ training

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
the Company arranges for and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to help
ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Directors have
provided to the Company their record of continuous professional
development training, and they have participated in training activities

in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for
listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial

reporting; and
3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

Dividend policy

On 10 December 2018, the Company adopted a new dividend policy
that may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that the Group records a profit after tax and
that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Company intends to pay out
an annual dividend payment at a payout ratio of not less than 30%
of the Group’s consolidated net profit after tax for the then financial
year after taking into consideration of certain factors stated in the

Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018.
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Board diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”)

The Company adopted a policy of having a diversity in the
composition of Board members so as to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits

of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and, from time to time, review the Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of eight Directors, of
which two Directors are female. The Board values gender diversity
is mindful of the objectives for the factors as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy for assessing the candidacy of the Board members
and will ensure that any successors to the Board shall follow the
Board Diversity Policy and that gender diversity will be achieved in
respect of the Board. The Board considers that the Board is sufficiently
diverse and will regularly review diversity and consider implementing
measurable objective where appropriate. Similar considerations will
also be in place to assess the candidacy of the senior management
team from time to time.

The Group has also taken, and continues to take, steps to promote
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. The male to female ratio in
the workforce of the Group including senior management as at
31 December 2023 is approximately 3:2 which is in line with the
gender ratio in the industry in which the Group operates. The Group
considers a number of factor when hiring employees including
gender, age, cultural and education background, qualification,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Board considers that the gender diversity in workforce

(including senior management) is currently achieved.
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Nomination policy

The Board is responsible for selection and appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Policy of the Board (the “Nomination Policy”)
sets out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship with
a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors in
making nominations, including but not limited to the skills and
experience of the candidate, the commitment that the candidate
is expected to devote to the Board and the competence of the
candidate in satisfying relevant legal and regulatory requirements. The
Company adopted the Diversity Policy as stated in the previous section
for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs. The candidate to be nominated as
an INED must satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination
Committee may propose to the Board a candidate recommended
or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company as a
nominee for election to the Board. On making recommendation, the
Nomination Committee may submit the candidate’s personal profile to
the Board for consideration. The Board may appoint the candidate(s) as
director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an addition to the Board or
recommend such candidate to shareholders for election or re-election

(where appropriate) at the general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

All members of each Board Committee are independent non-

executive Directors.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.
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Members of the Audit Committee are Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent
(Chairman), Ms. Chen lJianhua, Prof. Lee Chack Fan and Prof. Alfred

Sit Wing Hang. They are all independent non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited
financial statements for 2023 with recommendations to the Board
for approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditors covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial
reporting matters.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management and on other employee benefit
arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, Ms. Chen
Jianhua, Prof. Lee Chack Fan and Prof. Alfred Sit Wing Hang. Prof.
Kwan Pun Fong Vincent currently serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the
Directors and senior management of the Company, and reviewed and
recommended to the Board the remuneration policy and structure

relating to the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Remuneration policy

The principles of the Group’s remuneration policy:

1. were applied to all Directors and senior management of the
Group for the Year and, so far as practicable, shall be applied to

them for subsequent years;

2. were sufficiently flexible taking into account future changes
in the Company’s business environment and remuneration

practice;

3. allowed remuneration arrangement to be designed to support
the business strategy of the Group and to align with the

interests of the Group's shareholders; and

4. aimed at setting appropriate reward levels to reflect the
competitiveness in the market in which comparable companies
and the Group had been operating during the Year so as to

retain individuals with outstanding performance.

The remuneration package of each executive Director and senior

management of the Group during the Year was structured to include:

(@ an appropriate rate of base compensation for the job of each
Executive Director and senior management of the Group;

(b)  competitive benefit programs; and

(c) sets of performance measures and targets for performance-
related annual and long-term incentive plans based on the
appropriate independent advice and/or an assessment of the
interests of shareholders of the Company and taking into
account an appropriate balance of risk and reward for the

Directors and other participants.
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The remuneration for the Directors and senior management comprises
basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus. Details of
the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2022 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the Directors, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

to take up references and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, Ms. Chen
Jianhua, Prof. Lee Chack Fan and Prof. Alfred Sit Wing Hang. Prof.
Kwan Pun Fong Vincent currently serves as the chairman of the

Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessary.

Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of
the Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the

benefits of diversity of Board members.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(i)  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)

applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance

report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During 2023, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:

AN
vl

A% BRI B

120234 - ANEBEIMNEZBET L E PR M
RIS ERES A, TRES BB RINT :

2023
20234
RMB’000
AR¥T
Audit and audit related services EET M E T IR RS 1,466
Non-audit services: Taxation and other FIEBETARTS « FIE R A B AR
professional services -
1,466
COMPANY SECRETARY NAEIME
The company secretary is responsible for handling company secretarial ATMEBERBEATWEET - XA T

matters. The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Lam Hoi Lun.
Mr. Lam has received no less than 15 hours of professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounting department,
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been
adopted. Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and
applied consistently. The appropriateness of the preparation of the
Company's consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying assumptions as
detailed in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which in
particular include: (i) cost control tightening measures; (ii) alternatives
to strengthen the capital base; (iii) financial support from the ultimate
holding company; and (iv) re-negotiation with debtors. However,
the eventual outcome of the plans and measures described above
are inherently uncertain. The conditions stated in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, including the net loss, net current
liabilities, net liabilities, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities, convertible loan, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group, indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubts about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
included in the Report of the Independent Auditors on pages 83 to 94

of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate and effective. The Group adopts a risk management system
which manages the risk associated with its business and operations.

The system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going

monitor the residual risks.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is

compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The COSO

framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial

reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control

Environment:

Risk Assessment:

Control Activities:

Information and

Communication:

Monitoring:

A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal

control across the Group.

A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how

risks should be managed.

Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Internal and external communication to provide
the Group with the information needed to carry

out day-to-day controls.

Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is

present and functioning.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent adviser with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group in order to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The review plan has been
approved by the Board and the Audit Committee. The Board and the
Audit Committee had also reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programs of the external independent
adviser and considered they are adequate and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the Listing
Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRE (F)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure

requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their

obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group

enters into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no less

exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.

The Board and the Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report

and believes that the existing systems are adequate and effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TEREEHE (F)

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and the Listing
Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting ("AGM")
of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as determined
by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, is called an
extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at general meeting

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the Board
will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal may be

included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREEHRE (F)

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the board

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to

enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are set

out below:

Name: Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai

Telephone: (852) 2106 3288

Email: Anthony.chong@morrishome.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following
correspondence address and addressing to the Board:

Address: No. 52, Fu Hang Road, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of dividend to Tricor

Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in

Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are set

out below:

Address: 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EREREHE (E)

Communication with shareholders

Under its shareholders’ communication policy, the Board and senior
management maintain a continuing dialogue with the Shareholders
and investors through various channels including the Company’s AGM
to answer Shareholders’ questions. The chairman and other members
of the Board are present at the AGM. The annual report and AGM
circular is distributed to all the Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the AGM.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Company’s shareholders’ communication policy including steps taken
at the general meetings the handling of queries received (if any) and
the multiple channels of communication and engagement in place,
and considered the Company'’s shareholders’ communication policy
has been properly implemented during the year and under review and
is effective.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of

transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated articles

of association on the Listing Date.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company for 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators during
2023 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 5, pages 6 to 8 and pages 17 to 26 respectively of this
annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the section headed “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 27 to 29 of this annual report. The content is

part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in the PRC,
the Group is subject to various environmental laws and regulations
set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal governments.
Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations. During 2023, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the operations of the Group. Further, any changes in applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant

employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules will
be published on the Investor Relations section of the Company’s
(http://www.morrishome.com.hk/) and the Stock Exchange’s
(https://www.hkexnews.hk/) websites at the same time as the

publication of the Company’s annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BEEERE(E)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
95 to 96 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023. As at the date of this annual report,
the Board was not aware that any shareholders of the Company had

waived or agreed to any arrangement to waive dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during 2023 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the

Company’s financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any
of the listed securities of the Company during 2023.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

EEEHREGE)

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds after deducting all relevant costs and expenses of
the subscription of 1,300,000,000 shares by Century Icon Holdings
Limited and the placing of 250,000,000 shares to placees completed

on 10 October 2022 were approximately HK$105.4 million (the

“Subscription and Placing”). The details of the proposed use of net

proceeds and the actual use of proceeds during the Reporting Period

are as follows:

PSR R &

A B Century Icon Holdings Limited 2 &
1,300,000,000 A% A% 15 & A # B2 A BL &
250,000,000k B FIE([ RBREE
B |)ER2022F10A10B=/K © 5
FIEFEE (MR BERBEKR AR AR
105,400,000/ 7T ° & BAfE PSR I8 358
ERARRERFERABRAOT -

Net proceeds
Unutilised utilised  Netproceeds  Unutilised
Revised proceeds  during the utilised proceeds
Allocation allocation asat  yearended up to asat
ofthenet  of the net 1January ~ 31December  31December  31December  Expected
proceeds proceeds 2023 2023 2023 2023 timeline
REZAN3E
R2023% 12A318 R20238 R2023§
1A1R L AN 12838
ARFE  FERERE HABA EHAN 28RN ABAN
Proposed use of proceeds  FIEFERERE SERE AgIIR fiemE  MEERE AENERE fiesE  REREX
(HK$ milion) ~ (HK$ milion) ~ (HK$ milion) ~ (HKS million) ~ (HK§ million)  (HKS million)
(RE#n) (RB%n) (RE%n) (RBAR) (AEER) (FEén)
Repayment of indebtedness ~ BEEH
- repayment of indebtedness  ~REEAERE
under the Restructuring 435 70.1 - - 70.1 - -
- partial repayment of the - BAEETHRER
overdue amount under the EpNiga ki
Convertible Loan 5.5 208 85 85 208 - -
Replenishment of general fr-heEES
working capital 54 145 - = 145 = =
Total o 1054 1054 85 85 1054 =

All the net proceeds from the Subscription and Placing have been fully
utilized as at 31 December 2023.

7R2023F12A310 - REEEEEE M
BB HBEFELERHIA -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BEEERE(E)

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 21 December 2022, the Company (as borrower) and International
Finance Corporation (“IFC") (as lender), Mr. Zou Gebing (as guarantor)
and other parties entered into the Amendment Agreement to amend
the principal terms and conditions of the Convertible Loan under a
convertible loan agreement dated 5 January 2018 (“Convertible
Loan Agreement”). Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement, the
amount of default interests due and payable by the Company to IFC
pursuant to the Convertible Loan Agreement for the period starting
from 2 August 2022 (inclusive) and ending on 15 September 2022
(exclusive) is HK$207,667.24. The amount of redemption premium
due and payable by the Company to IFC pursuant to the Convertible
Loan Agreement as of the date of the Amendment Agreement
is HK$2,191,768.50. The outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Loan as of 29 September 2022 is HK$81,439,030.80 and
the amount of due but unpaid jeopardy expenses as of 29 August
2022 in connection with the Convertible Loan is US$92,383.

Under the Amendment Agreement, upon the occurrence of any of

the following:

(i)  atany time and for any reason, Mr. Tse Kam Pang (&35 5) (“Mr.
Tse”) and Mr. Zou Gebing (as a whole) cease to directly or
indirectly own at least 51%, of both the economic and voting
interests in the Company’s share capital (determined on a fully
diluted basis),

(i) any person or group other than Mr. Zou Gebing shall have
obtained the power (whether or not exercised) to elect a
majority of the board of directors of Morris Capital, or any
person or group other than Mr. Tse shall have obtained the
power (whether or not exercised) to elect a majority of the

board of directors of Century Icon Holdings Limited,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE A

(i) any person or group other than Century Icon Holdings Limited
and the Morris Capital (as a whole) shall have obtained the
power (whether or not exercised) to elect a majority of the
Board,

(iv)  with effect from the closing of the general offer arising from
the completion of the Share Subscription, the Board shall cease

to consist of a majority of continuing directors or

(v) a "change of control” or similar event shall occur as provided in
any other loan or preferred stock documentation relating to the

Company.

IFC may serve a written notice (a “Prepayment Notice”) on the
Company requiring the Company to prepay any portion or all of the
outstanding Convertible Loan in full within 10 days of the date of
the Prepayment Notice under the Convertible Loan Agreement (as

amended by the Amendment Agreement).

Further details of the Facilities are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 January 2018, 24 January 2018, 10 October
2019 and 30 December 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (31 December 2022: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Five year financial summary are set in the section headed “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 232 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BEEERE(E)

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2023 and up to the date of this annual report

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Pang (Chairman)
Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZOU Gebing (resigned on 8 January 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Hok Kan
Ms. WU Xiangfei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent

Prof. LEE Chack Fan

Ms. CHEN lJianhua

Prof. SIT Wing Hang, Alfred (appointed on 5 July 2023)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE A

In accordance with paragraph 83(3) of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and

shall then be eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to paragraph 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election for the forthcoming year. According to paragraph 84(2) of
the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining which particular
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
Details of the re-electing directors at the forthcoming AGM will be set
out in the Company'’s circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have subsisting service agreements with
the Company which is not determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). Save as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements, there were no other emoluments, pension and any
compensation arrangements for the Directors and past Directors as
are specified on section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap 32).

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a fixed term of three years commencing from 9 November 2022
(which shall continue for further successive periods until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ prior written notice). They
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the

Company at least once every three years and until terminated.
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No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there were no
changes in Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” and the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
or a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2023 or at any time
during 2023.
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EEg

wE(E)

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of each

Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying

Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and

8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which

they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO),

or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be

entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,

SN

M2023F 128318 ' ARFIZSEENTE
TTEA BRAR RS H 485 A B (R F
H R EE GBI EXVIR T REE ) ARD
HERD REESREEREEF AR
&I EEXVER S 7 280 BRZE 1B A &) M Bk
AT (BIERIRE H KBS 16018 B &S
EWRAIWEEREBNOERIOXE ) R
BEE MG GG 35216 B 5 A X IRt
B ERERETAUNEZ RAREH

pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below: FnR
(i) The Company (i) ZA&2QF
Number of Approximate
Name of Director/ securities percentage of
chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
EHEA
ES BRTHRABHA REEME G HRESNE ST
Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2) Interest of controlled 666,500,000 shares (L) 24.24%
corporation
FrEE k4 (HE2) RIEEEES 666,500,000/%(L)
Ms. Wu Xiangfei (Note 2) Interest of spouse 666,500,000 shares (L) 24.24%
S £ (f2) [ 666,500,000/%(L)
Mr. Tse Kam Pang (Note 3) Interest of controlled 1,300,038,000 shares (L) 47.27%
corporation
ait el o A4 (BEE3) RipLEER 1,300,038,0008%(L)
Notes: Bt e

1.

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by Mr.
Zou Gebing and as to 15% of its share by Ms. Zou Gebing's spouse, Ms.
Wu Xiangfei. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei will
therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number of
Shares in which Morris Capital is interested.

Century Icon Holdings Limited (“Century Icon”) is owned as to 100% by
Mr. Tse Kam Pang. Under the SFO, Mr. Tse Kam Pang will therefore be
deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number of shares in which
Century Icon is interested.

1. FRILIRKRZBALRZERD L

P
=

2. REAEAERAR(RBEER]) AFHE
ESREHB8% BPBRELEZRB
BARZTHEE15% - BIEZSHERNE
%A - BRELERBARLZ KA
WRARWEERRERERN RSN
RIS E RDPHEAER °

3. Century Icon Holdings Limited([ Century
lcon |) BF IS SE EHEH 100% © ARIEE
7 M ERE RG] - i 87 16 5 A 5 B Ik 4 AR
R E ER Century Icon A HHERS
MRIEEE RO P HEARER -

.
RAR
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EEE®REE)
(ii) Morris Capital (i) RREX
Number of Approximate
securities percentage of
Name of director/chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
BE5HE
EE BRTBABHE BEME (BtEE1) IERERNBED L
Mr. Zou Gebing Beneficial owner 85 shares of 85%
US$1 each (L)
MR ESAE BE=BA 85I AR E1E
1E TR (L)
Ms. Wu Xiangfei Beneficial owner 15 shares of 15%

US$1 each (L)

SRRzt BB A 15 TR EE
1E TR (L)
Note: PEE
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FRILIRKRZEBATRZERDOLT

A
B e

(iii) Century Icon (Note 1) (iii) Century Icon (FffsE1)
Number of Approximate
securities percentage of
Name of director/chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 2) shareholding
HEEE
EE BRTBABHE BEME (BtEE2) ERERNVBEDL
Mr. Tse Kam Pang Beneficial owner 100 shares of 100%

US$1 each (L)

i 58 M5 BEmEEA 100/ F AR HE B
1= TTRIRR G (L)
Notes: MtsE -
1. Century Icon holds 47.27% of the Shares. Therefore, Century Icon is the 1. Century lcon 3 & 47.27% B i 10 °

i+ Century lcon 22 AR A 7 &
=R -

holding company and an associated corporation of the Company.

2. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such shares. 2.

FRIIRKRZBALRZERO LT
o
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as at 31 December 2023.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

Br ESCRIEEE SN - FR2023412A318 ¢
RABEERETETHAEBERETAR
sk AR A B (RFE H MG &I EXY
HRAE T )RR ) AR D - ARRARR (D Sk ERERE
FIER AN ARIBES R EE 5F]583521&
FENE M ARBEESFABARA
AR R FTEERMEMEA - Rk » A7
MEMBER SRR -

R2023F12A31H U FAL(KRRQFE
Fok = BITIA BBRIN) B sk AR RE IR 1D
R A BN ARD BRI B 5 N B 65
F3I36EFENECMAER AR

Number of Percentage of
Shares/underlying Shares of
Shares held the Company
Shareholders Nature of interest (Note 1) in issue
FrisiReHERAEA AR RARE BT
R EEME (BFFEET) BB
Century Icon (Note 2) Beneficial owner 1,300,038,000 shares (L) 47.27% (L)
Century Icon(Ff7¥2) EmEAA 1,300,038,000% (L)
Morris Capital (Note 3) Beneficial owner 666,500,000 shares (L) 24.24% (L)
RBEAR(HIFE3) BEmEEA 666,500,0004% (L)
Notes: BREE -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FE[LRRZBATRZEROOTE ©
2. Century lcon is owned as to 100% by Mr. Tse Kam Pang. 2. Century lcon 3 F 8RHE 2 £ #H 100% ©
3. Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by Ms. Wu 3. REBRABIEEEEHEAS5% K E S AARZ
Xiangfei. THEAF15% ©
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any K _EXFT#EFEE S - 1202312 H318

other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/
or underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
December 2023.

AR BEEETEMA L (RATES
REBTRABRI) B - RRARAA
AW B/ AR BB ARIEE S
RS B XV E 2 B35 A A A B B
BAESAA -
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were

entered into or existed during 2023.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and makes contributions to social security
insurance funds (including pension plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance) and housing fund for its employees. The Remuneration
Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy
and remuneration package of the Directors and chief executive of
the Group, having regard to the Group’s overall operating results,
individual performance and comparable market practices.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date").

Purpose

The specific objectives of the Award Scheme are: 1. to provide the
Selected Participants (as defined below) with an opportunity to
acquire a proprietary interest in the Group; 2. to encourage and retain
such individuals to work with the Group; 3. to provide additional
incentive for Selected Participants (as defined below) to achieve
performance goals with a view to achieve the objectives of increasing
the value of the Group; and 4. to align the interests of the Selected
Participants (as defined below) directly to the Shareholders through
ownership of Shares, dividends and other distributions paid on Shares

and/or the increase in the value of the Shares.
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Participants

The Board may, from time to time, select and approve any individual,
being an employee, director, officer, consultant, agent, adviser or
business partner of any member of the Group or any Affiliate (including
nominees and/or trustees of any employee benefit trust established
for them) and any other person as determined by the Board who
the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”)
for participation in the Award Scheme and grant awards to such
Eligible Persons (the “Selected Participants”).

Scheme mandate

The Board will not make any further grant of award which will
result in the aggregate number of Shares underlying all grants made
pursuant to the Award Scheme (excluding award shares that have
been forfeited in accordance with the Award Scheme) to exceed
9.9% of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date
(i.e. 99,000,000 Shares, representing 3.6% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this report) (the “Scheme Mandate”)
without approval by a Board resolution. As at the date of this report,
awards in respect of 99,000,000 Shares may be granted pursuant to
the Scheme Mandate.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of award shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Participant under the Award Scheme in aggregate shall not
exceed 5.0% of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption
Date.

Exercise period

As the Award Scheme is a Award Scheme of the Company instead of
a share option scheme, the awards granted under the Award Scheme
are not subject to any exercise period nor are the Selected Participants

entitled to any exercise rights.

%/\%
E=gr MFEEBNIEEFGIARE
2ERBEREE LB REBEELERD

ERMEA (5 SRS EER K S ST RIR
NREMET - EBF - SABE - BA K
BA - BERRESEH(BERRFELN
EfEERAERNRBARHEFEA)
MEAEMAL)(TEERAL S HEER
R WRAEAEEBALE TEE ([
ESHE]) -

sTEIRE

EEST TS HEMETWENYER e
BIEREEMR TR BERBTRES
B A BT BIE R R R B2 ey
SEENI (7 ) BB ER AN B BRI B 31T MRR D 42
##99.9% » B199,000,000& M1 (& =&
WEHEARRAREEITARN3.6%) ([ 5HEIR
) BRIEKBESSRFEME - RAR
S HH - B42E)A /999,000,000 3% A%
AARRET B R -

BESEE R AER

RBEB IR TREESEENEBR
MHRHE /T T SEERMEHE SR
TTRD B EN5.0% °

TR

X RN 8l A AR R — IR R 8IM
B E BB IATRENER
PRALFAITERRS - EEDEE REE
ZHE TR

.
RAR

BIERARAR 2023 £3#; 65



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
BEEERE(E)

Vesting period

The Board or the committee of the Board or person(s) to which the
Board delegated its authority may, from time to time, while the
Award Scheme is in force and subject to all applicable laws, determine
such vesting criteria and conditions or periods for the award to be

vested pursuant to the Award Scheme.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the Eligible Persons upon

acceptance of awards granted under the Award Scheme.

The Board or the committee of the Board or person(s) to which the
Board delegated its authority may, from time to time, determine any

purchase price of shares awarded pursuant to the Award Scheme.

Term

The Award Scheme shall commence on the Adoption Date and
terminate upon the earlier of (i) the end of the period of ten (10)
years commencing on the Adoption Date; or (ii) such date of early

termination as determined by the Board.
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Movement and position

The number of awards that were available for grant under the

Scheme Mandate as at the beginning of the financial year ended 31
December 2023 was 99,000,000 Shares and as at the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 was 73,000,000 Shares.

FERIER

REZ2023F 12 A31THILHBEE Y &
HE2023FE12A31B I BEE K
RIEFTEIRERN FTREEEHE D55 A
99,000,0000% f515 52 73,000,000/ i% 15 ©

Closing
price of
Number of Number of shares
awards  Number of Number of Number Number awards  immediately
unvested awards  Fairvalue awards  ofawards  ofawards  unvested before the
asat granted  of awards vested  cancelled [apsed asat date on
1 January during atthe date during during during 31 December  which awards Purchase
Date of Grant 03 the year of grant the year the year the year 03 weregranted  Vesting Period Price
00
Mg it NANA BEAR
1818488 EhRE  RAREN FHER FhEE  ERiER 758 XREE
RHAS #heR LLLE DAEE #HEE #A8E L6 #BER  RMUTE  BRE BEER
(HKD) (HKD) (HKD)
(#7) () (7
Director i
CHONG Tsz Ngai 474 20ctober 2023 - 8,000,000 0.3 - - - 8,000,000 018 02/102023- 311212025 018
NBEI0F2E
Five highest paid individuals BERBEMAL  2Augwt 203 - 5,000,000 0.12 - - - 5,000,000 018 03/082023- 0210812024 018
NBE8RIA
Other grantees HHERA 20ctober 2023 - 8,000,000 0.3 - - - 5,000,000 018 02/102023- 311212025 018
NBEIF2A
2October 2023 - 5,000,000 013 - - o 5,000,000 018 02/102023- 311212025 0.18
NBEI0F2A
Notes: Bt
(1) For details of the basis of measurement for the fair value of the restricted share (1) FRERHZBRH KRG ZBAAEBENGT=E
awards granted, please refer to note 29 headed “Reserves” of the Financial Al - F2BAF RIS RARM 20 A —&7 -
Statements in this annual report.
(2)  Awards were granted to Employee Participants under the Award Scheme without  (2) HERBERB R TREESESE  WERTE

performance targets. In view that (i) the grantees are employees of the Group
who will contribute directly to the overall business performance, sustainable
development and/or good corporate governance of the Group; (ii) the grant is a
recognition for the grantees’ past contributions to the Group; (iii) the award are
subject to vesting period and also a purchase price and hence the value of the
awards to be vested in the grantees is linked to the future price of the shares of
the Company; and (iv) the awards granted are subject to clawback, which already
cover situations where the award will lapse in the event that the grantees cease to
be employees of the Group.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2023 are set out in

note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2023 or at any time during 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the connected transactions (including continuing
connected transactions) that are not exempt from annual reporting
requirement in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
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Continuing connected transactions
The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.”), (“Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home"),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd. (“Haining
Morris Home Gallery”), and Haining Morris International Home
Furnishings Co., Ltd. (“Haining Morris International”), each
as tenant entered into the lease agreements with Morris PRC as
landlord on 1 January 2016 for the lease of various premises located
in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, direct sale store and
office use. However, as the area of leased properties was insufficient
to meet the production requirements of the Group, Zhejiang Morris
Fashion Home, Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris
International (each as tenant) entered into lease agreements with
Morris PRC (as landlord) on 17 March 2017 for the lease of leased
properties located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory,
exhibition hall, dormitory, canteens, office and research and
development center use for a term of three years commencing from
17 March 2017 and expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of
the lease agreements are as follows:

HERERS
BREAEEE

MIRERHREERAA(AHEEE
BMRAEERAF D ([HIREEER

Bl - ANTRRER ERGER AR (T
IMRERERR ) BERBFERRE

ERAAR([BERFHURRE|) LEER
AEBEREERABN(NEERBER ) (&
BYEAAR)EERHE(1EREE)N2016
F1RAIAD R RBEENRPEINTIL 8%
THZERERE BEHERBRAZEARN
M HE R - A AREEMZE
EAEELZREAEENEESTR IR
ARERKE  BERAIHRREREER
REBR(ZEEAER) BERFE(ER
23)M2017F3 8178 IS ER R F
BEIEBEMIERE  EE BS R
B RARREFRLAROEEDER]
vHEWHE HEB2017F3/817AEE
20203 H16HIEREI=F - HEWHNE
BT ¢

Rent per

Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord Leased area annum

HE S R HE EES HERER £

(sg.m.) (RVB)

(F7K) (AR%7)

Property A 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Apollo Leather Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76

Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) Products
EINECYE 20165F1A1HZ2026F1A18  HIMEERE8m RATH
(RHEERME)
Property B Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 19,990.35  1,439,305.20

Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known as
"Haining Gelin Furniture”)
YRR HE 016F1A1HE202661 718 MIRAKHRE
(BEEEMA) (AfBl B ER/MKA])
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EEE®REE)
Rent per
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord Leased area annum
HE S HIR BE EES HERR 3
(sq.m.) (RMB)
(FAK) (AR%T)
Property C Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 39,312.00  2,830,464.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris Home
Gallery Furniture"”)
WECHERS 016F1A1RE202651 718 HIRAKHRE RATH
(BREEEMA) (AR EERATERR
=3
Property D Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris
International”)
MEDHE 016F1A1RE20265 1818 HIRAKHERE RATH
(BEEEME) (AR EERAER )
Property E Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 4,608.00 331,776.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris
International”)
YRR E S 201753 A1785202063A168 HMIRAKHRE RATH
(BREEEMA) (MBI B ERAER])
Property F Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 9,300.00 669,600.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known as
“Haining Gelin Furniture”)
YR E i 201753 A178F202063A168 HMIRAKHERE RAT
(BHREEEMA) (AfBl B ER/MKA])
Property G Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 40,474.00  2,914,128.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris Home
Gallery Furniture")
MEGIEEH 2017F3A1785202063A168 HMIRAKHERE RATH
(RHEERME) (A EERTERR
=)
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EEE®REE)
Rent per
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord Leased area annum
HE S HIR BE EES HEER 3
(sq.m.) (RMB)
(FAK) (AR%T)
Property H Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 20,532.00  1,478,304.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris Home
Gallery Furniture")
E Y 2017F3A178F202063A168 HIRAKHRE RATH
(BREEEMA) (MRIEERTERRK
=3
Property | Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 19,723.00  1,420,056.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known as
"Haining Gelin Furniture”)
MERERE 2017F3A1785202063A168 HMIRAKHERE RATH
(BEERMA) (AIRMEERMKA])
Property J Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 6,400.00 460,800.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris
International”)
NERIEE TR 20173170 E2020F3/ 168 MIRARHK/E RADHE

(BEEREMA)

(MRS ERAER])

The aggregated annual caps of the lease agreements for the years
ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 were originally fixed
at RMB15 million, RMB15 million, RMB15 million and RMB15 million,

respectively. For further details of the lease agreement, please refer to

the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2017.

FEHHNEE20174F + 2018%F ~ 20194
N2020F 12 A3V HIEFERANFE LR
BEINEAAREISEEL - ARKIS
BETLT  ARBISEBLRARKISES
T o ERMERENE DS - B2H
ANAFIHEA201763 A17HHAE ©
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On 8 July 2020, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home entered into the
2020 Lease Renewal Agreement with Morris PRC (as modified by the
supplemental agreement dated 21 August 2020) to renew the leases
of the 2020 Leased Properties for three years from 17 March 2020 to
16 March 2023, to set out the increased annual rents from the date
of signing of the 2020 Lease Agreements (subject to the obtaining of
approval from the Independent Shareholders) and to revise the annual
caps of the lease agreements for the years ending 31 December 2020,
2021, 2022 and 2023 to become RMB16,020,000, RMB21,622,000,
RMB21,622,000 and RMB10,194,000 (on the basis that the 2020
Lease Agreements shall end on 16 March 2023).

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home is a company established in the
PRC with limited liability, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the surviving entity of the merger with Haining
Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris International. As a result
of the merger which took place on 22 October 2018, Zhejiang
Morris Fashion Home has become the tenant of all the 2017 Leased
Properties in succession of Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining
Morris International. Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home was formerly
known as “Haining Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.” and was renamed to its
current name on 5 September 2017.

The leases of the 2020 Leased Properties renewed under the 2020
Lease Agreements were Properties E, F, G and H, with their annual
rents increases summarized as below:
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New annual rents
under 2020 Lease

Old annual rents
under 2017 Lease

Agreements Agreements

RIE20175F R1520204F

Lease area HEWHZEN HEWZEN

Premises L HEmE EFH M
(sg.m.) (RMB) (RMB)

(SFFAK) (ARHTT) (AR%TT)

Property E YIRE 4,608.00 331,776 884,736
Property F YIEEF 9,300.00 669,600 1,785,600
Property G YIZEG 40,474.00 2,914,128 7,771,008
Property H MEH 20,532.00 1,478,304 3,942,144
Total: Mt 5,393,808 14,383,488

72 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE A

For the avoidance of doubt, the 2016 Lease Agreements (i.e.
Properties A to D) are continuing until 1 January 2026 with the
annual rents for the 2016 Leased Properties being unchanged at
RMB7,238,046.96, while the leases of Properties | and J were allowed
to lapse by mutual agreement at the end of the three-year period
of the 2017 Lease Agreements on 16 March 2020. For further
details of the renewal of the lease agreements, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2020 and 21 August
2020.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an associate
of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the
Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios with respect
to the Revised Annual Caps is more than 5%, the 2020 Lease
Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps are subject to the
annual review, annual reporting, announcement, circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2020 Lease Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps
are approved by the Independent Shareholders at the EGM on 23
September 2020. Upon the obtaining of Independent Shareholders
approval, the 2020 Lease Agreements were entered into on 23
September 2020 with the rental increases for Properties E, F, G and H
taking effect on 23 September 2020.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with

Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and

in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Connected transactions

On 16 May 2023, the Company, Uphonest Capital Ill, L.P. (“Uphonest
Capital”), Fortune Future Group Limited (“Fortune Future”),
Charme Inc. (the "Target Company”), Mr. Zou Gebing, Mr. Xie
Ying (71 #) and Mr. Ma Qiang (55 38), Morris International Limited,
LX International Limited (“Morris International”) and JohnM
International Limited entered into a stock purchase agreement (the
"Stock Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, among others,
the Target Company as issuer agreed to issue an aggregate of 847
shares of series angel preferred stock and the Company, Uphonest
Capital and Fortune Future as subscribers agreed to subscribe for 423,
265 and 159 shares of series angel preferred stock, for a respective
consideration of US$1,600,000, US$650,000 and US$600,000,

respectively.
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Mr. Zou Gebing is (through Morris Capital) indirectly interested in
666,500,000 shares, representing approximately 24.24% of the issued
shares and is therefore a substantial shareholder of the Company (who
is also an executive Director). As Mr. Zou Gebing is (through Morris
International) interested in 70% of the issued share capital of the
Target Company, the Target Company is an associate of Mr. Zou and
hence a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Mr. Tse (the chairman of the Company and an executive Director)
is indirectly interested in 1,300,038,000 Shares, representing
approximately 47.27% of the issued Shares, and is therefore a
controlling shareholder of the Company. As Fortune Future (being
one of the investors) is wholly owned by Mr. Tse, Fortune Future is
deemed to be a connected person of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. In view of the above, the Stock Purchase
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
a connected transaction of the Company.

During the year, related party transactions are disclosed in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above
in respect of which the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with, other related
party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction which are subject to reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 30 to 52 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2023, sales to the Group's five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
45.9% and 49% of the total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted for around
25.0% of the total revenue for the year. The Group's largest supplier

accounted for around 25.0% of the total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors; their close associates; or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) have any interest in the largest and
five largest suppliers or customers disclosed above.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the

coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during 2023
or subsisted as at 31 December 2023.

76 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

RE RN EEEAREHNA
FHFI0E2EMNEEERRE] & -

EEPLAER

2023F - EFAEERARTFMHEET
RAAREEENEERES AL AFEE
Wk M A B B 4945.9% % 49% ° NEE
BARPEAFEBIRZELI25.0% ° K&
B R A PG AN [ AR R B EE 4025.0% ©

MEEENEE 2 ETHEA T HEMR
REEZAN - EARRBEEITRG
B 25% LA ) R At £ K sk AT oK FE R
MBEFEFRER AL

JEERTFRITBIEIR

REBAR > BREFHERLFETHA
HITHBER AU AT R R R B R

FRAXBEAERARBANEETERF®

8 ARAMEENRSBRABRLEEH
ﬁﬁ%l@Zﬁ%’ﬁ%%&%i&}\éﬁ’\]iﬁ@ﬁ@?
BHEE R - Y BFRRREENRFE

e RN AN

BrAF Rt BB AR ST BT BE B AN - A
A2023F 5T 8202312 A31BIFER
A= HM At o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEERE A

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to the following
eligible person(s) (the “Eligible person(s)”), namely, any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director, adviser and consultant of the
Group. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes which may be adopted by the
Group from time to time pursuant to which options to subscribe
for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes"”) must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing
Date (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained, and which must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 100,000,000 Shares, which represents 3.6% of
the issued Shares as at 31 December 2023 or the date of this
report.
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2. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
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exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time, and provided that if approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Persons abstained from voting, the
Company may make further grant of options to such Eligible
Person notwithstanding that the further grant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant of option.

The exercise of an option may be subject to the achievement
of performance target and/or any other conditions (e.g. vesting
period) to be notified by our Board to each Participant, which
our Board may in its absolute discretion determine.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be a
price determined by our Board and notified to each participant
and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the options, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Listing Date.
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Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled by
the Company under the share option scheme during the period from
the listing date to 31 December 2023 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2023 and the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") was appointed as the
auditor of the Group since 21 May 2019 upon the removal of the

former auditor of the Company.

There were no changes in the auditors of the Company during the

past five years.

The consolidated financials statements of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2023 onwards were audited by HLB, who will
retire at the AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment as the
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend,
and the Company agreed to borrow, a convertible loan (“Convertible
Loan”) in an aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 January 2018
and 24 January 2018 for further details. Pursuant to the Convertible
Loan Agreement and as one of the conditions of disbursement,
each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Mr. Zou's spouse and one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company, Morris PRC, a company
owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC
entered into a share retention and undertaking agreement pursuant
to which, among others, Mr. Zou has undertaken to at all times
maintain his controlling stake (being not less than 51% interests) in
the Company and Morris PRC and not to transfer his shares in Morris
Capital, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company and
owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and 15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC
if, giving effect to such transfer, Mr. Zou will not be able to maintain
his controlling stake in the Company or Morris PRC mentioned above
for so long as any part of the Convertible Loan is outstanding or any
amount is available for disbursement under the Convertible Loan
Agreement and for so long as IFC holds any equity securities of the

Company.

As a result of the suspension in trading in the shares of the
Company from 28 March 2019, the carrying amount of liability of
the convertible loan to the principal amount was adjusted and the
same was reallocated from non-current liabilities to current liabilities
in order to reflect such continuance. On 20 April 2019, 23 May
2019, 12 June 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Company entered
into four amendment agreements respectively with the lender of
the convertible loan for the agreed schedule of certain permitted
prepayments of the convertible loan. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal of the convertible loan was HK$110,967,128.
Under the agreed schedule as provided in the abovementioned
amendment agreements, the Company agreed to repay by 11
installments between 15 June 2019 and 28 December 2019.
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In December 2019, the Company’s subsidiary has pledged our
Cambodia lease rights and respective tenant lease rights to IFC. In
February 2020, the Company has received the waiver letter from
IFC, allowing the Company to not make any payments to IFC from
January to April 2020. On 29 May 2020, the Company was granted a
temporary waiver by IFC to postpone the installments from 28 January
2020 to 28 April 2020. At the same time, the repayment schedule
was renewed with an extended payment period.

On 21 December 2022, the Company renegotiated with IFC for the
rescheduled repayment schedule. Based on the rescheduled repayment
instalment schedule, the maturity date of the new repayment schedule
is 18 June 2025. Further details of the Amendment Agreement was

disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the principal amount and accrued interest
under the Convertible Loan amounted to HK$47,451,731. There
were no conversion of the Convertible Loan for the year ended 31
December 2023. The Company had repaid the convertible Loan
in installments as agreed in the Amendment Agreement. A total
of HK$25,484,760 was repaid to IFC during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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APPRECIATION EYE]

The Company would like to take this opportunity to thank the ARAFREHKEHRHFES BTEELE
Directors, as well as the management and all employees for the EEREEHAEEFELREMIEER - /A
contribution they have made towards the Group’s continued progress, MR + BRE R EKEHNR N T EROLH
and to thank all the Shareholders, customers and business partners i ©

for their support.

On Behalf of the Board REES®

TSE Kam Pang FIERBTEF
Chairman and Executive Director Bk

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024 EH - 202453 H28H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B B AR S

g S il N
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 231,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and

other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group at 31 December 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street SEITH115
Central BiHES

Hong Kong HETITRE3NE
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REER

BPEZEEFINHNESE2INEMNR
AREERERAR([EAT]) REKE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Scope limitation on amounts due from and to
related parties

As disclosed in Notes 23 and 33(c), included in amounts due from
related companies and amounts due to related companies as at 31
December 2023 were balances of approximately RMB176,199,000
and RMB44,534,000 respectively which are the carrying amounts
of the balances due from and to, respectively, entities which are
controlled by an executive director of the Company who also has
shareholding interests of 24.24% in the Company (the “Related
Parties”).

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves that the carrying amounts of the balances
due from and to the Related Parties as at 31 December 2023
were not materially misstated because we were unable to obtain
direct confirmations from the Related Parties or have access to the
management or relevant personnel of the Related Parties. There
were no other alternative audit procedures that we could carry out to
obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
about the existence, accuracy, valuation and completeness of these
balances as at 31 December 2023.

Further, the Group has recognized allowance for expected credit
loss on the balances due from the Related Parties of approximately
RMB182,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
RMB1,241,000 as at 31 December 2023. We were not provided by
management of the Company with the necessary financial, corporate,
operating and business information about the Related Parties to
support the impairment assessment of the balances due from the
Related Parties as at 31 December 2023.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (conTinuED)

Scope limitation on amounts due from and to
related parties (Continued)

Accordingly, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
amounts due from and to the Related Parties were fairly stated. Any
adjustments found to be necessary to the carrying amounts of the
balances due from and to the Related Parties as at 31 December
2023 may also have a consequential significant impact on the
expected credit loss on the balances due from the Related Parties of
approximately RMB182,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
that was recognized in consolidated profit or loss, the loss of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the Group’s net
liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and the related elements presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

REBEREE®
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RMB24,728,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2023, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB111,024,000 and RMB152,531,000 respectively. As stated in
Note 2.1, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 2.1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. This matter did not contribute to our issuance of qualified

audit opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Material
Uncertainty Related to Qoing Concern sections, we have determined
that matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conmmuep) FRETSEH®)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HRETSEE AT EEBRENER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables

B SN RR TE RS EEE ([ BAE BB R )Y

Refer to notes 17 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements

WA S TSR R T 17 36 LA R AR & B S SR M 5E2 4P S & 5K

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade receivables  Our procedures in relation to management’s
of gross carrying amount of approximately RMB52,817,000  impairment assessment included:

and allowance for ECL of approximately RMB35,405,000, HBREEREAMETHRERN S @ RMETHRFEE
the net carrying amount of trade receivables account for

6.13% of the Group's total assets. o Understanding and evaluating the key controls
M2023F12A31H - ESEESERFIENEREEEE that the Group has implemented to manage and
HEBAR52,817,000t RFEREEBBREBOARE monitor its credit risk;

35,405,0007 * EZEWFIENREFENE SEEEE o 2 TR SEESERERECERBRAE
1BE/6.13% ° hEEV BRI

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2023
to the underlying financial records and post year
end settlements to bank receipts;

o HEREN2023F12A31 B E 5 RKKIER
e EARRAR RS a8k - ARFRBIRITUURNEE
RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conmivuED)

Key audit matter

BREITEE

=T =8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

TR ETER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

B NIRRT E BE 1R ([ A BAE )L (&)

Refer to notes 17 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

TIRMAR A SRR M7 M 36 A M fr A M ISR I RE2 AP @ 5T R (4F)

In general, the trade receivables credit terms granted
by the Group to the customers ranged between one
to four months. Management performed periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade receivables
and the sufficiency of provision for impairment based on
information including credit profile of different customers,
ageing of the trade receivables, historical settlement
records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.

—RiME @ EEERNEFRENESREFBEEESHN
F—z=mEAR - ERERETRATSEELN BFHRK
TOARRES - BEAERE - BREGSEWR - EERE R
BRERERBEER  UNLEBATFONRHEESH
& EHHEE S REGRIER AR E M R ER RS
- ERENTCERARTVETFEEREEEREND
RIS ER - MEEDREF AN FRREEESE -

Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers based on trade records, check
historical and subsequent settlement records of
and other correspondence with the customers;
and
MERESANFROPNEIHERE HEIK
BERARR - WA EREREEENE BB
- BINIRIERZ Sacsk TRRIME PO RHE X5
R REBARABEETS  UREEPHE
s &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conmvueD) AR EET R
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BERETEE FITMAEEREETEER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

B WK E TR E EEE (| RRE B AR )T 1% (&)

Refer to notes 17 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

IR A BB REME 7R3N R A MBREI 2 ARG TR ()

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment e Assessing the appropriateness of the expected

of trade receivables under the expected credit losses model credit loss provisioning methodology, and
involved the use of significant management judgements challenging the assumptions, including both
and estimates. historical and forward-looking information, used
BB E 2 BEE RN RIBTR I EEBEEETE S E to determine the expected credit losses and using
WIBE R E R G RERENE IR E A6 R bt - valuation experts engaged by us.

o  HMEEHIEEEEBREAREEE  LHERA
REERPREERRRERRMZBHEZERN
RR(BEAERFIELER) -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgement and estimates in the ECL
assessment of trade receivables to be supported by the
available evidence.

RBCEITHORRF  BMRS - BEEEBEREZEER
RIEMEE BB E A HIE R AT AR S E RS -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
about certain corresponding figures included in the consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether
or not the Other Information is materially misstated with respect to
these matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (conminuep)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have

no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

92

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENHRE ()

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeBRmkHEMRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12431 H 1FF/Z
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEE ARMT T ARETFT
Revenue PN 5 187,975 132,013
Cost of sales SHEAR (118,511) (130,013)
Gross profit EAF 69,464 2,000
Other income and gains, net HA WA R F 5 5 2,969 34,574
Gain on debt restructuring (EUCEREL 6 5 92,434 -
Allowance for expected credit losses in  3ZE $ERX AN LIRS Rl
respect of financial assets carried at BEMBHEEEBE
amortised cost, net B R (32,605) (19,166)
Fair value change on financial asset BAnERTAER( &
at fair value through profit or loss AREFABR]Z
("FVTPL") TREENDAESR (9,712) -
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD M (48,743) (36,342)
Administrative expenses THAX (64,910) (150,842)
Other expenses and losses Hibfxx REE (21,038) (26,141)
Finance costs BE AR 6 (13,989) (7,501)
Loss before tax MR ATE R 7 (26,130) (203,418)
Income tax credit PRSI R 10 68 832
Loss for the year FEREE (26,062) (202,586)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2muss -
Item that may be reclassified B g EF 7 2 1B
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEE -
Exchange differences on translation of ~ HEIERKAIIE X
financial statements EHE 1,171 4,315
Item that was reclassified to profit EEH S Ema) B -
or loss:
Reclassification of cumulative HEHBA RS
exchange fluctuation reserve upon DHEREHE KRS
disposal of subsidiaries 1] 3,321 =
Other comprehensive income for FREMEERE
the year, net of income tax HERAEH 4,492 4,315
Total comprehensive loss for FAXHEERERE
the year (21,570) (198,271)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

reBmkEMEEWER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
hEs ARMT T ARBTFT
Loss attributable to: FEfhEE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIET =N (24,728) (199,679)
Non-controlling interests IR (1,334) (2,907)
(26,062) (202,586)
Total comprehensive loss EEE2HEEBREE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIL Y EDN (19,726) (195,464)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (1,844) (2,807)
(21,570) (198,271)
Loss per share attributable to AAREBESEHEA
ordinary equity holders of the FEiEEREE
Company
Basic (RMB cents) ERARES) 12 (0.92) (13.99)
Diluted (RMB cents) EHEARED) 12 (0.92) (13.99)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR AR

At 31 December 2023
R2023F12H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE ARET T ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - HEK&E 13 5,802 6,505
Financial asset at FVTPL BAREFABRZ S5
BE 14 1,604 -
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15 35,628 43,656
Total non-current assets IEmEBNEERE 43,034 50,161
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories ey 16 26,917 25,411
Trade receivables B 5 M GRIA 17 17,412 33,142
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - B REM
receivables FEUGRIA 18 15,584 64,695
Amount due from a shareholder R — B2 IR FE 33(b) - 345
Amounts due from related companies  fEU B8 N B T8 33(c) 176,258 185,527
Pledged deposits BEFFR 19 21 33
Cash and cash equivalents RENREEEY 19 4,753 7,590
Total current assets MENVEEBE 240,945 316,743
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and bills payables B RNRERENER 20 46,073 143,936
Contract liabilities EHaE 21 7,210 11,052
Other payables and accruals Hib I RIEREER 21 93,437 100,260
Amounts due to related companies iRz NGIE e 23 44,534 62,173
Interest-bearing bank and other TRERTT R E M AR
borrowings 24 109,457 69,235
Warranty provision RIERHE 25 943 455
Lease liabilities HEARE 22 20,738 25,133
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBIA 27 75 372
Convertible loan AT AR E X 27 26,567 21,492
Income tax payables FERTERISHE 2,935 2,863
Total current liabilities MEAEARTE 351,969 436,971
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFHE (111,024) (120,228)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERRBAERE
LIABILITIES (67,990) (70,067)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mEMBRRE(E)

At 31 December 2023

R2023%F12H31H
2023 2022
20234 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR¥T T AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEIRIT R EMER
borrowings 24 53,696 -
Convertible loan AT E IR 27 13,487 39,073
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 17,358 22,319
Total non-current liabilities JEmEI B ERE 84,541 61,392
Net liabilities &5 (152,531) (131,459)
EQUITY e
Share capital N 28 19,212 19,212
Reserves FE1E 29 (165,462) (146,234)

Equity attributable to owners of AATHEE AELER

the Company (146,250) (127,022)
Non-controlling interests IR (6,281) (4,437)
Total equity EREEE (152,531) (131,459)

Approved by and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 & E £ €W 202443 A28 B # &I 1% #E T

March 2024 and signed on its behalf by: WA TATREESE
Tse Kam Pang Chong Tsz Ngai
i 88 s HFR
Director Director
0 0

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEMT 3T RERK L S 45 A BAFSRER A — 2B »
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARBEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
FRTREAREES
Shareaward  Exchange Non-
Share Share Other ~ Treasury scheme  fluctuation Reserve  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve shares reserve reserve funds losses Total interest equity
RAER ELRE
iz R EE EthifE ERRH THRE fi& B ZitER B FERES RREER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(note28) (ot 29()  (note29(v))  (note 29(il)  (note 29(vi))  (note 29(ii)  (note 29(iv))
(fiE28)  (Ro0)  (WaboN))  (Hswagm)  (Wfetaowd)  CBSREasi))  (FsEas)
Asat 1 January 2022 RF1f1A 6914 15307 TETIK Y0 (579 605k (MSMF [@9SK) (1§ BT
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - (199679 (199679) 0907 (00,586)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FAEM 2SS :
the year:
Bchange differenceson R EEHBHAH
translation of financial ERzE
statements - - - - - 4215 - - 4215 100 4315

Total comprehensive loss for 2 AEEAE

the year - - - - - 4215 - (199,679) (195,464) (2,807 (198,271)
Placing and subscription of ~ ELE Jes 2R
- 119,330 - 119,330

shares 12,298 107,032 - - - - -
Transaction costs attributable = 3

toplacing and subscription ALK

of shares - (1,347) - - - - - - (1,347) - (1,347)
Asat 31 December 2022 and ~ #20224612A31AK
1 January 2023 2023%1518 19212 258,756* (731)* (8,992)* -* (11,582)* 60,528* (444213 (127,022) (4,437) (131,459)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (24728)  (24728) (133 (26,062)
Other comprehensive (loss) ~ FREMZE
income for the year: (Bl8)/ A :
Eichange differenceson ~ BREBBAZMER
translation of financial EE
statements - - - - - 1,681 - - 1,681 (510) 11m
Redlassifcation of R—TNEARTA
cumulative exchange R 2 ER
fluctuation reserve REGEENAE
upon deregistration of a
subsidiary = = = = = 3321 - - 331 - 331
Total comprehensive (oss) ~ EAZE(EE)/
income for the year BN - - - - - 5,002 - (24,728) (19,726) (1,844) (21,570)
Grant of shares under share RIS BT IR
award scheme ity - - - - 498 - - - 498 - 498
As at 31 December 2023 H2023%125318 19212 258,756* (731)* (8,992)* 498* (6,580)* 60,528* (468,941)*  (146,250) (6,:281) (152,531)
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately @ ZEREBRBEGAUBRARANGEHE
RMB165,462,000 (2022: approximately RMB146,234,000) in the consolidated 49 N R HE 165,462,000 7T (2022 4F © #H) AR

statement of financial position. 146,234,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MERETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EE2023F12H31H I F/E

2022
20224
Notes RMB’'000
BfaE ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities REEEFERLRE
Loss before tax PR RIS A (26,130) (203,418)
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Interest income FLEIA 5 (63) (133)
Depreciation of property, plant and Wi B R E
equipment 7 3,707 3,547
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 7 26,329 10,748
Loss on written off items of property, WMEEZE - mE RS
plant and equipment TH B M Es1E 7 102 3,378
Fair value change on financial asset BRASEABEZS
at FVTPL BEENQAEED) 9,712 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE - BEL&E
property, plant and equipment, net BEMEE,
Wgs) - R 5 478 (2,132)
Gain on termination of leases KIERERES 5 (1,299) (8,460)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary — AP B A R BUE
B 518 7 3,952 15
(Gain)/loss on derivative financial PTHES BT A(KS),
instruments agic! 7,27 (305) 293
Allowance for expected credit losses 2 S REWGIRTEHER
in respect of trade receivables, net E R - F8 7 16,449 7,349
Allowance for expected credit losses in ~ FBAFUIA ~ e R HAD
respect of prepayments, deposits and ~ JEUWGKIETEHAEE
other receivables, net EiaRE(BE)
HER 7 15,974 11,783
Allowance for expected credit losses e W B RSt 77 SRR TR HA(E
in respect of amounts due from BEERE 38
related parties, net 7 182 34
Gain on debt restructuring EREA N 5 (92,434) -
Gain on modification of convertible 1ERT ATAAR B KA W e
loan 5 - (5,597)
Gain on modification of lease BT HEERN R 5 (187) -
(Reversal)/provision against obsolete fRENERFS
and slow-moving inventories (BE[E 1 7 (27,621) 20,123
Equity-settled share-based payment LAt E AR (D B
AR 498 -
Product warranty additional provision — ZE SA{RIEZEINEE 7 943 461
Finance costs EhE AR 6 13,989 7,501
Operating cash flow before movements Z3@& &AL L
in working capital BEmE (55,724) (154,508)
Decrease in inventories FERD 26,189 38,095
Decrease in trade receivables B Z EWGRIER D 77 1,590
Decrease/(increase)in prepayments, TR « BE RAME
deposits and other receivables Wk B A, (3 0n) 33,482 (39,563)
Decrease in trade payables B 2 FE N sRIRR (24,617) (35,365)
Increase in other payables and accruals — Efth e~ 5B K fE =+ & F
A0 9,540 50,423
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & #B&ECHL ), LN (4,057) 834
Utilisation of warranty provision B RRIEEE (470) (3,059)
Cash used in operations é%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ/\ﬁ (15,580) (141,553)
Income tax refund RBIFFSH 68 -
Net cash flows used in operating LEEARSRE
activities FEE (15,512) (141,553)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

meRenak(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2022
20224
Notes RMB’'000
P 5 AREFT
Cash flows from investing activities R&EEEFEHRSRE
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BERAAEABZEN
TEEE (11,148) -
Payment for purchases of items of BEYIX - WEMEREE
property, plant and equipment EROENEN (3,994) (12,590)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWME - KRERFEE
property, plant and equipment B ®AT1S IR 468 2,345
Interest received 2 UHLE 63 133
Decrease in pledged deposits AT 12 14,672
Repayment from related companies KB B A RIRE K 15,524 21,835
Advance to related companies ) GBS A B AR (16,186) (18,499)
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEB(FTA),/ B3
investing activities HeF5 (15,261) 7,896
Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEFIERERE
New bank and other borrowings FrERIT R EAMLE K 155,182 44,760
Repayment of bank and other borrowings &3 $R1T K& E b fE 5K (61,236) (43,455)
Advance from related companies 2K B Bl A R K = 47,288
Repayment to related companies M EEH A FIER (18,727) (13,866)
Repayment of convertible loan BETBIRER (19,547) (9,716)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (30,765) (18,314)
Proceeds from placing and subscription  Fg & K& REERR (5 FT{5 508
of shares = 119,330
Transaction costs attributable to placing Bt & KR BER D FE(G
and subscription of shares R = (1,347)
Interest paid BRFE (5,887) (1,888)
Net cash flows generated from BEEBFTSIRENE
financing activities HEE 19,020 122,792
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBEEEYWRD
equivalents EEE (11,753) (10,865)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#38% MIREEEY
of year 7,590 13,485
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, JMNEE[ERE BRI E -
net FER 8,916 4,970
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRESRESEEY
of year 4,753 7,590
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESESEYEH
cash equivalents Bkl
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEED 19 4,753 7,590

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at No. 52, Fu Hang Road, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 January
2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Century Icon
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI") and the ultimate controlling party is Mr. Tse
Kam Pang, who is also the Chairman and an executive director

of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B ERER M (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023
B2 2023F 12431 H 1FF/Z
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RElRERER @
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries B AR &R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KAREZMBARGFBLT :
follows:
Place of lssued  Percentage of equity attributable to the Company
incorporation/ ordinary share FOARGRRERL
registration and capital/paid up 223 2022
business registered capital 3% W0E Principal country
Company name ML/ legalentity ~BRFTEERA/ W IS Direct  Indirect Principal activities  of operation
ARER BRERERLY EARE HRERRE B 553 g% B IEEH TEREER
Mstar International Trading Hong Kong/ Limited liability HK$100 - 100% - 100% Trading of sofas, sofa  Hong Kong
(HK) Limited United States company covers and other
furniture Products
XEERERH(FRERAT  BE/FE BRAR 1007 - 100% - 0% EEDEMRER AR
HftFEAER
Morris Fashion Home HK Limited ~Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100% - 100% Retailing of sofasand ~ Hong Kong
company investment
B AR A EARAT (3 BRAR 10,0007 - 100% - 0% PETERREER ER
Zhejiang Apollo Leather The People’s Republic  Sino-foreign US$615,000 - 100% - 100% Manufacture and sale  The PRC
Products Co, Ltd. of China ("PRC") equity joint of sofa covers
venture
HIMFERERRERAT  TEARKAE DI 615,000%7T - 100% - 0% EEREEDEE  HE
(%)) %
Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home The PRC Wholly foreign ~ US§41,470,000 - 100% = 100% Manufacturing and sale  The PRC
(o, Ltd* owned of upholstered sofas
enterprise
HIAAR R EARAA" ik NEBELE  M410000%T - 100% - 100% EEREERENT
Zhejiang Muhua Home Furnishing ~ The PRC Wholly foreign ~ US§35,000,000 = 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sale - The PRC
Co., Ltd.* owned of upholstered sofas
enterprise
FIREXERRAR RENEEECE 35,000,000 £ - 100% - 100% FEREERENE  hE
Royale Home Living Limited The United Kingdom ~ Limited fiablity (GBP1,000 70% - 70% - Wholesale of furniture UK.
("UK") company products
Royale Home Living Limited Z5([%48)) BRAA 100058 70% - 70% - WERRER EE]
(3178 MorriSofa Furope Limited )
Guangzhou Shengbo Home The PRC Wholly foreign 5$5,000,000 - 100% - - Trading of sofas, sofa ~ The PRC
Furnishing Co., Ltd. owned covers and other
enterprise furniture products
BNEEREERAR e IEEALE 50000001 - 100% - - BEDE DEERA HE
ftxEER
* The English names of these entities represent management’s best effort & ERZEBRRBIWARIMEME HEXH
at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any B ZEEENAXEEIHEEER
official English names. N E R B TBEIZSE T -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o)

BA RS R AR Y AE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTINUED) 2.1 IRREE )

Going concern

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB24,728,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2023, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB111,024,000 and RMB152,531,000 respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements based on going concern on the assumptions and
measures that:

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and financial position of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern. Certain plans
and measures have been taken to mitigate the liquidity position
and to improve the Group's financial position which include,

but are not limited to, the followings:

(i)  The substantial shareholder of the Company, Mr. Tse Kam
Pang, has provided to the Company an unsecured loan
facility in the principal amount of up to HK$200,000,000
to enable the Group to continue as a going concern
and to settle its liabilities as and when they fall due.
For further details please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated on 5 May 2023. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had unutilised loan facility amounting to
approximately HK$125,869,000;

(i)  The Group will take steps to obtain external funding in
order to improve the working capital and liquidity and

cash flow position of the Group;

& 2 g ks
BERE

HZE2023F 128318 ILEE » A&
BEARNAREEABGEEEROAR
#24,728,0007T - MM 2023412 A
318 AEENRBAGETFELEE
FEED R A ARE111,024,0007T
B AR®152,531,0007C ° % SHHA0N
FRNFAEEATHBPREZ @ i@y
EBECHECERENEEERNEM -
Eit - AEEJREELRNE A B ER
BEREREEERFEEEE &
EERUTRERER - BIRFEK
EREERBURAE M IERE -

ERILEFEBER - ARREFEEERE
BARKERKNREE S MFBIRR
AREATAE SRR - AR EAEE
EEARHMBERRITBLEERE
HIBEE - BREVE T R8I R HEIA
HERBESEN MAEAEEN
B - BREETRRTHIEIA

() ARRNEZBREHBILE
MARAARELrASERS
200,000,000 7T #) 4 1R & 51
BME - UEAEEEHISEL
EWEETNBREE - EZFHE
B2MARARHEA20234F5
ASHEBAE « #iE2023F12
A31B A&EEHKRBANE
REVE £ 549 5125,869,00078

Jo

(i)  ANEEASEREUE i EUS S0 6 B
B UREARAEENLESR
T RBESRBASREMRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuED)

Going concern (Continued)

(i) The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls

with an aim to attain positive cash flows from operations;

(iv)  The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment
schedules with certain of its debtors and endeavoring
to request them to repay the trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies in
accordance with the repayment schedules to be agreed

with them; and

(v)  The Group has actively negotiated with stakeholders
for the purpose of obtaining further financing when
necessary, including but not limited to shareholder’s loan,
equity financing, bank borrowing and issuance of new

convertible bonds to improve the liquidity of the Group.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due within twelve months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above
plans and measures are in progress, material uncertainties exist
as to whether management of the Group will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would depend
upon the Group's ability to meet its future working capital and

financing requirements.

106 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

ImRLELAE ()
HEREE)
&

(il) A< S B IE BRERHE He O0 58 A AN 42
B - AEBREHLERRSR

(ivy, ANEBBRAIEESETEHAZE
MipEERLH  BMAOBRE
FHREANSRIHTENERNL
BHERE S RWIR - HibfE
W SR TR Ko e s B B R B FRIR
K

(v AEEBEGREFOHERE - A
BEVLERESE-TRE
BREETRRBERER - I#
BE - RITEREBETHOA
BEEs  ReEAKENREY
Bd o

ARRBERR - EER LR E R
Hit  ARESHEERREEEER
HeBRHES RBTEAEREVH
WEALE AR+ @A ARSI HeR
BEE - Bt - ARREFERILE
BREAERUGEAMBBRRBE

Atk

=' o

==

BEML - AR LRSI RERER
WITH  AEBERERERNER
EiltE & RAE T EEARTHEN -
REBREESAFBELEELEEL
2R TAKEEDREERRSE
BESMBEFRKMEES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTINUED) 2.1 IRREE )

Going concern (Continued)

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised other than at the amounts at
which they are currently carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The effect of these adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)

except when otherwise indicated.

HEKE®)

S ELLENBRRL T EE - BIATaE
FBRETARURREELTERN
1B - Ik B AT SIBRRAR & B SR
RPWDE - ZFRAENTELRR
BRAER B I IRER T -

HAMBBRIDRELRAEER
5 ERSBEHRBRANETED
ETERTARIN  FHEREFER

b A — RIS R R RBE A4
REGDAEHE -

ZEMBHRENARB((ARK ]2
5 BB AR - FTAREBZOE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B ZE2023%F 1231 HI1FE/E
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 SETHRNIEE &
DISCLOSURES

RS B S A A 3 AT IR A
1T B I R 2

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual

MAREE  AREEBDEHERUTH
EESHMASEMITRAARNERR
2023F 1 A1H 2 AR FEHIME

period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation o Il A ) BT AT BB ST BB BT R
of the consolidated financial statements: HHER - DREURE ISR

HKFRS 17 (including the October 2020 Insurance Contracts EENBRSENETE RRAK
and February 2022 Amendments to (BIE2020510A R
HKFRS 17) 00252 RNEEIT
BEEAEITR(BIR))

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates BRSERESE(BR) SfhiiTER

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and BAGERE 125 HE-TBELVEER
Liabilities arising from a Single (f3K) BEREZETHE
Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two EAerENE % ABRBHE-So%i
Model Rules (B2TR) BRRE
ERGHEAFINREL  SHURNBRE
By
EVEACHES)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the ARG RECIEET B BB

current year had no material impact on the Group'’s financial MG EREARE BN ARFRE RBEF
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/ ERBMBERRRREA R, XZERE

MBI ORBELEEATE

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.3 AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2.3 BEMERKRESHNES

B s RS RMERT AR
455 B 35 442 7 1 P DA T B A48
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BRMBREEAS0R  REZEERELAY
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(CHEY N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.4 BERZATBRERE

POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
Othe relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

(d) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
patterns at previous shareholders’ meeting.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTiNUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has no
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

112 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

mEEXE)

A EENBAER AR S W
A B REAEEREATELS
ARNR L RELRGA NERER
#iH -

P8 2 0 3 28R 2 R S
SRR A2 - BT REE
AHEFB ) B2 L B (5 1R B R
ARAREHENR AN -

PN 2
BEFEHKA

REBER TR B X B LR ERKA -
BIR B4 E BB AR E RR
B[ HRHIHE |2 T 2P -

BHOBEETE -HERENE R RRE
(R —HEmER) I — RIIABE
7 B AR S m kRS ©

ZHIERERS RERE - MKTEATE
R —IRRE - AR AT 2 R ERE R
AV B EHE IR IR -

. EERAEEEOERBRE
3 ¥ 7 AN 42 B B A0 PR 62 40

. FEROBROAIRREEES
RAEEBOB R NEE
A

s AREMBOLREEHASK
EERERAENEE  BAK
[ 3 48 55 Il #0174 DAURERE 5
EEXRFUA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before

payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net

basis.

A contract asset and a contract liability related to the same

contract are accounted for and presented a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including

allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price

basis except for the allocation discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including

allocation of transaction price) (Continued)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the

promised goods or services to the customer.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects
to refund some or all of the consideration received from

customers.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or

service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

114 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

WAFERR ()
BEFEAMA (&)

ABFZREXNE TSN BRI
RS1E1) (&)

HEEHETHRBNARE mIRE
MBEERNENRIERET - 215
AEBES AN ERIRGEBLE
TEPHER - MBI EE N EE
BR  ASREEREEBETE
it WEREROEZEMENEER
RHERRRASERARAEFE
FAGRE MR M BRI RE
TR ©

RIRIE

HAEEEBRE SRS KRB
SR M - AAEEEDEKE

& o

ZREAZAEA
ER—tERFEPREHEERHIRYE
B AEEETHEENEERG A
REETERIRBAGZHNEOERE
(AIAREESRZEN)RLHFASZ T
RUZSERARG (BAEE /K
BA) -

7 SR B P 5 B R R T
PRI SRR - RIS E A
BHA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by

the other party.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture
products are recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods has transferred, which generally coincides with the
time when the products are delivered to customers and title is

passed.

Commission income

Commission income from sales of sofa, sofa cover and other
furniture products is recognised at a point in time when the
Group acts as an agent. The commission income expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the sales when the control
of goods have been passed to customers, which is primarily
upon the goods are delivered to and have been accepted by

customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable

inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end

of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BEREFTHRENBE @)
POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)
Related parties BAEE AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: AHBTHIER ATALEERA

EAEKE AR

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ BATRTIALTHTIAL
family and that person BT - Maz AL

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () EHlgk RIS ARE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i HEAKBEBEERFES

59

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AREEFAEEHTAA

the Group or of a parent of the Group; or MNEZEEAR 3
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) TALAETAE TIEMIGER

conditions applies: B

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREASEBR—%
group; EHRKE AR ;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (il FEEREZ—ETBR(EHZA
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow —ERMNSAR  [MBA
subsidiary of the other entity); FEAEEI N =AGIDE):

BASEERE

(i the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iiy ZEBHEASERBR—F
same third party; =HMEEDRE

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy EERAF=FTENE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; B M EBR%L

E=FEBNBEA

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for () ZREBRASENERE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an EEAmNEEEER
entity related to the Group; 7 5% N B BE B 12 4B A T

£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETTHRENRR @)
POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Related parties (Continued) B AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Continued) ALBETHER A TALTBESRA
BEAREE BN (&)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) TALTRTEE NIEMIGHH
conditions applies: (Continued) T (E)
(viy the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EEEZFT#ERIA LTS
person identified in (a); S R
(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) ZFEEO)EFIALTEHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEBERAZENNAZ
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent B (ZERNERA])
of the entity); and NEZBEEAE K&
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is (vii) ZEBIEMBEENT
a part, provides key management personnel services (BIPA=WNCIV=YN S e P:N
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. SENREREEEE
BABRE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family —BATHIIRKEREZERRS
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced REMAZEZAATHEZATY
by, that person in their dealings with the entity, and include: ZHREKE - WBEFE
(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) mBAIHNTFLMEBxRE
fHaE
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZBEATHWEBXAREHEK
TR
() dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (0 ZBATHZEBATHERBRL
domestic partner. BEMEIZEA -
A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction EAEEBEERA T ZHTEERK
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between EE@E&%(T?@%EWHY%%) - Al
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is R R BT

charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment that are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 33.3%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery 10% t0 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% t033.3%
Motor vehicles 20% t033.3%

M3~ BB RRBURITE

FrE AR £ E MBS an R T A
TBRAZNYME  BELEEB(RE
FEE) (ERTIERRINIERARR
AHTE MR EERYIR - Y% -
BENEREEENRABREBEE
KB EEEERE Mgz 2&ER
KA FE I E R BRI

WE - BE&RERERANEFRE
EMBERRESFRN  —RREE
HIRAT Al 5 - BN A ERIRMT - K
WA ABEREE - FRE
EEX - W% BERRBHEER
BABEREER - AIAKRERAZF
Mo BEBEERFHNERNEE -
WETHRABEITE -

786 7Y DA E SR TE (62 R £ AP0 6
W% - R AR TR B B
SHFBEETE - RUEAOES
ERMT ;

) 5%

HEMEEE fAH%33.3%
(ABEH RE)

TR B ey 10%Z20%

RE - GBREFAEE 20%E33.3%

B 20%%£33.3%

RAREERAR AT 2023 F£3F 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for

use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Leases
Definition of a lease

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from individual

leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-

lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

HE
HEHESE

i & K R BREE MR T £ — BRI
PR I T 38R B E R A RO RE R - Al
HERBREMEENAL -

AN B R ER BB 2 R AT SERT
HEEXFEHMEENALOME &
SERFHSG - B BB E A
(IER)IRBEREEM SRS LRI 16
BHERNEEHNRERHEELERS
HE - BRI QAR R R ER
RE2®  TRAABAO/KNTENF
- ERAITTHEENE  EAKES
ERRHGAMHERRNTEEAS
NERHEYBEAEZRE - AFHR
S EOEEREE AR -

EEEEBEABA
DEHNE T A RIS

AEBEHEEDIAR —IENKZHEEI
HESFHEBINEOMS * A%
ERZBEMEE I AL BB KRIE
HERONEBLEREENRED
=& HERD -

AEBETERAITTREEATHIEE
SR E D BEEEKE DA -
RS AEKE D REFBREEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption for
lease of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease

term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and

conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions
in which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

HE )
EEEERABA(E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognizes
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BERZABRESE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTiNUED)

Leases (Continued) ME )

The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERBARBEA ()

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEAE(E)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a MEIRATER  AEEEHT=H
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) EaE (W ABEAEEEEDLA
whenever: FEAE)

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the o THEIEMEHNITEEEEE

MR ELEEL - FUBER
T HEEERAEERERE

assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the

revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in market

Hrath B HIE SR RE IR KB
RETTHENRIMENTE -

MEMREETHSESAT

rHISHSXEHRAFERT
HREETHEHNRESMER

rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which

cases the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting 2y ARBERT  HEEE
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate. BEMEAVHEHRXBIREE
ET%HE/f—J- ﬁﬁi*ﬁn‘l’% ©
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the HEABENGEVBRARPEEZ
consolidated statement of financial position. Bl o
Lease modifications HEEET
Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the RS E R Covid- 19/ & BEEIK
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a %ﬁ] AITRE AN - MEBREATIE
lease modification as a separate lease if: VNS lﬁgfﬂﬁ%mﬂ%ﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ—lﬁﬁ
?@E’ﬁ‘ﬂ HEITARR
e the modification increases the scope of the lease by e  ZIAEHUBBEMER—IEWR

adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modlfications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability less any lease
incentives receivables, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains one or
more additional lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component. The associated non-lease components are included
in the respective lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised

in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other

revenue and other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business

combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group managers together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BERZABRESE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and other
income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a shareholder, amounts
due from related parties, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BERZABRESE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtors;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12431 H 1FF/Z
2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BEAGAHERERME#)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRITAE®E)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DHEERE(E)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) EERBRAEEMGE)

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial o X BBSKEMRANIRAE
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a STERTFES - HHKEHR
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt BEHABITEEBEERRE
obligations; KIE TR

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the s EBAREEENERNIELD
operating results of the debtor; BAREIE

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the e BEHRAEE  KEIEMIRE
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the EERSHEHME XA &
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s B BREBABRTEEBER
ability to meet its debt obligations. FRIBE D KIE & o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group Tem Ll F G &R - WE A e Hs

presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since HiE30E - AEEREEERRE S

initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 IRTERARE RIBIEIN - EASER

days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable EEWEERE 2 ERBERBRILIEN

information that demonstrates otherwise. Il o

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria AEETEHEZEARBNEERRZE

used to identify whether there has been a significant increase BRELENMNELERS BB RERE

in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the I EIRE - DIREGR A IR ERE K

criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit AR R E B R M EEL N

risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is

unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

136 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

24 ERETHRENRZ®)

THMITA#E)
EHEEE)
A EREE)
ENZEE

AL EERBERMS » AEBR
A M RERHIE 30 B SN AR RIS K
BRBERESATAREEHEETH
BEA(BREARER) - AREREE
HEM -

B EadtESN - AEERR - WERE
EAHEIEIR AENEAER
BN EAKERERENAEEER
HBER - HERRNENTEERSE
@ RIS ER o

TREEEERE
BRAE-EXZEHTHMEEMTR
KESCREATNEZEZENEN
B SREELNREERE RE
EFEREZEEREENTEAHNA
BIREE

(@) BITAHERABAZARIDE
R

(b) BRELD WEONEHEMT

(© BRAZBRAEREERAL
RYBRHEBR 2 EHEREH
BARMmETERAE—RBER
THHATTE B 2 BB



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 1 year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade and bills receivables and other
receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and amount due from related parties where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BERZABRESE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continueD)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as trade
and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, amount due to a shareholder, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities,

loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate

amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXETTHRENRR @)
POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRITAE®E)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) THEERREE)
Financial liabilities (Continued) SAEEE)
Convertible loan AR E R

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a

conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible loan notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt component
are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

A modification of a financial liability occurs if the contractual

cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the

original financial liability.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is

recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated

statement of financial position include:

(@  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no

longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather

than for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-term

borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for sales
of sofas, sofa cover and other furniture products are recognised
at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s

obligation.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be

required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation,
the part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other
parties is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Contingent liabilities (Continued)

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has become
probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt
with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs, except in the extremely

rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Income tax (Continued) mE#E)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary FRTIVIERIN - SEAT B ERIE =
differences, except: FERERIRER BB E -

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial e (WREHIEEENRE HAER

MEBRERBAHIZTH

recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
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reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available

utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reserve in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of each reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BTSRRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “Government subsidies” under “Other income

and gains”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 ERNSTHERENE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”). Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully

once made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSFHHERERME @)
POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)
Employee benefits (Continued) EERA#)
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits HHREMRAESEF

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires

or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group's various line of business and geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 24 BERZABRESE #)

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)
Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States
dollar (“US$"). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies are RMB, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary

items are recognised in profit or loss.
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BTSRRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (continuED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
nonmonetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of
each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular operation is not recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates

could result in outcomes that could require a material

3.

EvN-R AT

RAEAREGEVBHREAFTEEEE
TR HIE - At REBR - Mz FH
B - At RRRFERA X &
ENRAENEREBENERERE
AEHRBENEE  IFHRERAE
AT TR A SR RBHRE
EMEERBEMNRAEEHEAS

adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities o
affected in the future.
The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have HiEaBREMEReEARRE

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories and
the condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting
period, and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use in the production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the latest

invoice prices and current market conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying value of inventories and the write-down of inventories
recognised in the reporting period in which such estimate is

changed.

154 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

0

TENABEREERABEREE
RT—ESBEEHRENFENE
RERRH T ZHFE - S5 RBRRET
L

RENRBFERE

AEBREREPREEEFENR
o RFEMRR - XHHEE R TH
HAHERMRELENRE LEER
BEEELEE - EEEEXERER
HBRERLRENMAGHZERFE
HYR]BAIRHE o

RELEEFERBREZRBAE K
et o WERGERIARRBMERTE
BEt TR - ZERBHFENREE
RAEBGHBREZE M RE AEER
MTFEMORER R E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conTinUED)

Allowance for expected credit loss for financial
assets under HKFRS 9

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables including trade
and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables and amounts
due from related companies based on various factors including
the aging of the receivables, historical write-off experience and
forward looking information. The identification of impairment
of receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying amounts of receivables
and the allowance for credit losses on receivables is recognised
in the years in which such estimates have been changed. See

note 36 for further discussion.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.
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e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. EXRgFHHE M@
AND ESTIMATES (conTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FEMEEMEE)

The fair value measurement of financial asset at FVTPL were BAREFABG eREENAR
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, which BRENBEARAANBEFCFEF=4
determined based on significant unobservable inputs using THERERNAIER G ABURE AN
valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are required in BEREMEE - BEMEGERTRAE
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant B da A BUIR T 2 R AT e st o BE
inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors ZERRBE 2 BRNEB) I EEEE
could result in material adjustments to the fair value of these BAHZETHENAABEEHEKRS
instruments. Details are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated B o FIBHN S M mERMFIS -
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEFER

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon

which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8

are as follows:

a.  Retail segment

b.  Manufacturing segment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continveD)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments:

Retail segment

BN LEN

203 200 2023
ABE 2000 203%
RMB'000 V0NN  RMB000
ARETT WNRATM AR%TT

Segment revenue PR
External sales ShEskE 58,644 70,351 129,331
Internal sales e - 2472 4311

Manufacturing segment

DEVE R )

DA EE
AT RAEEIRA 2H ML EDHE
DEVA R RE DT -
Elimination of
intersegment sales Total
AHEEEHH h

2023 2022 03 00
U 20027 WMV 200F
RME'000 QYOO RME'000 L
ARRTT RN ARYTT RN

= - 181975 132013
(4311) (8,113) - _

58,644 72,823 133,642

(4311) (8113) 187975 132,013

Segment profit/{oss) ikl (B8 (1673 (2063) 19859

- - 8,186 (191,391)

Interest income FISHA

Gainf(loss) on derivative financial ~ fTES BT AR/
instruments (B#)

(Gain on modification of convertible 3T AT AR EF )
loan e

Loss on deregistration of 3 —FHBAATE
subsidiary a7

Fair value change on finandial asset %A EstABEZ
at TR SHARNDAE

Unallocated corporate expenses ~ AAEAFEE

Unallocated finance costs AORBERA

Loss before tax RiRAIEE

63 133
305 (293)

= 5,597
(3.952) (15)
(9.712) -

(17479 (13871)
(3,541) (3,578

(26,130) (203418

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit/(loss) from each
segment without allocation of interest income, gain/(loss)
on derivative financial instruments, gain on modification of
convertible loan, loss on deregistration of a subsidiary, fair
value change on financial asset at FVTPL, unallocated corporate
expenses, and unallocated finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the Board for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

DEEN (BB EE D RrEELE
R,/ (BE) - M EDEFSHBA -
fTESMI A (B1E) - B5TH
BMRERH YR - —HENEQREUR
AMRERE  RAREFABRRZE
BEENAAEBEES - RO AR
S EARDEBERA LTI ERD
RERRBHERNESTG2ROIDE

S ERIHE ERATTSI -
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B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E

4,
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuED)

Segment assets and liabilities

Retail segment

ZELH

2023
2023F
RMB000

2022
20224
RMB’000

4. DEPER#)
PEEEREE

Manufacturing segment
EEDH
2023

2023F
RMB’000

2023
2023F
RMB’000

2022
20224
RMB’000

Consolidated

)

2022
20225

RMB’000

ARETT PNSwll ARETT PNSESwll ARETT BN

Segment assets AHEE 29,677 37,507 216,186 300,828 245,863 338,335

Unallocated corporate KA BLAEIAE

assets 38,116 28,569

Consolidated assets EEE 283,979 366,904

Segment liabilities AEa%E 32,535 40,141 335039 379304 367,574 419,445

Unallocated corporate KA B ARIEE

liabilities 68,936 78,918

Consolidated liabilities 435 B & 436,510 498363

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and ERSBRIFLENEDE 2 EDH

allocating resources between segments: ’ﬁ?ﬁ :

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than e BRANMERFTEE(XERESR
unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising certain TreUs B 5 508 - El—2
of amounts due from related parties, amount due from a AR R FKIE - ?ﬁ@ﬁfﬁ%)\fﬁﬁ?&
shareholder, financial asset at FVTPL and other unallocated ZEBMEEREMASE
corporate assets); and BEI - FIBEEHS @EEZ«

B K&

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e BRARNEARIABEB(XZRFERE
than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly comprising BB ARFIE 1TE® r"ﬂlI
amounts due to related companies, derivative financial A . oBBE m&ﬁi\’r@ﬂi

instruments, convertible loan and other unallocated

corporate liabilities).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conminueD) 4. DEER#)
Other segment information HAth 7 ZBE R
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Unallocated Total
ZENR LESD ) Eh
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ABE 20225 WABE 20225 WABE W0E WBE W0F
RMB'000 RMB'000 AT RYGOMM RMB'000 RYCLAM RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT RSl ARETT Qv ARETT NSyl \KETr ENESw
Addition of right-of-use assets ~ FEFBEEE 1510 17,329 16,320 29217 - - 2,830 46,546
Addition of property, plantand ~ FEWE - BRER
equipment HE 135 139 3,859 11,195 - - 3,99 12,590
Depreciation of property, plant 7% * BE RERfE
and equipment i 517 688 3,19 2859 - - 3707 3547
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FFEEENE 10,355 8313 15,974 2435 - - 26329 10,748

(Reversal)provision against RERBERE
obsolete and slow-moving (B@)/ Bk

inventories (11) (5,176) (27,610) 25,299 - - (27,621) 20,123
Allowance forfreversal of BHRNGERE

alowance for) expected credit ~ EEBREME/

losses in respect of trade (BERE)58

receivables, net (60) 432 16,509 6,917 - - 16,449 7,349
Allowance forl{reversal of VR

allowance for) expected FeREMENR

credit losses in respect of on FENRHEE

prepayments, deposits and BiEkE/(AE

other receivabls, net et (16) 941 15989 10830 1 o B 18
Alowance for expected credit ~ FEAUEERE A 00EH)

losses in respect of amounts RBEESSE

due from related parties, et BEFAE - - 134 34 48 - 182 34
Written off of property, plantand  Hi3#7% - BR R
equipment B 102 - = 3318 = = 102 3378
Loss/{gain) on disposal of property, HEHE - BER
plant and equipment RENER/
(Yzz) (61) (69) 539 (2,064) - - 478 (2132
Gain on termination of leases ~ £X - EAME - o) (1299 (4449 - - (1209  (8460)

Finance costs BEML 1,702 1233 8,746 2,690 3,541 3578 13,989 7,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continveD)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
locations of the Group’s revenue from external customers
during the year and the Group’s non-current assets.

(a) Revenue from external customers

The geographical locations of the customers are
determined based on the locations of customer.

DEVE R )
hEER

TREFIENREERENSES
Wiz A S S R B A A O IR A
ah o

(a) REIEBEF B 5

EPOEBLEREBERTFM
FEHEETE o

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T T AREFT
People’s Republic of China FREE A R AN
(including Hong Kong) (BREEE) 65,947 65,764
The United States of America EHEE REH
("US" or "U.S.") (I=&l) 60,471 42,952
Europe (Note (a)) BOM (B 3E@)) 50,012 19,018
Others Hity 11,545 4,279
187,975 132,013
Note: T -
(a) Europe mainly include France, Norway, Spain, Ireland and United (@) BN EZERIEER - #E - T
Kingdom. 7 BERREREE -
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R SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continveD)

Geographical information (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

4.

DEVE R )
thEER (&)
(b) FFHBEE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKET T AREFT

The People’s Republic of China FREE A R AN
(including Hong Kong) (BREEE) 39,485 49,065
The U.S. ESE 3,438 -
The United Kingdom (“U.K.") HE([5E]) 111 1,096
43,034 50,161

The non-current asset information above is presented

based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers with did not consist any related
parties of the corresponding year contributing over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group is as follows:

NEFRRBEEERTIREE
ENLEZS -

BREEEZFHER

MIARI G (A S BB A 10% B4 £
B EE S (e AR ) A
T

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFT

Customer 1 =P N/ATEE A * 18,607

Customer 2 ®P2 46,951 33,891
* Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue of the @ REZBFEH RS NR AL BB

Group. 10% °

RAREERAR AT 2023 F£3F 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EE2023F12H31H I F/E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.
AND GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added tax.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

A

ﬁﬂl&)\&% it 3+

I~ /\

WASRFTSHE EmINRRE - ESIT
MRBERBBROEZFE

WA -

HAb WA R U

mANTAT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Revenue 'ON
Recognised at a point of time: RE R REEER
Manufacture and sales of sofas, sofa cover 4 ZE MEEDEE - DEEL
and other furniture products HthREEm 187,967 131,725
Commission income BalA 8 288
187,975 132,013
Other income and gains, net Hitt A R W F 58
Interest income FEUA 63 133
Gain on termination of leases IEER R 1,299 8,460
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BE LEED
and equipment (E518), M (478) 2,132
Gain on modification of convertible loan  {E5] AT E RIS = 5,597
Gain on modification of lease BRI AV W a 187 -
Government subsidies (Note (a)) TR RS (M 3E(a)) 17 4,412
Rental income HaS WA = 150
Compensation income (Note (b)) HEUA (HFED)) = 13,370
Bad debt recovery dEkeais 1,506 -
Others EAf 375 320
2,969 34,574
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BTSRRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET AND GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised local
governments in Zhejiang Province of approximately RMB17,000 (2022:
RMB2,013,000) in respect of the Group’s contribution to the industry.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
government subsidies of approximately RMB nil (2022: RMB2,399,000)
in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, of which approximately RMB nil
(2022: RMB492,000) related to Employment Support Scheme and Anti-
epidemic Fund Retail Sector Subsidy provided by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, and approximately RMB
nil (2022: RMB1,907,000) in respect of the Employee Retention Credit
Scheme provided by the federal government in United States. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received
compensation on factory relocation from Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris
PRC") due to consider possible losses about factories relocation in peak
season. Therefore, the Group recognised compensation on factory
relocation of approximately RMB13,366,000.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation under the Group's existing manufacture and sales of
sofa, sofa covers and other furniture products is approximately
RMB7,210,000 (2022: approximately RMB11,052,000) and the

Group will recognised this revenue in 2024.

5.

-
RAKX

A~ 3 Wﬁz)\&uﬁzﬁﬁ;‘%
AL B EHR N

(a) HZE2023F12A31BILFE - AEEE
PRI A 77 B AN R B R 1T AT
HEEHER O AR 17,0007T (20224 -
AR #2,013,0007T) ° # £2023412
A31BIEFE - AEEI & Covid-19
TR B R BT B (2022 + AR¥E
2,399,0007T) + H A (20224 + A
R ¥492,0007T) BB SR BT TEUE BT
RENRRESNBERENEESTE
¥WBBER  RIEQ022F : ARK
1,907,000t ) £ 3 B Btk 3B AT 42 AR A9 R
BETIHFHNETEEH - MERZEWR
BRI RER IR EEIE -

(b) HZE2022F12A318ILLFE - AREE
BEETHRKBAAEEL  AEEK
HRERAEEERAF(REFREA])
M ITRRIREHE - At - NEEERE
EREmHEL AR 13,366,0007T ©

2023128318 » HEEAREH
REEERBESE  DEERHEM
REEGE TS TEHNEANRSE
BwEEA A AR ¥ 7,210,000 7T (2022
& AR%11,052,0007T) 0 A
E B 2024 F ERUL BB o
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e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET AND GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING
(CONTINUED)

Gain on debt restructuring

In relation to the pre-restructuring applications filed by Zhejiang
Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. G/ TP f B £ & BAR A
A]) and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd. (H/ LR A K &)
KIEBBR A A (collectively, the “Relevant Subsidiaries”) with
the People’s Court of Haining City (the “Court”) on 19 January

5.

WA~ A K as %
WA N BEEEA W )

BEEEANKE

HIPR B F RS AR A E KT
RABHREERAR(SIEHE
MEBAT ) M20226F1 8198367
FRSRE RS ST I B E AT A8
B AR (AR IR IBEH S

2022 for the formulation of pre-restructuring plans to resolve e
their debt positions.
Upon the pre-restructuring application and the appointment of MNIEEHARFERERZERREEA

the provisional administrators by the Court, on 13 May 2022,
the Court accepted the restructuring application of the Relevant
Subsidiaries on a consolidated basis (the “Restructuring”).

The proposal for the Restructuring of the Relevant Subsidiaries
(the "Restructuring Proposal”) will become effective and
binding on the Relevant Subsidiaries and all creditors subject to
(a) the approval by a simple majority in number of the creditors
present and voting at each of the creditors’ class meetings, and
the amount of debts of which creditors representing more than
two-thirds in the total amount of debts in each of the classes
of creditors; (b) the entering into of the subscription agreement
between the potential subscriber and the Company; and (c)
the approval of the Court. If the Restructuring Proposal is not
passed at the creditors’ meeting, or the Restructuring Proposal
passed at the creditors’ meeting is not approved by the Court,
the Court will terminate the Restructuring procedures and

declare the Relevant Subsidiaries insolvent.
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R SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET AND GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING
(CONTINUED)

Gain on debt restructuring (Continued)

The Group's Restructuring Proposal was passed by the requisite
majority of creditors of the Relevant Subsidiaries at the meeting
of Restructuring Proposal. The Restructuring Proposal has
been sanctioned by the People’s Court of Haining City in the
PRC on 5 August 2022. Since then, the Restructuring Proposal
became effective on 5 August 2022. The Restructuring Proposal
administrators have received the preference indication forms
from all Restructuring Proposal creditors and the admitted

claims have been allocated in the following manner:

Under the terms of the Restructuring Proposal (“Option A"),
full repayment of admitted claims will be made to the Option
A creditors and the repayment date will be extended for a
period of eight years beginning from the effective date on 5
August 2022. The Company will repay the outstanding debt by
the repayment schedule of the following: In the sixth year, the
Company shall make a repayment of not less than 20% of the
remaining debt. In the seventh year, the Company shall make a
repayment of not less than 30% of the remaining debt. In the
eighth year, the Company shall repay the remaining outstanding
debt.

5.

WA~ A K as %
WA N BEEEA W )

BRFEA KRR

AEBNEAFRCEEETIRER
TESHEMB AT ERAETZE
ik - EEFREN2022F8A5HE
FHRBESEMARERIE - B
BT EMN2022F8 ASHER - E4R
FREBACWEIBEAS RE#E
ARELEETE  MEARNRED
ETHHFAAE

RIEEASR(READMER &
MEBEABREAZHEEERCSRRANE
BEHEEBHKA202248A5A 4%
Bz BRERN\F - RARBIERT
SR L EEREENER : £
F o ARRAABERNBEBE TR
20% ° FLF - ARRIAERRIRE
BRLMR30% - FNEF - RQGEIAE
BRSO AREEES

i3
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e MR AR A ()
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B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET AND GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING
(CONTINUED)

Gain on debt restructuring (Continued)

Under the terms of the Restructuring Proposal (“Option B"), (1)
for each creditor with a debt amount of less than RMB30,000
will be fully repaid in cash within three months from the date
of court approval of the Restructuring Proposal; (2) for creditors
with a debt amount of RMB30,000 or more, 20% of the
portion exceeding RMB30,000 (excluding the principal) will be
repaid. The Company will repay this portion in cash, based on
a 20% proportion, within three months from the date of court
approval of the restructuring plan; (3) any remaining unpaid
debts will be transferred to a designated third party, as agreed
upon by the transferring creditors. The transferring creditors
agreed to transfer their rights and interests related to the unpaid

portion of debts (including related joint guarantee rights and

5.

A ﬁﬂ”ﬁz)\&ﬂ&”%
8 A R 7 4 s

BRFEA KRR

BIREATR(REB]) OG- (1)
HMETE & FIEN A REE30,0007H
BHREEA  BEERBESHEATR
ZHBR=EARNNESE2EEE
QB NEB A ARE30,0007T
A ERIEREA - iR A KH30,000
TLRIER D HI20% (NEEAD ) S HEE
B o ANAIBIEER I EERE TR
B =18 A R A20% I LL BILAIR £ 18
BZES  QFWHESBRSENES
FHRE R EE AN B EEZETIEED
B  HEBERERAREBEERE
B EHEENENRER (2

other subsidiary rights) to the designated third party assigned MRS T R ORI S EL At P BB AR ) 8
by Mr. Zou. Mr. Zou and the designated third party are willing BYPEERENE =7 - BrER

to pay 30% of the transfer amount as the purchase price for

BER=—TREXNERTRENZ0%

the transferred debts. The specific payment method, deadline, ERERERNEEE - R8BI
and other details will be governed by the agreement between I - AIRREMEN A B ARE AL
the creditors and Mr. Zou, and it is not within the scope of this FINHIERE  TBRAEEATR

restructuring plan’s execution.

Under the terms of the Restructuring Proposal (“Option C"), (1)
for each creditor with a debt amount of less than RMB30,000
will be fully repaid in cash within three months from the date
of court approval of the Restructuring Proposal; (2) for creditors
with a debt amount of RMB30,000 or more, 20% of the
portion exceeding RMB30,000 (excluding the principal) will be
repaid. The Company will repay this portion in cash, based on
a 20% proportion, within three months from the date of court

approval of the restructuring plan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. WA~ EAth U A R e E
NET AND GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING RELA MBS E AW )
(CONTINUED)
Gain on debt restructuring (Continued) (e =R NG )
Pursuant to the Restructuring Proposal, the liabilities of RIEEHET R EEARNEBEHA
the Restructuring Proposal, amounted to approximately K #292,290,0007T 2 ##BR - 5 EQ
RMB292,290,000 have been discharged and allocated into FEIFA ~ BKC » AL - HIE2023F
Option A, B or C. Accordingly, a gain on debt restructuring of 12A31ALFE D EREHEA N
approximately RMB92,434,000 has been recognised for the #) AR #92,434,0007T °

year ended 31 December 2023.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the BLHIBERELEALR BEA20224F
Company dated 19 January 2022, 22 April 2022, 13 May 2022 18198 ~ 202244 A22 8 + 202245
and 18 August 2022. R138 K&202248 18K ASE °
RMB'000
ARETT
Liabilities assumed pursuant to RIEEA T RENEAE -
the Restructuring Proposal:
Trade and bills payable B ERNFIEBRENER (50,751)
Other payables and accruals B EFIARETER (82,261)
Borrowings & (66,844)
(199,856)
Liabilities discharged pursuant to RIBEEA S RBHRHAE :
the Restructuring Proposal:
Trade and bills payable B S ENFRIARENEE 124,134
Other payables and accruals Hib N FIEREGER 101,312
Borrowings &3k 66,344
292,290
Gain on debt restructuring B EAN 92,434
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

6. FINANCE COSTS

2023 2022

20235 202245

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR AR¥ETT

Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERTF A 5,887 1,490
Interest on discount trade bills BHIRE S EEF & = 398
Interest on convertible loan IR E T B 3,541 3,578
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEBNE 4,561 2,035
13,989 7,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023712431 HILFE
7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRBiAIEE
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBMOBRTATBEIEINER (G
(crediting): AN) TR
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T AREFIT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERAR 146,132 109,890
(Reversal)/provision against obsolete ~ fRE MIEEREFE
and slow-moving inventories (B[R], BB (27,621) 20,123
Cost of sales SHEAR 118,511 130,013

Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #% - WE R RIGITE

equipment 13 3,707 3,547
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15 26,329 10,748
Expense relating to short-term lease ~ AERHEAHER S 1,360 18,417
Written off of property, plant and WEEYI%E - BB R

equipment** A 13 102 3,378
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERTB & -

Audit and audit related services it REFHEARS 1,446 1,433

Employee benefit expenses (excluding B B&FIBIS (T EIEE

directors’ and chief executives EREEITHA BTN
remuneration (note 8)): % (f17E8)) :
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind & « TEREWFIZ 48,374 103,840
Share-based payment VARG D B ERERTER 392 =
Pension scheme contributions* RIRET B R 5,044 7,669
53,810 111,509
Allowance for expected credit losses B ZEWHRIBTEHEE
in respect of trade receivables, net EEREFE 16,449 7,349
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ FAIFIE « #2& R EHAD
in respect of prepayments, deposits ~ JEWFIBEMTERIEE
and other receivables, net R EFE 15,974 11,783
Allowance for expected credit losses  JEULBEHE A Bl IAH)TE
in respect of amounts due from HEEEERETE
related companies, net 182 34
Product warranty additional provision 7= Sh{R (& EESMNEE 943 461
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary ~— KB A BIHEUH
&S 3,952 15
(Gain)/loss on derivative financial PTESmIT AR,
instruments E518 (305) 293
Loss on sales of raw materials** SHE RMEHE B> 16,488 11,509
Exchange (gain)/losses* * BE 5, (Wzs) i (151) 7,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EL22023%F 12431 HILFE
7. LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 7. BRMAIETE )
* At 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions available * 2023128318 - AEEWEERK
to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (2022: L RE] R R R SR A S R SRR AT I
RMBnil). (20226 « fE) °
**  The above items are included in “Other expenses and losses” on the face *x A EIEBF AGRE R REMEEEKE
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive e[ EAbFX REEIA -
income.
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEKFETHAEM=
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, WBiELEMHRA - BERFGEHE
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), 383(1)@) * (b) * () B (MIELA R AR (3
(c) and () of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 EEENEERRANE2E - NFE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EERFETHAEHEBEENT

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Fees o 2,006 1,767
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYAN = 9,045 7,182
Share-based payment LARR 15 B ERE R 3R 106 -
Pension scheme contribution RONGTEIE TR 16 131
9,167 7,313

11,173 9,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

8. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continueD)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

8. EFNTBITHAEME

(%)
(a)

BYFAITES

FAXNTFBIIERTEEN
wEEIIT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

Mr. Liu Haifeng (i) 2 A () - 61
Mr. Chu Guodi (i) 7 B 25 5% A (i) - 61
Mr. Qian Jun (ii) S8 ST A (i) - 56
Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (iii) B8 &5 Z08% i) 217 44
Professor Lee Chack Fan (iv) 28 S HI (v) 217 31
Ms. Chen Jianhua (jii) B 2AE 2 (i) 217 44
Ms. Zhao Hongyan (v) HATEZ T (v) - 115
Mr. Tan Tianhong (v) BRAT LA (V) - 115
Ms. Wu Weixia (v) RIBEBRZLWV) - 115
Professor Sit Wing Hang, Alfred (vi) B K BHUIR (vi) 108 -
759 642

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr. Chu Guodi resigned as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 16 May 2022.

Mr. Qian Jun resigned on 14 April 2022.

Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Ms. Chen Jianhua were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company
on 17 October 2022.

Professor Lee Chack Fan was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 9 November 2022.

Ms. Zhao Hongyan, Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Wu Weixia resigned
as independent non-executive directors of the Company on 9
November 2022.

Professor Sit Wing Hang, Alfred was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 5 July 2023.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2022: RMB nil).

Wik

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

-
RAKX

BERAR AR 2023 £

21 5 4 I 48 B 55 St £ 7R 2022
F5H16 B BEA QB IEHIT
B

BB EER2022F4 A 148 FHE ©
8 Gh 5 2R M PR e 22 722022
F10A17AEZEAARAREL
HITES -

FIEHHIZ R 2022F11 Ao %
RERRRRBNIERITES °

WA ERT BRALERRE
B +R20224 11 A9BBIAR
RNEBNIERITEE

EEKEHIRR 202367 ASAER
ERBRRRIBYIFATES °

AR H A S AR B IEITE
EZHM (20224 : ) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EE2023F12H31H I F/E
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENTETHAEME
REMUNERATION (continueD) (%)
(b) The chief executive officer, non-executive (b) 1TBUEE - FHITEER
directors and executive directors HITES
The remuneration of each of these executive directors and DERTESRIERTEES
non-executive directors are set out below: ErMEEZI0T
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme Total
in kind bonuses payment contributions remuneration
e 28 IR AER BIRGHE
#e  RENFE Bfsftd RES #R Weam
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR
Year ended BZnE
31 December 2023 128318 LFE
Executive Directors: BiEE:
Mr. Zou Gebing PRELE
("Mr. Zou") () ([8%ED0) M 5,937 - - - 6,208
Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai ISy Vi
(Chief Executive Officer) (17R#5) m 940 - 106 16 1333
Mr. Tse Kam Pang ElF ik 7 2,168 - - - 2,439
813 9,045 - 106 16 9,980
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Tse Hok Kan EE S 27 - - - - 17
Ms. Wu Xiangfei Elibhive 217 - - - - 17
134 - - - - 134
Note: P
(i) Mr. Zou resigned as executive directors on 8 January 2024. () B 1202451 A8 A BHERT
BEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

EHE2023F12H31HIFF/Z
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENFETHAEMS
REMUNERATION (continueD) (%)
(b) The chief executive officer, non-executive (b) 1THUHEE - FHITEER
directors and executive directors (Continued) HITES(®)

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
g RE EARGHE
wne  REWIE EyETEAL i Mens

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTT  ARETR ARBTL  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZ2022F 12318 1HEE

Executive Directors: BTES
Mr. Zou Gebing ("Mr. Zou")  FHRELA(H%E]) 45 5335 - 49 5429
Mr. Wu Yueming (i) RABAKEAEN) 615 313 - 15 943
Mr. Shen Zhidong (i) IHEREEG) 278 111 - 14 403
Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai SFREAE
(Chief Executive Officer) (i (77844 i) 56 464 - 4 524
Mr. Tse Kam Pang (ii) Filf e () 55 445 - = 500
1,049 6,668 - 82 7,799
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Tse Hok Kan (i BB i 45 - - - 45
Ms. Wu Xiangfei (iv) SRR L) 31 514 = 49 594
76 514 - 49 639
Notes: Bt
(i) Mr. Wu Yueming and Mr. Shen Zhidong resigned as executive @) R AL RILER S ER2022
directors on 9 November 2022. F1AIBBHERITES -
(i) Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai and Mr. Tse Kam Pang were appointed as (i) HEF 3R 00 A IR 8RS St 4278 2022
executive directors on 17 October 2022. FI0RA17BEZTRNTES -
@iy~ Mr. Tse Hok Kan was appointed as non-executive director on 17 (i)  HEBEFEER2022F10717H%
October 2022. ZERIFMTES ©
(iv)  Ms. Wu Xiangfei was appointed as non-executive director on 9 (v) BB ZLR2022411 A9B %
November 2022. ZERFRITES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included

2 directors (2022: 2), details of whose remuneration are set out

in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the five highest

paid employees are as follows:

hEx=EHES
FANRE&=EHREEBERS (2022
FMB)EF FREMSOFS
HR X8 - nEBREFHEEN
HFIBOT ¢

2023 2022

2023F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ET T ARBFIT

Fees e 542 660
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEEYA S 13,757 8,616
Share-based payment VARG (7 B ERERITER 219 -
Pension Scheme contributions IRIRETEIBER - 118
14,518 9,394

The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration fell

within the following bands is as follows:

FHNF I BENR=HEE A
LN

Nil to HK$1,000,000

Z£%1,000,000/%8 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000/ 7T - 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 23,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7T 6,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 C27,000,000/ 7T 1 -

5 5

During the year ended 31 December 2023, remuneration
was paid by the Group to the Directors or five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office of approximately RMB
nil (2022: RMB178,500). There has been no arrangement
under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FTI3FE R

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HK$2 million.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at
25% during the year (2022: 25%).

REFEFEMNEBRIES ([XB
BLESDNRALAN - AEEH
ARHERENABRZEEHMNE
I FR1SHE ©

1R B FI 1S B PR AR ) F 15 B & )
- &aEREEHEEEH2,000000%8
TT HY 35 F) #6 12.8.25% HY B R AR
i A8 48 2,000,000 7% JT &9 3 F) Bl #%2
16.5% BIBL K -TRL o T4 WAL S FI
SHEHEERNEEEEN T
HHHEEZ16.5%METEREEH - B
It - 5B EEE 52,000,000
TLAt AT FE SR B F128.25% M B R 4
MEBFIST - 2,000,000 7T A
E2 A ERT R F A 16.5% K Y
T o

FR - PENEBARREZR25% (2022
F 125%) B REMPEDERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (conTIvUED) 10. TSR % )

The U.S. corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31
December 2023 in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
The U.S. income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated
at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: a fixed rate of 21%) on the estimated U.S. federal
taxable income and (b) state income tax to calculated at various
state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject
to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is calculated
based on the federal taxable income with state tax adjustments,
which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states
(i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned
or specially allocated to the respective states in which the Group
operates) based on the apportionment factors provided from
the state tax returns in previous year.

A change to the main U.K. corporation tax rate, announced in
the Budget on 11 March 2020, was substantively enacted on
17 March 2020. The rate applicable from 1 April 2020 now
remains at 19%, rather than the previously enacted reduction to
17%. Deferred taxes are calculated based on the rates enacted
in respect of future periods as at the reporting date. Pursuant
to the income tax rules and regulations of U.K., the subsidiary
comprising the Group in U.K. is liable to U.K. at a tax rate of
19% for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

BB L ER - 8220235
NRAJNBEFEMNEBRCEREA
21% o EBFEH B E QMM E
G AT AR B E 202312
A318 I FE21% 8 EE R & (2022
F o 21% M EEB ) T E /95 F AT
B (o) M A AR A HE S N &9 (A5
MERTRUA + BRI S B R
HEHYNETEE o FEIMNG 8 EERT UK
A BN FERR B UL A FRAS VE L MR Bt
HHAE(HESRSIREN D RES
M) BB 3B FE R B UL (BIZ LL 7] 9 R
S5 Bl 0 Bt 22 AN 5 [ 4K & A AR A
MEOERBRABT D) - BIFSLA
FEMMBEREZRRO B E =M
HiSH -

M2020F3 A1 BHTEEEFR AMHH
REFERABEREBZH20204F3
R17BEEEN - B2020F4H 11
B AR RIBERN19% - M3k
A THAE17% o ELEFTER
TR B R s B EARL AR SR AR A8 5 &Y
METHE - BIBERBEAGHRLRE
o BZE2023F K2022F12A31H
IEFE  AEBREENKBARZA
1219% BB R BN R B TSR o

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTF T ARBFT

Current — Hong Kong BER— &
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFEBERE (68) (798)
Deferred tax RIERTE = (34)
Tax credit for the year FATIRE R (68) (832)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (conminueD)

A reconciliation of the tax expenses applicable to loss before tax

at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the majority

of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

10. FTEHE %)

BAR B AR M8 A B M AL 7]
EHER BATE B R Gt B MR AT B 1B
R RBIAR X B AR B ERR X
AHEMTIRR S HRRNT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Loss before tax BRI E 1B (26,130) (203,418)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates LERE R AR SN EAAR
applicable to profit in the respective MR ENEIE
jurisdiction 3,990 (47,132)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BLIBT BRI BN EAR IR A AR
previous periods (68) (798)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 8,313 22,584
Super-deduction of eligible research & BB X HBERIE
development expenditure — (213)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AR E R ERENR G E
difference - (34)
Income not subject to tax BERBBA (36,586) (6,579)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 24,283 31,340
Tax credit for the year FARIEHE R (68) (832)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.3% (2022:

23.2%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax

rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain

subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.

HNHE 58 A X & 15.3% (2022
F:23.2%) c MEFHERTRE
B IARARN RS THBARNEE
AIEREE M EFIRE B EFTER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o)

BA RS R AR Y AE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not recommend the payment of
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: RMBnil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amount for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of approximately RMB24,728,000 (2022: approximately
RMB199,679,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 2,674,188,000 after excluding treasury shares
(2022: 1,427,475,671) in issue during the year.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts as
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue.
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12.

[:95)

EFTeNERKNEE2023F12 A
31THIEFERHRRE (20224 « ) -

AR EBERTAAE
THERE R

HE2023F12A31HLEFE - B
EAEBBIREARR L BEDES
ANERFERNEIBLOARE24,728,000
7L (20224  #9 AR % 199,679,000
To) A RFRE BT RARA niEFE
5812,674,188,000 1% ($0 14 B 17 B 15
1%)(20224F :1,427,475,671/%)stE -

HZE2023F K2022F 12 A318ILF
B ARASEYECEHITELES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BB KRB
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction
improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE BER ZA-HH
VEZT S BE  RBORG AE EEIR gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETz  ARMTr  ARETR  ARMTn  ARMTR
31 December 2023 W23E12A318
At 31 December 2022 and R002ENRNER
1 January 2023 20351818
Cost A 21 15213 13,638 2,022 1328 54,472
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (18,292) (13,202) (13,338) (1,807) (1,328) (47,967)
Net carrying amount SEE 3979 2,011 300 215 - 6,505

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 7203%E1 718 -

depreciation and impairment MREERAE 3979 2,011 300 215 - 6,505
Additions AE 3,269 352 309 64 - 3,994
Disposal e - (802) @ (140) - (946)
Depreciation charge during the year ~ FMITERR (3321) (151) (192) (43) = (3707)
Written-off s - - (102) - = (102)
Exchange realignment ERa% 26 5 3 4 - 58

At 31 December 2023, net of 0235128318
accumulated depreciation and Th2amERAE

impairment 3,953 1,415 334 100 - 5,802
At 31 December 2023; R023F12R318
Cost R 18,115 14,582 12,864 1328 944 47,833
Accumulated depreciation and ZRERAE

impairment (14,162) (13,167) (12,530) (1,228) (944) (42,031)
Net carrying amount FESE 3,953 1415 334 100 - 5,802
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F 1231 HILF/E
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. M2 - Wi M)
(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
fixtures and
LeaseNold Plant and office Motor  Construction
improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE BER %A fi
EE BE  REORE g fEIR :
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREfR  ARETR  AREBTT  AREfRT  ARETR
31 December 2022 20228128318
At 31 December 2021 and R0NE12A3BR
1 January 2022 0051818
Cost A 19,195 17,364 9,904 3459 1331 51,253
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (18,955) (17342) (9,442) (3,115 (1331) (50,185)
Net carrying amount SEE 240 2 46 344 - 1,068

At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 12022E1 818 -

depreciation and impairment MREERAE 240 2 46 344 - 1,068
Additions hE 4,964 2,008 5,469 149 - 12,590
Disposal e - - - (213) - 213)
Depreciation charge during the year ~ FIITERS (1,208) (17) (2,264) (60) - (3,547)
Written-off e - - (3379) - - (3378)
Fichange realignment B A% (19 2 11 ) - (15

At 31 December 2022, net of W02F128318
accumulated depreciation and Th2amERAE

impairment 3,979 201 300 215 - 6,505
At 31 December 2022: R002ENRNE
Cost A 2.7 15,213 13,638 202 1328 54472
Accumulated depreciation and RERAE

impairment (18,292) (13,202) (13,338) (1,807) (1328) (47967)
Net carrying amount EaFE 3,979 2011 300 215 - 6,505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 14, I ARET ABZHN SR

PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2023F
RMB’'000
ARMF T
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREFABRNSRERE
Unlisted equity securities (Note (i) R EMEZRB S (M) 1,604
Note: Bt 5T
(i) On 16 May 2023, the Company entered into the Stock Purchase (i) R2023F5816H + ANAGERT B H
Agreement whereby Charme Inc. (the “Target Company”), as issuer # v Charme Inc. ([ B QR D EAHT
agreed to issue an aggregate of 847 shares of Series Angel Preferred ARBEITEHA7TRREWBLR - M
Stock and the Company as subscribers agreed to subscribe 423 shares for RRARMERREAREREA2IMARH
consideration of US$1,600,000. The stock subscription was completed on 1B /1,600,000 7T - x5 RIEEIE
16 May 2023 and as a result, the Company holds 15.9804% of the issued BEM2023F5 16 AT « ALt - AR
shares of all classes of stocks of the Target Company. Further details were AIFBERARMBERIEEITRNE
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 16 May 2023 and 7 July 15.9804% ° # —FHIFEHNALQF HE
2023. £2023%5A 168 202347 A7A MR
&,
&
Details of fair value measurements of unlisted equity securities REMEDEFSFNAAETFEFFEH
are set out in Note 35. FAFFFE3S ©
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FR#ESE

Leased

properties

HEW

RMB’'000

ARETT

As at 1 January 2022 720221818 7,641

Additions NE 46,546
Depreciation charge during the year FRFEER(FIFET7)

(note 7) (10,748)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR B 217
As at 31 December 2022 and as at 1 January 2023 202212 4318 %2023 1 H1H 43,656
Additions NE 23,830
Depreciation charge during the year FATEER (7))

(note 7) (26,329)
Modification 1&5] (5,970)
Exchange realignment PE 5 T2 441
As at 31 December 2023 7A2023%F12A31H 35,628

Lease liabilities of approximately RMB38,096,000 (2022:
approximately RMB47,452,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB35,628,000 (2022:
approximately RMB43,656,000) as at 31 December 2023. The

M20235E12 8310 - HEBBHOA
[R#538,096,0007T (20224 « HAR
#47,452,0007T ) 3R 2 ME B (5 A #E
& E AR ¥ 35,628,000 7T (2022

lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than F: HARMA3,656,0007T) ° BRI

the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the

lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases are set out in the

consolidated cash flow statements.

AN =g —1
ERER °
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A

BA RS R AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

15.

16.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continuED)

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Group leased properties for own use. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the

period for which the contract is enforceable.

15. FRESE@®)

RELZE2023F KX 2022912 A318 1k
FE - AEBHEEWEIEEA - HE
EHNEEFHA—2TF - HEK
R EERIER Eee - WeEEEE
TRIEVER R G o P E R E &Y
BRI RO RER - AEEE
A& ERIETE S 4] 58 61T
RYHEART -

INVENTORIES 16. 75
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Raw materials GUERS 7,412 10,070
Work in progress 2 1,941 2,565
Finished goods 2K 17,564 12,776
26,917 25,411
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B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES 17. BB REIKGFIA
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Trade receivables from third parties REEBE=ZFNE S EWFIE 52,817 52,098
Less: allowance for expected credit losses & : TEEAZ B BB & (35,405) (18,956)
17,412 33,142
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEBEARFPHESRANEER
credit. The credit period for customers of the manufacturing T AESHEPNEESR —RA—
segment is generally one to two months, extending up to ZMEA - FEREFPHNEEHLERE
three to four months for major customers, the credit period for ®Z=ZNEA[  MEELTAR,H
customers of the retail segment is within one month. The Group EEHAIR—EARN - REEIWEE
does not hold any collateral over its trade receivables balances. HE G RIRFIBEGR A EMER
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. m o ESRIIERTETE
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the ARS HIR + 1R 0 EFINpR
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, #HE25| K E 5 FEUGRIE B BRER 75 4T 18
is as follows: NS

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Within 3 months 3EAR 16,708 29,777
4 to 6 months 42 61E A 686 1,389
7 to 12 months 721218 A8 18 1,976
17,412 33,142

Details of the ECL assessment are set out in note 36. BB EE BB HFBHNM T

36 °
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e MR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023712431 HILFE
18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. TENRIE ~ e MHEMfE
RECEIVABLES WKIE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFT
Advances to suppliers TAR R RIE 4,244 7,461
Other prepayments HAb B FRIE 1,136 4,920
Deposits and other receivables (Note (i) Z& R E AL EUWGRIE (FIEE)) 10,204 52,314
15,584 64,695
Note: B5E -
(i) As at 31 December 2022, the amount was mainly represented the (i) 20229128318 ZEEBERE
receivable control under the administrator due to the restructuring of two AEL PR FED BT B A ) T 52 2R ) R LA A6 K
subsidiaries of approximately RMB21,160,000. EHAR%21,160,0007T °
Details of the ECL assessment are set out in note 36. BB EEEETENF BN

5136 °
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Re MRS EMANE
TR

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TF T ARBFT
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTH 4,774 7,623
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payment W ENEROEEIRER
(note 20) (K$7£20) (21) (33)
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBeEEY 4,753 7,590
Cash and bank balances denominated in: 38 RIBFTAMIEIAT
BEH¥EHE
RMB AR 585 2,079
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") (%)) 1,734 1,833
us$ eV 2,424 3,421
British Pound R 31 290
4,774 7.623

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB585,000 (2022: approximately RMB2,079,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct

foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B2 2023F 12431 H 1FF/Z
20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20. B 5 RENHIE M ENEIE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREFIT
Trade payables to third parties ENE=FHNE 558 46,073 84,941
Bills payables ENZE
— arising from intra-group purchases (Note) — B S£EREEA 7] EHY
NS AR - 58,995
46,073 143,936
Note: The balance represented bills payables which were issued among Mz EBRALEENBE AR ZHERERAE
subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions whereby the Z S MBEITHEN IR - AR U
corresponding bills receivables have been discounted or endorsed to third ZEREEREZERINHAMUBRXEE TS
parties prior to the maturity dates of the bills. =5
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end RMERAR - REZAHZNNES
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: JE A FRIE 2 B < R R B AR BR 9 AT A
T

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T AREBFT
Within 1 month &8 A R 17,778 18,156
1 to 3 months 1231E A 7,167 440
4 to 6 months 4%26{E A 3,533 1,699
Over 6 months HBiE6(E A 17,595 123,641
46,073 143,936
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade B RN FIBRENEBEATE °
payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days while B RMNFIRBEN30E180H A
bills payables are settled on a term of 90 to 270 days. & mERNEEANI0ZE270H A4S
& o
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BAREER AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (conminuep)

21.

20. B RNFTIANENTRIE

(&)
Certain bills payables were secured by pledged deposits with ATREAEEHREERFRIEERR
aggregate carrying amounts as listed below: HalREESHInT -
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%ET T ARBT T
Pledged deposits of the Group (note 19)  AE BRI D IEIFTFER
(B&E19) 21 33
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, certain bills payables were MR2023F &2022F 128318 HF
secured by corporate guarantees provided by independent third FENEERBYE=FRRENARIE
parties. RIEEHA -
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 21, B RIE R EST B
CONTRACT LIABILITIES A/ &Ha’E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%ET ARBETIT
Other payables (Note (i) B b E T FRIE (B EEG)) 85,168 88,277
Accruals FEETE A 8,269 11,983
93,437 100,260
Contract liabilities (Note (ii)) =L (D)) 7,210 11,052
Notes: BieE
(i) As at 31 December 2023, redundancy payable due to the suspension of (i) M2023F12A31H - ATHET - M
factories and rental payable was approximately RMB54,090,000 (2022: EANMEHEREMHEEIBABHOA
RMB46,009,000) and RMB7,345,000 (2022: RMB10,770,000) respectively. R # 54,090,000 7T (2022 & : A R ¥

46,009,000 7t ) & A R # 7,345,000 7T
(20224 : AR¥10,770,0007T) °

(i) Contract liabilities represent contract amounts received in advance of (if) AHBEEINEMIREINEGHSE -

delivery of goods.
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BTSRRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities

balances during the reporting period.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
in the current reporting period relates to brought forward
contract liabilities. There was no revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that related to performance obligations
that were satisfied in a prior year.

The Group’s revenue recognised that was included in the

contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period:

ﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁ RIA N BT &
afBE®

BRBEESRNRE AR EEREE
1t -

TRINRA R & HAFE FE R A0 WA B4
EANBBENHERREE - AREHME
BEEREAEFEERNBEOAET
BRAM M -

AEERBVEAGHABEHNE
TR S

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTF T

Amounts received in advance of delivery R3S @ BTEEIRK
of goods (Note) (PftsE)

11,052 9,858

Note: Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods are expected to
be settled within one year. The entire amount of contract liabilities as at 1
January 2023 (2022: all) is all recognised as revenue during current year.

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are

normally repayable on demand.

.
RAKX

Mict: BERREEFBHNENEERHBN—
FERNEE - 20235118 (20224 :
2EONZHENBBEIRATERRE
A o

HitENRAREFERRSRE ME
FRRELKER -
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HEARE
As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
R2023%12H31H R2022F12A318
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum WIGITTTE the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHE REHE ®EHE ®EHE
REE RETE LS FuRE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARET R ARETTT ARETTT
Within 1 year (B3 20,738 23,200 25,133 28,319
After 1 year but within 2 years 1226R 9,093 10,097 18,940 20,179
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E5FR 3,015 3,974 3,379 3,502
After 5 years HRiBsF 5,250 6,285 - -
17,358 20,356 22,319 23,681
38,096 43,556 47,452 52,000
Less: total future interest expenses 3 : AR JKF| EFI % 458 (5,460) (4,548)
Present value of lease obligations ~ FREAIER(E 38,096 47,452

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range
from 2.99% to 13.06% (2022: range from 2.99% to 13.06%).
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BTSRRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

22. LEASE LIABILITIES (continuED)

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

22. HEEB®

BEREBHONAT

2023 2022

2023F 20224

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥TR ARBFT

Current liabilities mEaE 20,738 25,133
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 17,358 22,319
38,096 47,452

23. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The related companies to whom these amounts are due
to companies controlled by Mr. Zou Gebing (“Mr. Zou"),
an executive director of the Company who indirectly had
shareholding interests in 24.24% of the Company during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. The amounts due
to these related companies are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

23. FERTEEEE N A

ZEREEN THAB AR IBEAA
RIMITESPRESE(BEEDE
il - B0 S A AL = 2023 4F 522022
FNRANBEFEREREARARA
24.24% MR HE - B 5255 FAEE R A1 K
BRERF REREBRERESE -

7r)\ IE\

.
RAKX
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

24. FHEIRIT R EMERK

2023 2022
2023% 2022%
Effective Effective
interestrate  Maturity LGN interestrate Maturity RMB'000
BERfI=Z  HH AR¥TT ERAE 3 ANEETT
Current - secured N -BEA
Bank loans RITER 6.61% 2024 14,790  45%-6.6%  2022-2023 69,235
Current-unsecured HE - mIE A
Other borrowings (note (c)  E AR (M () 6.0%-8.0% 2024 94,667 NATER NATER -
Non-current-secured  ENH-HHE R
Bank loans RITER 5.0%-6.5% 2031 53696 NANER  NANER -
163,153 69,235
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Analysed into: DITRATEIA
Bank and other borrowings repayable R—FANSIRERKEER
within one year or on demand IRIT R E M ERR 109,457 69,235
Bank and other borrowings repayable R—FRNERRITREAM
within over one year EE 53,696 -
163,153 69,235
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Notes:

(a)

= 4= H b .
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. T RIRTT M EMER #)
BORROWINGS (conminueD)
BeE -
Certain of the Group’s secured bank loans are secured by: (@ AEENEFEERARITERUATIE
TRVEHEA
(0] pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which were (i) 20234 K 202212 A31H »
provided by Morris PRC, a company controlled by Mr. Zou as at 31 IABBSE AR HI R A R B 1R )
December 2023 and 2022; & TR L3t R B EE YRR
(if) personal guarantees provided by the Mr. Zou as at 31 December (i) B 5 72023 F K 2022412 A
2023 and 2022; 31RRHAEALR
(i) corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC, a company (i)  BPEAEEHINRDTFER2023F
controlled by Mr. Zou as at 31 December 2023 and 2022; &2022F 12 A31 BRI A EHE
R
(iv)  corporate guarantees provided by Zhejiang Murong Shijia Real (iv)  BEEZHORINIRAHR
Estate Co., Ltd, a company controlled by Mr. Zou as at 31 HAEBR A RIR20234 £ 20224F
December 2023 and 2022; 12431 BREM A RIER
(v) corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties as at (v) N8 = J 20234 ]2 2022412
31 December 2023 and 2022; and A3TERENDEER &
(vi)  pledges of certain properties which were provided by Zhejiang (vi)  ABEAEEHOQTNIRA T
Murong Shijia Real Estate Co., Ltd, a company controlled by Mr. Kb EE AR A R 20234F 2022
Zou as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. F12A31 BERERE T WEMER
o
The Group's bank and other borrowings were denominated in the (b)y AEERRITREMERIZ TS
following currencies: B :
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T AR¥EFTT
RMB AR 105,686 39,775
HKD BT 57,467 -
us$ eV - 29,460
163,153 69,235
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AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE
> - ETApp
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 24. T RIRTT M EMER #)
BORROWINGS (conminueD)
Notes: (Continued) MIaE - (48)
() As at 31 December 2023, the amount of approximately RMB67,467,000 (c) M2023F 12 A31H - HARE
represented loan from substantial shareholder of the Group, Mr. Tse Kam 67,467,000 THI FRIBIE R B AN B *
Pang was unsecured, with annual interest 6%, and repayable within 1 TREH B CENER - ZFAEK
year. - FHERAE6%  BAR—FANEE -
As at 31 December 2023, the amount of approximately RMB17,000,000 M2023F 12 A31H - HARE
represented loan from related companies which the controlling shareholder 17,000,000 7T & 50 18 #5 2R B BBk A A1 &9
of the related companies is Mr. Tse Kam Pang was unsecured, with annual Bk B A R R R R R A SRS
interest 8%, and repayable on demand within 1 year. S RABEE - FHER8% - B
AR —FNREREE -
As at 31 December 2023, the amount of approximately RMB10,200,000 M2023F 12 A31H - HARE
represented loan from a third party was unsecured, with annual interest 10,200,000 TR IEIEREE=ZTNE
6-8%, and repayable on demand within 1 year. o ZRIEEER - FFER6-8% - B
AR —FENREREE -
25. WARRANTY PROVISION 25. {RIERE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
At beginning of year F47 455 2,907
Additional provision (note 7) REOMEAE (F5E7) 943 461
Amount utilised during the year FRNEEAFKIE (470) (3,059)
Exchange realignment M 34, 8 B 15 146
At end of year FR 943 455

The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on

an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26.

The Group has unused tax losses arising of approximately RMB
457,730,000 (2022: approximately RMB364,477,000) that
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for

some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits

IEAETR TR

REENARDARBEBNAARE
457,730,0007C(20224F : #9 A AREE
364,477,0007T) - A FARME 58 AR 2R FE
RBEF c HREEBELEHBEEER
MEARICEE —RER - ERY
i A R BN AT e F AR 85 AT B A FY

will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BEE U ER S EERRIRL
RIEEE o
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE

2023 2022

2023F 20224F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARETFT

At beginning of year F47 - 34
Credited to profit or loss during the year ~ F 5T AEz= = (34)
Exchange realignment b 5 R = _
At end of year FR = -

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirements is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2023
the applicable rate is 5% (2022: 5%). The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings

generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RARBIERBRE AT 2023 F3§

RIBEPEPEMEHE - RRBIRZ
HIFNBIFZ & 1 S M I35 B 2 R AR
B BRI10% T EHMIBIR
ZRTEH2008F 1 A1BHRBES - I
HAR2007F12A31B ZREAR
B o fini B ER SN 12 E 2 PR Rl
R BEET KRR - AIPIRAR
EHENHE - i AKEmS - BE
2023F 12 A3 BIEFERMERA X
£5% (20224 : 5%) ° At - AEH
ZA L B BK B0 % S B A Rl Bt
200851 A1 HEEEEMEF 2 IRAIAR
BEMTEIOR -

AARRERRIRN RSN EELRT
BRER -
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27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Convertible loan

27. AR E R STHE S Rt
THE
AR ER

2023 2022
2023F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TF T ARETFTT
Liability component of the Convertible loan FIRE R & EBH 40,054 60,565
Analysed for reporting purpose as: PLERWME ST ¢
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTF T ARETFT
Liability component of the Convertible loan: AJHREFHEEHLD
Current liabilities BB E 26,567 21,492
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 13,487 39,073

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible
loan (the “Convertible Loan 1”) agreement (the “Convertible
Loan | Agreement”) with International Finance Corporation
("IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the
Company agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan | in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Loan | into shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
| Agreement). The outstanding principal of the Convertible
Loan | bears interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum above 6
months HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible Loan | shall
be a period of six months in each case beginning on an interest
payment date and ending on the day immediately before the

next following interest payment date.
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27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (conminueD)

Convertible loan (Continued)

Unless previously converted, the Company shall repay 50% of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan | outstanding
as at fourth anniversary of the date of the Convertible Loan | (the
“First Repayment Instalment Date”).

Subject to any repayment to be made on the First Repayment
Instalment Date as set out above, the outstanding amount of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan | shall be
repaid on the fifth anniversary of the date of the Convertible
Loan | (the "Maturity Date 1”) together with a redemption
premium (the “Redemption Premium”) which is an amount
equal to 3.25% per annum of such portion of the principal
amount of the Convertible Loan | to be repaid or prepaid in
respect of the period beginning on the date of the disbursement
and ending on the day immediately before the date of
repayment or prepayment. Any amount of the Convertible
Loan | which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith be
cancelled.

In the year 2020, the Convertible Loan | was defaulted due
to the Company failed to repay the instalment in accordance
with the repayment schedule. On 29 May 2020, the Company
was granted a temporary waiver by IFC to postpone the
instalments. At the same time, the repayment schedule of the
Convertible Loan | was amended from original Maturity Date
| to on/prior to 28 December 2021. The Company recorded
gain on modification of the Convertible Loan | of approximately
RMB11,503,000. A new Convertible Loan | was recognised with
effective interest rate with 6.99%, where fair value of derivative
financial instruments were Nil.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Convertible
Loan | was matured and fell due for repayment. The total
outstanding principals amount and related overdue interests
of approximately RMB72,875,000 were not repaid as at 31
December 2021.
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27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (conminueD)
Convertible loan (Continued)

On 21 December 2022, the Company entered into a
amendment agreement (the “Convertible Loan 11”) to amend
the principal terms and conditions of the Convertible Loan I,
pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the Company
agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan Il in an outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Loan Il is approximately
HK$73,439,000. IFC has the right to convert all or any part of
the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Loan Il into
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22
per conversion share (subject to adjustments as set out in the
Convertible Loan Il Agreement). The outstanding principal of the
Convertible Loan Il bears interest at a rate of 2.75% per annum
above one month HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible
Loan Il shall be a period of one month in each case beginning
on an interest payment date and ending on the day immediately

before the next following interest payment date.

Subject to the rescheduled repayment instalment, the
rescheduled maturity date is 28 June 2025 (the “Maturity Date
I1") together with the accumulated redemption premium which
is an amount of approximately HK$2,192,000.
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27. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (conminueD)

Convertible loan (Continued)

The Convertible Loan | and Il recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated into
two components for accounting purpose, namely the liability
component and the derivative component, and the movements
of these components during the reporting period are as follows:

Liability

27.

Liability

component component

of Convertible of Convertible

Loan|
R
)

Loan
B3
£:([:q]

afEHs aEHs
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR

AR E R $TE % Rt
T E#w)
AR ERE)

RAEBGARBRREERN AR
RERIRIS AREGHH5 - DE
BEBD ROTERS - KR R
FHSBHIT :

Derivative Derivative

financial financial
instrument| instrument Il Total

14 14
£RIA SRIAN @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  AREBTL  ARETR

As at 1 January 2022 202261 71H 69,977* - 78 - 70,055
Repayment of Convertble Loan ~ {BE AR E (7,163) (2,553) - - (9,716)
Amortisation of liability component A[EREREEDH

of the Convertible Loan g 556 35 = = 591
Accrual interest JEstAE (795) (133) - - (928)
Derecognition of the Convertible  # |- R AR EF

Loan | (69,434) - (469) - (69,903)
Liabilities component at date of ~ FMEFTREIRIAEDH

modification - 63,837 - 469 64,306
Fair value change AREE - - 386 (93) 293
Exchange difference EREE 6,859 (621) 5 (@) 6,239
As at 31 December 2022 and W2022F 12318 &

1 January 2023 202351818 - 60,565 - m 60,937
Repayment of Convertible Loan ~ EE A AKER - (19,547) - = (19,547)
Amortisation of liability component AR EF & &S

of the Convertible Loan o373 - 1,039 - - 1,039
Accrual interest JEEHFIE - (3.477) - = (3.:477)
Fair value change AREE = = = (305) (305)
Exchange difference EHERE = 1,474 = 8 1,482
As at 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H - 40,054 - 75 40,129
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28. I&A

28. SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022
2023% 20226
US$'000 RMB’000 US$'000 RMB'000
TER ARYT T Fxx ARETFT
Equivalent Equivalent
e EE
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000/% &
of US$0.001 each (2022: PR EE0.0013 LA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of k(2022 :
US$0.001 each) 10,000,000,0008% &
HE{E0.0013TH)
EER) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEIRER
2,750,000,000 ordinary shares 2,750,000,0000 & %
of US$0.001 each (2022: H{E0.001%TH
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of k(2022
US$0.001 each) 1,000,000,0008% & B
{H0.001 £ H)EBR) 2,750 19,212 2,750 19,212
The movements in the Company’s issued share capital during RABARFEEARNDEITRAEES)
the year are as follows: N
Number of
ordinary
shares in issue Issued capital
28T
EEREE ERTER
RMB’'000
ARBTF T
As at 1 January 2022 1202241 A1 B &R 1,000,000,000 6,914
Share issued upon share subscription R REERF TR
(Note (a)) (MtEE(@) 1,300,000,000 9,248
Share issued upon placing (Note (b)) AL ERFEITIR D (M EE (b)) 450,000,000 3,050
Balance as at 31 December 2022 and 2022512 A31H K
31 December 2023 202312 A31 AR &EH 2,750,000,000 19,212
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (conTivuED)

29.

Notes:

(a)

On 10 October 2022, the Company was subscribed 1,300,000,000 shares
at a subscription price of HK$0.063 per share. The proceeds will be used
to repay indebtedness of the Group under the Convertible Loan and make
settlements for the subsidiaries’ indebtedness under the restructuring.

On 23 March 2022, the Company placed 200,000,000 new shares at the
placing price of HK$0.12 per placing share to not less than six placees.
Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23
March 2022. On 10 October 2022, the Company placed 250,000,000 new
shares at the placing price of HK$0.11 per placing share. Further details
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 10 October 2022.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions and dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distributions or dividend payments, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2023, 75,812,000 (2022: 75,812,000)
ordinary shares acquired under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme were deem to be held in treasury, representing
2.76% of the shares in issue as at 31 December 2023.
The nominal value of shares held in treasury was
approximately RMB8,992,000 (2022: approximately
RMB8,992,000).

28.

29.

=

70N

e &NE )
e

(a) R2022F 108108 © KA A RE
1,300,000,000 f& f& 17+ & B% R B8 (B 18
0.063%7T « FISHBLEREEAEE
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AR EHE TERS

(b) 20229 3A230 © RARE D R6AL
E AR 200,000,000 18 #7 A% - FARED
ERDZEEBR0I2BIT - #— 5
BEHNARR AEA202243 82380
A 0 FR2022F 108108 » AR FEIELE
250,000,000 A% - FARECE A 19 2 B2
EEROINET - #E— P BIARAEAA
AIHEIA2022610 B 10HHRAE -

Edi

REBERAFE S BEFENRRER
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(i) BHEE

RIEFEHE R REEIER)
ENE - ARABERERAR
AR R B0 48 TE #5 A & Bl B A7 O (B
RER BRI AN 2k RS
B B2 15k 1 B BB DR A B
NRI& - RRBIREANES
MEB B2 2 HEETS o

EERAD

M2023F12A318 © R HIR
1 42N ET & N U EER9 75,812,000
f% (2022 4 : 75,812,0000% ) &
BREEAANEFEIREE
B 2023412 A31 B E #17
B H2.76% » AEF AR
ENROMOEAEOASARE
8,992,0007T (20224 : 3B A
R#8,992,0007T) °
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29. RESERVES (conmivueD)

202

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries with
functional currencies other than RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of association of the

Company'’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the merge effect for acquisition
of additional equity interest in subsidiaries without the
overall change in the control in that subsidiaries and

surplus of investment in subsidiaries before the merging.

Share award scheme reserve

The restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) was adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019
(the “Adoption Date”).

The specific objectives of the Award Scheme are: (1) to
provide the Selected Participants (as defined below) with
an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the
Group; (2) to encourage and retain such individuals to
work with the Group; (3) to provide additional incentive
for Selected Participants to achieve performance goals
with a view to achieve the objectives of increasing the
value of the Group; and (4) to align the interests of the
Selected Participants directly to the Shareholders through
ownership of Shares, dividends and other distributions
paid on Shares and/or the increase in the value of the
Shares.
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29. fEtE#®)
(vi) R &RBETEIGEE2)

29. RESERVES (conmivueD)

(vi) Share award scheme reserve (Continued)

The Board may, from time to time, select and approve
any individual, being an employee, director, officer,
consultant, agent, adviser or business partner of any
member of the Group or any Affiliate (including nominees
and/or trustees of any employee benefit trust established
for them) and any other person as determined by the
Board who the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their
sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute
to the Group (the "Eligible Persons”) for participation
in the Award Scheme and grant awards to such Eligible
Persons (the “Selected Participants”).

The Board will not make any further grant of award which
will result in the aggregate number of Shares underlying
all grants made pursuant to the Award Scheme (excluding
award shares that have been forfeited in accordance with
the Award Scheme) to exceed 9.9% of the total number
of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date (i.e. 99,000,000
Shares) (the “Scheme Mandate”) without approval by a
Board resolution. As at the date of this report, awards in
respect of 99,000,000 Shares may be granted pursuant to
the Scheme Mandate.

The maximum number of award shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Participant under the Award
Scheme in aggregate shall not exceed 5.0% of the total

number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date.

The Board or the committee of the Board or person(s) to
which the Board delegated its authority may, from time
to time, while the Award Scheme is in force and subject
to all applicable laws, determine such vesting criteria and
conditions or periods for the award to be vested pursuant
to the Award Scheme.
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29. RESERVES (conmivueD)

(vi) Share award scheme reserve (Continued)

Details of specific categories of Award Scheme are as

29. fEtE#®)
(vi) R &RBEtEIGEE2)

SRR BRI T

follows:
Number of share award
RH%EEHA
Grant during the  Exercised during Lapsed during the Outstanding
Outstanding yearended the year ended year ended asat
Exercise Date/  Exercise price asat 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Date of grant period pershare  1January 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
BZ203% EYIVEES EYIVEES
R/ R203%  NANMALEE  12A3NALEE  12A3NBLEE R2023%
RERH il BRITEE  1B1RAGE BEEL o] HELYN  2BNBERTE
2023 Awarded Shares 2 August 2023 (note 1) HK$0.18 - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
035 R 03%8/28 (M) 0.18%7
2023 Awarded Shares 2 October 2023 (note 2) HK$0.18 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
03EERRIA 03F10A28  ([iE2) 01857
Total - 26,000,000 - - 26,000,000
ey
Notes: Fi5E

(1) Subject to fulfillment of the pre-determined vesting conditions, the
restricted share award scheme shall be vested and exercisable from
2 August 2024 to 1 August 2033.

2) Subject to fulfillment of the pre-determined vesting conditions, the
restricted share award scheme shall be vested and exercisable from
31 December 2025 to 1 October 2033.

The fair value of the Award Scheme granted during the
year was RMB3,070,000 (HK$0.13 and HK$0.12 each), of
which the Group recognized a Award Scheme expense of
RMB498,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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B2 2023F 12431 H 1FF/Z
29. RESERVES (conminuep) 29. f#EB)
(vi) Share award scheme reserve (Continued) (vi) R &RBETEIGEE2)
The fair value of share options granted during the year FARHMBEREQALERE
was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial AR A B R A
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon A ET R 55 H BE AR AR A AR B B A&
which the share options were granted. The following o NRFIEPAAER B A
table lists the inputs to the model used: HIE -
Share option
granted in
2023
2023F &M
B AR
HK$
BT
Fair value of the Company’s shares RARRMAEH AN ARE
as at the grant date 0.12-0.13
Expected volatility (%) TE AR 08 (%) 100.2-101.3
Expected dividend (%) TEEARY B R (%) 0.00
Exercise multiple ITEfEER 2.47
Exercise price 1TEE 0.18
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 BB ) 2R (%) 3.92-4.16
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the T8 HA R i S B PR SR ORI BB VE R
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may RARBEEZ(BEA—ERER
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. HER)NBH -

RARBIERABR AT 2023 £33 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE
30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. MEEBMEANBEY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: BB EEFTELENAEE
2023 2023%F
Interest
Amounts bearing
due to bank
related Lease  Convertible and other
companies liabilities Loan  borrowings Total
FEfT R FTEBRT
ARHE HEEE ARRER RHEMER B
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR¥®TR AR%TRT AR%T:R
As at 1 January 2023 720234171 62,173 47,452 60,565 69,235 239,425
New bank borrowings made ~ FRFEIFITER - - - 155,182 155,182
during the year
New lease entered HET AL - 23,830 - - 23,830
Interest charged MexH - 4,561 3,541 5,887 13,989
Termination of lease BIEHE = (1,299) - - (1,299)
Repayment during the year ~ FRIEF (18,727) (30,765) (19,547) (61,236) (130,275)
Modification of lease BETHE = (6,157) - - (6,157)
Interest paid and payable B RERTE - - (5,979) (5,887) (11,866)
Exchange realignment ERRIEEES 1,088 474 1,474 (28) 3,008
As at 31 December 2023 #2023 12A31H 44,534 38,096 40,054 163,153 285,837
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B2 2023F 12431 H 1FF/Z
30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. MEEBMEANBEY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continuep) BRoe)
2022 20224
Interest
Amounts bearing
due to bank
related Lease  Convertible and other
companies liabilities Loan  borrowings Total
JEfI R FTERIT
NGIE HEAE ABRREFR  REMEX #Et
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARE®ETT AR%®TT ARETT AR®ETRH
As at 1 January 2022 #2022F 171 27,734 25,002 69,977 64,616 187,329
New bank borrowings made ~ FRFEIEITER - - - 44,760 44,760
during the year
Financing cash inflows MEBSRA 47,288 - - - 47,288
New lease entered FEINARL - 46,546 - - 46,546
Interest charged MEZH - 2,035 591 1,490 4116
Termination of lease BILRE - (8,460) = = (8,460)
Repayment during the year ~ FRIEF (13,866) (18,314) (9,716) (43,455) (85,351)
Gain on modification of BETARRE R M
Convertible Loan - - (5,597) - (5,597)
Interest paid and payable B RERFIE - - (928) (1,490) (2,418)
Exchange realignment PE 5 AR 1,017 643 6,238 3314 11,212
As at 31 December 2022 72022128318 62,173 47,452 60,565 69,235 239,425
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. kABE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as REBERARREHARL B EAL
at the end of the reporting period. NEME °
32. COMMITMENTS 32, HAIE
The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 IRES[E R 20234 202212 A31H
December 2023 and 2022. I AT AR & ANAHE -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transaction with related parties

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following
significant transactions with related parties during the

33. MBI R 5

(a) EEEEEET MRS

BE B RE R SRR
D9 AR ER A R
FRTATEARS

year:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T T AREFTT
Morris PRC (note (ii)) RAPE(EG))
Rental expenses (note (a)) AEMS (MFE@Q) - 9,176
Compensation on factory relocation  BiE B E (FiFE5)
(note 5) - 13,366
Guangzhou Wanlibao Industrial ~ EMEREEZEER
Holding Co., Ltd (note (i)) AR AR (KEEG)
Sales of product HEEm - 143
Wanlibao (Guangzhou) Furniture BRI (E/M)xXA
Co., Ltd (note (i) BRA T ()
Purchase of raw materials B E R R - 8,297
Guangzhou Fuli Furniture Guangzhou Fuli Furniture
Company Limited (note (i)) Company Limited
(BREEG))
Sales of product HEEmM 48 -
Guangzhou Royal Furniture Guangzhou Royal
Company Limited (note (i)) Furniture Company
Limited (Ffi5E(3))
Purchase of product EEEM 15 -

The above related parties are companies controlled by
Mr. Tse Kam Pang (note (i)) and Mr. Zou (note (ii)). The
transactions were conducted on terms and conditions
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

Note:
(@) These related party transactions also constitute non-exempt

continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

208 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

AR T R B RISk
CPREEG) ) B 80 4 A (R Gii) ) 1% 61
AR - ZERSTIIREEHA
BT #7748 B 15 TE B 5 R R AR 1
17 o

e

(@ REBEIT RS IR TR

FUABERNTERRFER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTvuED) 33. B AR S

(b) Amount due from a shareholder (b) FEW—BREFIE
An analysis of the balances with shareholder is as follows: HRRMESRIITET ¢
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Mr. Zou 2 - 345
() Amounts due from related parties () FEWEEE S IE
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the PSR - A E BB
following material balances with its related parties: LR T E R
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARBFT
Morris PRC* (note (ii)) AT B~ (PH7E() 169,404 186,343
Zhejiang Murong Shijia Real Estate I RBERMESR AR
Co., Ltd (note (ii)) CBREECG) - 27
Shanghai Murong Digital Intelligence  HEREREERBERE A H
Technology Co., Ltd (note (ii)) (B 5EGi)) = 34
Guangzhou Wanlibao Industrial BMENEEETER
Holding Co., Ltd (note (i) BRAF(HIEEG)) = 162
Masia Investment Limited (note (ii)) FEDREBRAA](FEI)) 36 21
Guangzhou Royal Furniture Company Guangzhou Royal Furniture
Limited (note (i) Company Limited (Fff &) 5 =
Guangzhou Fuli Furniture Company ~ Guangzhou Fuli Furniture
Limited (note (i) Company Limited (Fff &) 55 =
Zhejiang Jujueyun Technology Co., Zhejiang Jujueyun
Ltd. (note (ii)) Technology Co., Ltd.
(M =EGI)) 8,000 -
177,500 186,587

Less: allowance for expected credit & : FAaif L AEIEHIAI A A

loss for companies controlled EH e E B &R
by Mr. Tse (Note 36) B (f7136) (1) (1)
allowance for expected credit BT AEIEFIA AT
loss for companies controlled YEH TR BE B 1A
by Mr. Zou (Note 36) B (Fi5E36) (1,241) (1,059)
(1,242) (1,060)
176,258 185,527
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conTvuED) 33. B AR S

() Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

* The balance was mainly due to outstanding consideration for
disposal of subsidiaries payable by Morris PRC.

The above related parties are companies controlled by Mr.
Tse Kam Pang (note (i)) and Mr. Zou (note (ii)). Amounts
due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(d) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

() FEUREARETS =R (41)

* EHRTERARTTER L EM
BAREMEREENRE -

b 3 B 7T 5 31 o e (M
SE()) J 555 A (B EEGD) F2 B
DNE] o BRI T IR A
2B RIREREE -

(d) AEBEFEEEASNH
[

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFT

Fees e 2,006 1,767
Salaries, allowances and e EMLBEYET

benefits in kind 9,045 7,373

Share-based payment VARR 19 7 ERE 81T 30 106 -

Pension scheme contributions RIRET B 16 135
Total compensation paid to key TNFEEEBRAEN

management personnel FrENAEEE 11,173 9,275

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 8 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023

B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E
34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. IREARIEI TR T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EReRIANREARNRHER
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FIEAR -
Financial assets ETREE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREF T
Financial asset at FVTPL BARBEABENTE
BE 1,604 -
At amortised cost: REESER ARG T 2 -
Trade receivables B 5 EUGRIA 17,412 33,142
Financial assets included in prepayments, s+ AJB[NFRIE « e R EM
deposits and other receivables FEWFIER & B E &= 10,204 52,314
Amount due from a shareholder FEW— R IR FIE - 345
Amounts due from related parties JiE Lk BBt 75 SRR 176,258 185,527
Pledged deposits [REFE TN 21 33
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 4,753 7,590
208,648 278,951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. #wERE et T R

(CONTINUED)

TRIBE

Financial liabilities

2023 2022
2023F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TF T ARBFIT
At amortised cost: RHEEHART &
Trade and bills payables B S EARIARENERE 46,073 143,936
Financial liabilities included in ST AEL < 5RIE M FE T
other payables and accruals BRAMNSRMBE 93,437 100,260
Amounts due to related parties BT RAES 5 2 44,534 62,173
Lease liabilities HEARE 38,096 47,452
Convertible Loan AT E R 40,054 60,565
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings z+/2 81T & & 163,153 69,235
425,347 483,621
Derivative financial
instruments
TEeMIA
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Derivative financial instruments DTSRI A 372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. €@t TEHNAREBENLAD

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and amounts due from/to
related parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief

financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale.

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into
or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2022: Nil).

B

AEBERTANKRENRAER
AAEESERE -

EEECHHRESMREEFEY
BERER  BZRKFARERR
B SHATRNFOR - e MEMER
FENEREE - EHRNFALE
NEE - StAEMEN KA LEE
FReERARE « 5FRIRTREMER
KW, FE < REESE 77 R A S E R
HEREEMRS  T2ANZFIARE
HAEEA -

REBEFE T M EEIEHRNTLER
EEBaEReRI AN AAENE
BIEBRREIER - DERBREBBFER
MERVHEER REREEH
CEREEFONMERTABERZD
NEERANMEEN T B ARE -
HRECHBERMBE RN ML

TREENBENAAREBENERRS
77 (RBFBFREEERINENRS
PR TANARZ AR °

FRAEMEERERABRIRERF2
RO EAEZELEER - ESE
A EIRAENR (20225 « ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. €@t TEHNAREBENLAD

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conmmuep) EEH#)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRIBERTIAEREIZANEE
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, WRIBEAAENABREEDERSE
grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair 123N ITAD -

value is observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from —  FIRAAEFEENHEREE
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical S BENERMSImE CRE
assets or liabilities. FEE)FH -

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from —  FE2mAnEstEEREE (R
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 Big) kA (BB ERTERS
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly H)BASB(E1RABEEA
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). EBENEERERING

4o

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from — %%&’“‘Mﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ&?ﬁ
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or BN HEbhBEEELE
liability that are not based on observable market data %IE;F%B/\\‘EIEE/T\W%%Z%(T\
(unobservable inputs). AR B A BUR ) M8 A B o

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair BEAREENEMEERE

value &

2023 20234

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R EpE 3% “st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARET T ARETR
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRABERABEN
SREE - - 1,604 -

Liabilities &f=

Convertible Loan AHREER - - 40,297 40,297

Derivative financial instruments (THEERIA - - 75 75
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF  35.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

SR TEMARERARL
BEARE)
RAREFENEREERE

&&)

2022 20224
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1 E28 F3% @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Liabilities afE

Convertible Loan AARER - - 59,998 59,998
Derivative finandial instruments TEemIA - - 372 372

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of derivative and liability component of
Convertible Loan was valued by an independent valuer. It was
calculated by discounting the future cash-flow at market rate
and including some unobservable inputs. See note 27 for the
detailed information and the movement of the fair value of

derivative financial instruments.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of derivative financial instruments:

BHEIRAAESEHER

BB EFITERABESSNANE
MBI EMEE - TEBRIETSH
R Kt AZBH A Al Bk g A SR LI
AXRBEREANE - FETESHT
BEWMFHAENRANEES  FLH
MizE27 ©

AT ITA e m T AGEMAGE
S UPSES YN ¢ 8

Fair value Valuation Significant
hierarchy technique unobservable inputs 2022
MABERER HERE EXTTRERARE 20226
Convertible Loan Level 3 Binomial pricing model  Risk-free rate 3.63% 4.12%
AHARER E ZIEAEERES EERAX
Volatility 112.86% 131.89%
KO8
Discount rate 10.13% 10.67%
BB E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B E2023F 1231 HIFF/E

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. €@t TEHNAREBENLAD

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTinuED)

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined based on
valuation using asset-based approach. Fair value of individual
business assets less liabilities of the investment company was
considered to arrive the fair value of the Group's equity interests
in the investee company. The significant input is the net asset
value of the investee company. The net asset value is positively
correlated to the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity

securities.

The following table presents the changes in fair value of
financial assets which are classified under Level 3 of the fair

value hierarchy:

BEEL )

BAREFENERHEERE
&#)

B EIRALAETSENER ()

REMHERERZ ARBETIREE
REBEELABHNMGEERE < T EASK
BREHREARBREZ AR EBERE
At RRERR ZERNEFEERAE
ZRREE ERBABESHINE
RAZEERE - BEFERRET
REESFZ AREEFTEMIEL °

TREJNDERAAEBEEBRE =R
TERMEBEAABEED

Financial assets

at FVTPL

BRAARBERA

BRzEMEE

RMB'000

ARETTT

At 1 January 2023 M2023F1 418 -
Additions i)Ju 11,148
Fair value changes NAEEE) (9,712)
Exchange realignment ME 5 B 168
At 31 December 2023 722023F12431H 1,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
shareholder, amounts due from related parties, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
parties, convertible loan, lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each

of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate
borrowings. It is the Company’s policy to keep its borrowings at
fixed rates of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Company has no significant interest-bearing liabilities
except for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities, details of which have been disclosed in notes 24 and
22 respectively.

The Company has no significant interest rate risk during the

year.

6. MR EIE BT RBE

AEENFESMTIABREEFREK
R~ e REMEKRTIR - B —
FRERFOR - RURERE TR - B S
FEN SR M BN R - EMENKIEA
RIEFTER - BRI 508 ~ Al
BER  HERAE - T ERITREM
B - RERBEHEMREERF
Ko ZFERTANTIZANIT AN
SENZESRET - ARERZE
ERAEXBEEELNHEMSRE
ERAE B ZRUFIERERE
BAKE 5N FIE M ENREE -

AEESRTAEENTIERR AN
RER - SMERR - EERR NS
BEohlk - BRI MAETEEEE
REBREVEGR - BRABRBERLAT o

=

RenegrEeEkEBREBERE
B o NRA R BHEREEEZE
EMEETE - A ARENXRRERE

ERIE -
Bit BRI REMEREEESE

(FFED BIRKI 24 X228 885 - &
REYEEAGFEAE -

ARBRERALEEAFERRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (conrinuep)
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which arose

from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies

other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant operating units, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no material impact on other components of
the Group's equity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure should the need arises. Under
the forward exchange contract, the financial impact arising
from changes in exchange rates between GBP and US$ is not
expected to be significant and therefore, the corresponding

sensitivity analysis is not prepared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conminuep) (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SNER B2 (7)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rates before tax
EELH FRBL AR R
(T&)  #in CR2)
% RMB'000
% ARBFIT
2023 20234
If RMB weakens against US$ WARBHETHE 5 1,927
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETHAE (5) (1,927)
2022 20224
If RMB weakens against US$ MAREHETRE 5 4,457
If RMB strengthens against US$ MAREHETHE (5) (4,457)
Other price risk H At E & = B

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments
in equity securities measured at FVTPL. The Group invested
in certain unquoted equity securities for investees operating
in developing and sales of adjustable beds and medical beds
to overseas markets for investment purposes which had been
designated as FVTPL. The Group has appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk

exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

AEBRBRENEAREBEFABRZ
Rz 5 MR ER AR - A%
BAKREBNMKRERE TIELmE
maE s (RIRE QAR EFAERAE
ST 35 SHE A S R R B R A %
%) BERBAAEFN ARG - K
SECZEEREBRERERAR
WNAHREZ B TER -

EEER

AEBNEERBRTIZRERITHLR
KiFsk - BHRKEIA - He RE M
FEUWFRIR - 2 EREMBAREELAS
ErleRMEEARNRAGERR -
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e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continuED)
Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed
to be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2023 and 2022.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected credit loss for all trade receivables
and general model provision for all deposits and other
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses by applied
simplified approach, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and expected credit loss. For the deposits
and other receivables, the Group assessed the expected loss
rate by applying general model. The expected credit loss rate
under general model was determined by referencing of the
market credit rating data and the probability of default rate.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-

looking information.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, trade receivables that
are individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and

past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continuED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa
covers and other furniture products and are transacted in cash
or credit. The Group's trade receivables arise from manufacture
and sales of sofa, sofa covers. As at the end of the year, the top
five debtors and the largest debtor accounted for approximately
of 54.7% and 16.0% (2022: 60.5% and 37.2% of the Group’s
trade receivables balance. In view of the history of business
dealings with the debtors and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for the debtor
related to the impaired trade receivables disclosed in the below.
Management makes periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the
debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables

are due within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group's

different customer bases.

6. MR EIE BT RBE

(#)
EERME)

REBAIBH WK E BEEREE
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e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conminueD) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERkE)
Provision of ECL on trade receivables BN AR EERRE
On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31 R EAE - R2023F 2022512 A
December 2023 and 2022 was determined as follows: 3TEME ZEUGRIEREEENT ¢
31 December 2023 2023%F12H31H
More than
1 day but less Credit-
than 1 year impaired
No past due past due (note)
bt ey = FEHE
RaH BLRIEF (Ff&E)
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEX 1.50% 3.77% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ BREAEARET )
— Trade receivables - B S RMEE 16,046 1,670 35,101 52,817
Provision for ECL BHEEBERE (241) (63) (35,101) (35,405)
31 December 2022 2022912 A31H
More than
1 day but less Credit-
than 1 year impaired
No past due past due (note) Total
AHEBIA EERE
RO BLREF (FizE) 45t
Expected credit loss rate BHEERREX 2.13% 5.50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) ~ FREAE(ARET L)
- Trade receivables -BHRNTE 19,458 14,918 17,722 52,098
Provision for ECL BHEEHBEE (@14) (820) (17,722) (18,956)
Note: Trade receivables with more than 1 year past due are considered as credit e CaM—FU ENE S EERERS
impaired, with ECL provision of approximately RMB35,101,000 (2022: HEERE BEREEBRBRENA
RMB17,722,000) were assessed individually. % 35,101,000 T (20225 : AR

17,722,000t ) EVEERIFTAE ©
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22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (continueD) (&)

Credit risk (Continued) EERkE)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables (Continued) B ENSEAEEEERE
(%)

2023F &2022F 12 A31TBME S

The provision of ECL for trade receivables as at 31 December

2023 and 2022 was as follows:

FEUGRTEHIE BB IREEIT

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL -
credit- credit-
impaired impaired Total
2HENMEE Z2HBEHEE
BE-RBE FE-CSB4E
EERE FEERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFT ARBTFT
As at 1 January 2022 M2022F1 418 1,331 10,276 11,607
Provision/(reversal) for FNEE, (B )
the year (97) 7,446 7,349
As at 31 December 2022 2022612 A318 K
and 1 January 2023 20231 81H 1,234 17,722 18,956
Provision/(reversal) for TR, (BE)
the year (765) 17,214 16,449
Transfer LEvE4 (165) 165 =
As at 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H 304 35,101 35,405
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023512731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conminuep) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERkE)
Provision of ECL on deposits and other receivables BERAEMENNERAIEEE
B
The provision for deposits and other receivables as at 31 2023 %2022 12 A31BWIZ S
December 2023 and 2022 was as follows: R H A UG IRRAE LA -
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL -
credit- credit-
12m ECL impaired impaired Total

2HREEE 2HRHEE
1288 BR-A%% BFR-BRE

AHcERR EEHE EEHE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARBEFT

As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1A18 90 - - 90

Provision for the year FREE 480 - 11,303 11,783
As at 31 December 2022 and ©2022412A318 %

1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 570 - 11,303 11,873
Provision/(reversal) for the year FRRE/ (ED) (486) - 16,460 15,974
Written off isH - - (5.605) (5.605)
Transfer Ei (42) = 42 -
As at 31 December 2023 #2023 12A31H 42 - 22,200 22,242
Deposit and other receivables BEREMERE
Deposits and other receivables relating to accounts that are B R AR@ HAR) BB R RIE ~ B ANE O (E
long overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies BEHREYPHRITEH TMEDENRSE A
or nonresponse to collection activities, they are assessed BiR e R E A BT - SRR
individually for impairment allowance. The Group recognised BERE - AEEBBIEEBALN
the provision for expected credit losses by assessing the credit EERBRFE - BRE R ER P8
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of I E B R OB R - R TEER
recovery and considering the prevailing economic conditions. EEEERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conTinueD) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERkE)
Provision of ECL on amounts due from related FEREE 5 5 B AR s BB
parties BE
The provision for amounts due from related parties as at 31 20234 20229 12 A31 HMEUR
December 2023 and 2022 was as follows: BB S sRIERMEI T
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL-
credit- credit-
12m ECL impaired impaired Total

2HREEE 2HRHEE
1288 BR-A%% BFR-BRE

BHEERE FERE FERE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT

As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1A18 1,026 - - 1,026

Provision for the year FREE 34 - = 34
As at 31 December 2022 and R2022F12A318 &

1 January 2023 2023F1H18 1,060 - - 1,060
Provision for the year FREE 182 - - 182
As at 31 December 2023 $2023%12A31A 1,242 - - 1,242
Amounts due from related companies FEW B 2\ Al sk H
For amounts due from related companies, the management FEWEE A ARZKIEmMS @ BEER
makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability BRESEEDSE  BTLBRRBEEE
of amount due from related companies based on historical EEBAEEEN  EERTEHESE
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative £ EHEAY FE UL AR A B IR 2 AT ik
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive B0 14 e 7 T 1R B RF A o

forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR AR A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

226 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continuED)
Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that
the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
for its financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates and based on rates at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

36.

BT R\ B 38 B AR SRR
(4)

MENE & EkR

AEENEERRFEENM B
% ARBEREREEERSESL
EREFECESFTE - EMBERA
SEERREEINERYESE

TERHIINAEESRAERSHR
CRAEBMTESRIANSRTAL
FEER - HIMRBEAORMBERE
RE(BRERGONERBERS
HIRMFERGFENF S ) RAE
EAl g EREENRFAIMMGSH

As at 31 December 2023 7A2023512H831H
Morethan ~ More than

Weight  Ondemand one year but two years but Total Total

average  orwithin less than lessthan  More than undiscounted carrying

interest rate oneyear  twoyears fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflow amount

ERR
il 4 REX -EHL MELL RehE

R ES d-5% EFEME (AFRIE BENE a5 HEAE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL  ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARETR

Trade and bills payables BHENTEREREE - 46,073 - - - 46,073 46,073
Financial liabilties indluded in -~ A AZMERFER

other payable and accruals B ERNSREE - 93437 - - - 93437 93437

Amount due to related companies FE(TEEEE R A130E - 44,534 = = = 44,534 44,534

Derivative financialinstruments 74 4B TR - 75 - - - 75 75

Lease liabltes BERE 890 23,200 10,007 3974 6,285 43,556 38,0%

Convertible loan TARER 202 2713 13,566 - - 40,699 40,054
Interest-bearing bank and other &8 R REMIER

borrowings 6.11 113313 - - 13913 187,226 163,153

347,765 23,663 3974 80,198 455,600 42540
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conTinueD) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mBEERREE)
As at 31 December 2022 72022912 A31H

Morethan ~ More than

Weight ~ Ondemand  oneyearbut  two years but Total Total
average or within less than lessthan ~ Morethan  undiscounted carying
interest rate one year two years five years five years cash flow amount
it
k-4 FEX —Fik MEL L RenE

FobE  g-FR BTRME  BAREF RAFNME %  FEAE
%  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBOOD  RMB'000
% ARRTT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR

Trade and bills payables EHENTERENER - 143,936 - - - 143,936 143,936

Financial liabilties indludedin A AZAERFAR
other payable and accruals EERNREER - 100,260 - - - 100,260 100,260
Amount due to related companies fEREEEA R EIFR - 62,173 - - - 62,173 62,173
Derivative financial instruments ~ fT4 4RI A - 372 - - - 372 372
Lease liabilties e 9.10 28319 20,179 3,502 = 52,000 4745
Convertible loan ERE 202 20,507 26,468 13,234 - 62,209 60,565

Interest-bearing bank and other &8 R REMIEF
borrowings 555 69,235 - - - 69,235 69,235
426,802 16,647 16,736 - 490,185 483993

REREEBRERIDRA 2023 F3) 227



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

AR PSR R ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continuED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.
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(4)

EeEH

AEBEESEENTIRARARER
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MESHER  UAXFEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  36. B i5E[GE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conminueD) (&)
Capital management (Continued) EeEE#®)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the rEBEGTRERGGEL X (AIMERE
total debts (comprised of amounts due to related companies, H(pEREMBEBATZE HEa
lease liabilities, Convertible Loan and interest-bearing bank and & TR ER R ERITREAME
other borrowings) divided by the total equity. Total equity refers FOBRAERETE ) BEIRER o g
to equity attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing BIEANRIEB ARBEERZ - REW
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows: HHRMEEAELERNT ¢
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREF T
Total debts B4R 285,837 239,425
Equity attributable to owners of the RNATHE ANELER
Company (146,250) (127,022)
Gearing ratio BEAGL R N/AFEH N/AZNE 3
37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 37. TEFBEERH
Saved as the debt restructuring disclosed in note 5, there were BRM ISR EREAIN - FA
no other material non-cash transaction during the year. WEREMBAIRERS °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ~ 38. AA T B AR

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BRAR TR EE BRI E
EERIT -

2022
20224
RMB’'000
ARETFIT
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B ARARE 7 6
Financial asset at FVTPL BAnEFARRZ
BREE 1,604 -
Total non-current assets IEMBEELE 1,611 6
Current assets REEE
Other receivables EAth e U GRIE 694 710
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGRS - 7,055
Amounts due from related companies FE I BB 1A F1200E 7,021 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRELZEY 426 200
Total current assets mENEELE 8,141 7,965
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals E@EEH%@E&F&%EE@ 6,610 3,224
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI NGIE 42,816 -
Amounts due to related companies e REE N A /T/\ 22,197 14,759
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMITA 75 372
Convertible loan AT E 26,567 21,492
Total current liabilities mEN R B 98,265 39,847
Net current liabilities RBAEFHE (90,124) (31,882)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERAREBAR (88,513) (31,876)
Non-current liability FEREEE
Convertible loan AR E R 13,487 39,073
Total non-current liability FRBEBEERE 13,487 39,073
Net liabilities BEFE (102,000) (70,949)
Equity s
Share capital A& A 19,212 19,212
Reserves (note) EE () (121,212) (90,161)
Total equity LR 1BTE (102,000) (70,949)

230 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B MR R AR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023
22023712731 HIFF/Z

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. WA RIBIIEAR R 2R (4%)

COMPANY (coNTINUED)
Note: BeE -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: AABEERRNT
Share award Exchange
Share Treasury scheme  fluctuation Accumulated
premium shares reserve reserve losses Total
BR43 5@ EXKE
RAPRE EFRG B ki RitEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At as 1 January 2022 20221818 153,071 (8,992) - (24,128) (197,052) (77,101)
Loss for the year FABE - - - - (115,512) (115,512)
Other comprehensive loss for A E {2 EE1E :
the year:
Exchange differences on MR B RR A
translation of financial B
statements - - - (3,233) - (3,233)
Total comprehensive loss for ~ FRZEEEEE

the year - - - (3,233) (115,512) (118,745)
Placing and subscription of  BL& K REER (D

Shares 107,032 - - - - 107,032
Transaction costs attributable A& & 88 A% (3 FE(S

to placing and subscription X Z A

of shares (1,347) - - - - (1,347)
Atas 31 December 2022 and %2022 12A318 &

1 January 2023 2023%1A18 258,756 (8.992) - @7.361)  (312,564) (90,161)
Loss for the year FRBE = = = = (30,269) (30,269)
Other comprehensive loss for & A2 EEIE :

the year:

Exchange differences on MBS ERRN

translation of financial &N ERE
statements - - - (1,280) - (1,280)
Total comprehensive loss for ~ FRZEFEEE

the year = = = (1,280) (30,269) (31,549)
Grant of shares under share  1RIE[% 15 22E) =+ 2l

award scheme BB - = 498 = = 498
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12831H 258,756 (8,992) 498 (28,641) (342,833) (121,212)

R
39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ 39. B f5sRaRizifE

B TSR R DN 20243 A28 A EES
SIEIIRE T -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 28 March 2024.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEIPEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2023
B 22023F 12431 H 1FFE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilites TFXFEARERZIABTEEED A
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the #HEZEUREERBEZRE  THHikE
audited financial statements, is set out below: KEZVEmE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235 20224 20214 20204 20194
GVEHOON  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB’000
NS ARET T ARETT ARETT ARETFT

RESULTS 4

Revenue gN 187,975 132,013 502,932 606,363 980,298
Cost of sales SHERA (118,511) (130,013) (403,276) (547,597) (877,211)
Gross profit EH 69,464 2,000 99,656 58,766 103,087

Loss before tax B AIEE (26,130)  (203,418)  (120,286) (87,840)  (178,943)
Income tax credit/(expenses)  FriSHi#ER,/(Fi) 68 832 (3,116) (2,890) 38,253

Loss for the year ERER (26,062)  (202,586)  (123,402) (90,730)  (140,690)

As at 31 December
M12H31AH
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 2020 20194
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
INL SV ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE

Total assets BEE 283,979 366,904 374,882 676,852 1,344,964
Total liabilities BERE (436,510)  (498,363)  (426,053)  (600,109) (1,147,997)

(152,531)  (131,459) (51,171) 76,743 196,967
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